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FROM THE MAYOR AND

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

We are pleased to present the 2015/16 Annual Report.

The city's finances continue to be in excellent shape and again the Council has
performed better than expected against its financial plan and the financial

performance indicators.

For the third consecutive year the Council has met its
balancing the books target: the adjusted result this year

is nearly $13 million against a target of $751,000. The
Council’s overall debt is $348 million, lower than the
projected target of $407 million. The Council's debt is
now 170 per cent of revenue against a performance target
of 205 per cent.

The contributing factors to the Council’s overall better than
projected financial performance include higher revenue
from development contributions, lower financing costs and
a better than expected opening balance from the previous
financial year. The Council has also made cperation savings
including $1 million at the Wastewater Treatment Plant and
$520,000 from the Water Treatment Plant.

The Council delivered $69 million in capital projects including
$5.7 million for new roading projects and $10.1 million for a
new reservoir at Rototuna to meet the demands of growth,
$2.3 million for developments at Hamilton Gardens and

$8.1 million to renew parts of Hamilton's road network.

The Council entered intc an agreement with Accessible
Properties to sell its pensioner housing for $23.5 million
after a two-year process of discussion and consultation
with the public.

The Council continues to be in a strong financial position
to deliver on the 2015-25 10 Year Plan which focuses on
investment in infrastructure to service a growing Hamilton.
This positive financial performance has enabled scme
infrastructure projects from later years in the 10 Year Plan
to be bought forward for delivery.

This year has also seen delivery of major community projects.
The Council entered into a partnership agreement with the
Ministry of Education and the Rototuna Junior High School
to build an indoor recreational centre on the school grounds.
The Hamilton Gardens development project is on track and
the partnership funding target is expected tc be achieved two

years ahead of schedule. The Council awarded the contract for

the Ferrybank Development Plan, a major project in the River
Plan, and a $1 million donation was received from Momentum
Waikato for River Plan projects. Council received a large grant
from the government’s Urban Cycleway Fund towards the
Western Rail Trail, a project in the Biking Plan which creates
an off road cycleway from west Hamilton into the central

city. The Council also approved development of a central city
open space on the Victoria On The River site, with completion
expected in the next financial year.

New playgrounds opened with the assistance of partnership
funding from community trusts and philanthropic donations,
including the destination playground at Minogue Park and the
new Deanwell playground developed in partnership with the
Ministry of Education and located within the Deanwell Primary
School grounds.

The Council continued to develop strategic plans as part of
delivering the Hamilton Plan. The Frankton Neighbourhood
Plan provides a vision and projects to enhance the
oppertunities in Frankton and the Waikato Museum Strategic
Plan sets a direction for the next five years to realise the
opportunities and potential of Waikato Museum.

Hamilton received a number of accolades during the year
including the Hamilton Gardens taking the top prize in the
2016 McGredy Winder SOLGM Local Government Excellence
Awards and the Playgrounds of the Future plan won a New
Zealand Recreation Association award for Outstanding
Research, Planning and Policy.

Looking ahead, Hamilton continues to be one of the fastest
growing places in New Zealand. The Council is focused on
delivering infrastructure to meet that population demand and
prioritising investment to ensure the Council operates within
its financial plan.

Julie Hardaker Richard Briggs
Mayor Chief Executive
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THE HAMILTON PLAN

Hamilton continues to emerge as a New Zealand success story: a city builton a
rich cultural history and a strong agricultural economy, maturing to become a
major New Zealand city — a leader in business, culture and lifestyle.

Hamilton's success is reflected in its growing population as more people are attracted by the great lifestyle and the economic
opportunities. More than 157,000 already live here and the city's population is expected to reach 200,000 in about 2030. That is
exciting and challenging for the community and for the Council.

The Hamilton Plan is our vision for Hamilton's future and the 10 pricrities in the plan are about building a stronger economy and
a more attractive city for families over the next 10 years. These pricrities listed below centre on building on the lifestyle and
economic Hamilton already has, to maximise all the opportunities.

Where we want to be:

« Our books are balanced

« The third city economy in New Zealand
« Providing outstanding infrastructure

« Strongly connected to the river

« Best garden in the world

« An active, strong commercial central city with
distinctive suburban villages

« An urban garden
« Access to affordable housing
« Celebrated for our arts and culture

« Waikato is the capital of high performance sport

For more information about the Hamilton Plan visit hamilton.govt.nz/hamiltonplan

HAMILTON CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
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SERVICE PERFORMANCE

The Council's business is divided into 13 service groups. Each service group
has performance measures that show how well we are delivering service to

the community.

The summary graph below shows that, of 77 measures
we use to track performance:

« we have met the targets for 57 measures
« we have not met the target for 18 measures; and

« we do not have sufficient data available to report against
2 measures

Arts & Culture
Community Support
Democracy Services
Economic Development
Parks & Green Spaces
Planning & Development
Recreation

Rubbish & Recycling
Safety

Sewerage

Stormwater

Transport

Water Supply

B Number of targets achieved
. Number of targets not achieved
[ No data available

Reasons for not meeting targets include:

.

narrowly missing statutory timeframes (e.g. 14 out of
2509 building and resource consent applications were not
processed within time)

-

some slower-than-expected response times to customer
requests due to work volumes at the time

.

other parties as well as Council contributing to the
performance against some targets (e.g. the number of
fatalities or serious injuries on Hamilton's roads).

Council regularly reviews its performance and takes action to
make improvements where necessary.

5 HAMILTON CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

WHERE TO FIND OUT MORE.

« The performance measures and targets reported against
in this section are from year one (2015/16) of our 10-Year
Plan: hamilton.govt.nz/10YearPlan

« Information on individual performance targets, how well

we achieved them in 2015/16 and what they mean for
Hamilton can be found for each service group within
pages 6 to 53 of Hamilton's 2015/16 Annual Report.

« If you want to find out more about Council's services,
policies, projects and plans, visit cur website:
hamilton.govt.nz
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ARTS & CULTURE

The Council is involved in a range of artistic and cultural endeavours that
contribute to making Hamilton a desirable place to live.

Hamilten has a network of six public libraries providing rescurces and information services. Our libraries are also increasingly
becoming community learning spaces or hubs. Waikatc Museum exhibitions and activities tell our stories from a regional and
global perspective and include visual art, social history, tangata whenua culture and science from touring exhibitions and the

museum’s own collections.

Founders Theatre offers space for live entertainment and civic functions. In March 2016, Founders Theatre was closed due to
concerns with the flying system and seismic strength of the building. We also provide seed funding for public art and liaise with

arts groups to build a vibrant arts scene.

What we do

« Libraries

« Waikato Museum
« Founders Theatre

« Arts Promotion

This includes:

« Central and suburban libraries
« Founders Theatre

« Waikato Museum

« ArtsPost

« Public art support

« Performing arts grants

How we contribute to the Hamilton Plan

Arts and culture activities primarily contribute to this
Hamilton Plan priority:

« Celebrated for our arts and culture

Effects on the community

We're involved in arts and culture to support a fun and
creative city with quality artistic and recreational experiences.

Arts and culture facilities offer health, learning, social and
leisure benefits. They are a big part of what makes our city a
great place with an attractive lifestyle, especially for families.

2015/16 Year In Review

A striking new piece of public art — the eight metre high
Tongue of the Dog sculpture outside Waikato Museum - was
a key milestone for the Council and Mesh Sculpture Trust who
gifted the sculpture to the Council in May 2016. The artwork,
by renowned artist Michael Parekowhai, was constructed over
eight months and installed on-site in April 2016 ahead of the
unveiling. It is the third sculpture to be gifted to the Council
by Mesh Sculpture Trust.

Elsewhere, a new mural by noted artist Flox was added to the
Central Library. Flox's piece — part of the Hamilton Central
City Transformation Plan’s Laneways Plan - was inspired by
the lush Paradise Gardens at Hamilton Gardens. The Central

Library was also spruced up internally and externally, with a
new branding paint scheme and a refresh of furniture and
fittings inside. The Council concluded a suite of arts and
culture policy reviews in 2015/2016 with the adoption of
the revised Arts Agenda in December 2015 and the Waikato
Museum Strategic Plan in March 2016.

The future of the 54-year-old Founders Theatre emerged

as a key issue for the Council this year, following a decision

to close the facility due to concerns about health and safety
aspects — most notably, an ageing flying system used to lower
and hoist scenic elements, based on 17 th century tall ships
technology. In May and June the Council carried out a public
consultation process which included presentation of three
options - to refurbish the theatre, to build a new theatre, or
to demolish the existing facility.

The public feedback will inform decision making on the
theatre into the 2016-2017 financial year.

HAMILTON CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
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ARTS & CULTURE

Service Performance Measures
KEY: Target achieved | Target not achieved

We're involved in these activities to support a fun and creative city that recognises the importance of art, music and culture in
our everyday lives.

You can expect: A modern and relevant library service

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results

The number of physical and online visits to the libraries 5% decrease 1% increase 6% decrease

each year. each year

Use of the library collections, both print and electronic. 5% decrease 1% increase 6% decrease
each year

The number of people attending events programmes and 4% increase 1% increase 19% increase

classes at the libraries. each year

The ratio of e-Books to print books purchased. 18% e-books 12% e-Books 11%

These results show customers visit libraries for social reasons rather than just borrowing from the collections. This result is
a reflection of the decline in usage that is happening nationally and has been occurring over the last few years. The decline
in visits correlates to the decline in use of the libraries collections - in a visit a customer borrows on average two books so
a decline in visits results in a decline in borrowing from the collections. With effective marketing we expect to see an
increase in use of electronic collections offsetting the decrease in the use of print collections, as the e-collection
continues to expand.

The methodology for collecting data on library visits has been revised to ensure consistency between 2014/15 and this
year's results. Please note that the 2014/15 result for physical visits to libraries has been corrected from the Annual
Report 2014/15.

You can expect: Waikato Museum to share and celebrate our region’s history, creativity and diversity.

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The number of visits to Museum each year. 138,067 At least 118,000 110,202
The number of children and students visiting the Museum 10,193 At least 8000 5381

for education each year.

The Museum has a changing programme of high quality exhibitions to give visitors compelling reasons to revisit. Broad-
appeal exhibitions with an educational focus such as the Da Vinci Mechanics and Body In Action were very popular with
schools and families locally and from further afield. Positive media attention during the Museum Strategic Plan consultation
period and the installation of the Tongue of the Dog sculpture on the Museum street frontage has resulted in increased
visibility and visits.

7 HAMILTON CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

Attachments Page 10



Council

29 September 2016

p Hamilton City Council

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

You can expect: Theatres to be well used

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results

The number of people attending events at 34,651 At least 50,000 65,365
Founders Theatre

The total number of hire days at Founders Theatre 132 At least 100 284

What this tells us

We measure the number of days the theatres are booked instead of the number of events to get a more accurate picture
of how much these venues are used. The length of each event varies, so too does the number of days taken to set up or
pack down an event. The term ‘hire days’ reflects the total number of days that the theatres are booked.

This target only includes Founders Theatre after Council gifted Clarence Street Theatre to a community group in June
2015 and the Meteor Theatre in January 2014. The 2015/16 targets have therefore been reduced from the 10-Year Plan
targets of at least 70,000 and at least 170 respectively.

The 2014/15 results included attendance and hire at the Clarence Street and Meteor Theatres.

Due to the closure of Founders Theatre in March 2016, the patronage target was not achieved. However, the target was
on track to be met with 34,651 people attending events up to 1 March 2016. The number of hire days target at Founders
Theatres was achieved.

Examples of events that took place pricr to Founders Theatre being closed were The Country Music Awards of NZ, 7 Days
Live Comedy Show, The Imperial Russian Ballet production of Swan Lake, The Naticnal Barbershop Convention, The
Wiggles and High School prize-giving ceremonies.

HAMILTON CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
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ARTS AND CULTURE - FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Long Term Plan Actual Long Term Plan Actual
$000 $000 $000 $000

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 13,233 14,489 1,568 1,320
Targeted rates 143 29 13,348 14,749
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes - 511 38 30
Fees and charges 2,513 1,987 1,991 1,547
Internal charges and overheads recovered - i: - 1
Interest and dividends from investments - -
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts - 133 31 66
Total operating funding 15,889 17,150 16,976 17,713
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff & suppliers 11,537 14,383 13,976 14,678
Finance costs 329 299 219 202
Internal charges and overheads applied 3,258 il - 45
Other operating funding applications 30 103 - -
Total applications of operating funding 15,154 14,786 14,195 14,925
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding 735 2,364 2,781 2,788
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure - - - -
Development and financial contributions 172 - - -
Increase/(decrease) in debt 1,879 (65) 58 (292)
Gross proceeds from the sale of assets - 575 17 9
Lump sum contributions - - - -
Other dedicated capital funding - 52 - 3
Total sources of capital funding 2,051 562 75 (280)
Application of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand - - - -
- to improve the level of service 941 444 157 22
- to replace existing assets 1,845 1,781 2,699 2,665
Increase/(decrease) in reserves - 673 - (4)
Increase/(decrease) of investments - 28 - (175)
Total application of capital funding 2,786 2,926 2,856 2,508
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding (735) (2,364) (2,781) (2,788)

Funding balance

The 2015 Long Term Plan and 2015 Actuals have been restated due to the introduction of a new activity, Recreation, and changes in

other activities.

9
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COMMUNITY SUPPORT

We work alongside the community, support services and central government
agencies to help ensure services are in place to support a strong and connected city.

We place special emphasis on connecting with the city’s ethnic communities, people with disabilities, youth and elderly, and
communities in areas of low social-economic status. Our work includes community advisory services, funding and grants.
We also own and operate a number of community centres and halls to support social and recreational activities within our city.

We provide leadership, advice, planning and resources tc enable the community to respond and recover from any significant
disaster that could affect the city. In 2014 Council sold its pensioner housing units to social housing providers.

What we do

« Community Development

« Emergency Management

This includes:
« Grants and funding advice

« Community liaison and collaboration
« Community centres and halls

« Civil defence

How we contribute to the Hamilton Plan

These activities are about building a strong, resilient and
connected community, which contributes to the achievement
of all our Hamilton Plan priorities.

Effects on the community

We're involved in community services to support a strong,
resilient and connected community.

Community Development promotes the social and cultural
well-being of Hamilton's diverse communities; enabling and
encouraging them to achieve their goals and aspirations by
providing facilities, leadership, services and support.

Through cur emergency management activity we aid the
community to develop individual and community resilience
and readiness through planning and support to ensure that
Hamilton can respond to and recover from an emergency or
disaster event.

2015/16 Year In Review

A key aspect of the Council's support for its community is
the Multi-Year Community Grant scheme, and this year
$868,000 was allocated to 27 community organisations
which are delivering services, programmes and activities
that benefit the social, cultural, arts and environmental
wellbeing of our city’s residents. Production of the
Community Profiles — available for download from

the Council's website - has given us a snapshot of our
communities. Eleven different parts of the city are covered,
with statistics included and compared to city averages.
The profiles will be crucial to organisations with programmes
and projects intended for the city and its residents.

The Council alsc voted in favour of joining the World Health
Organisation’s Global Age Friendly Network, which will see
the voice of the older people of the community incorporated
into cross-sector and collaborative projects. The application is
being led by the Age Friendly Steering Group - an established
group of experts in issues affecting older people in Hamilton

- and is supported by Hamilton City Council and the Older
Persons Advisory Panel.

Council has continued to work with multiple agencies to
restore public confidence in the safety of the CBD this year.
The Hamilton Central Safety Plan launched in September
2014 has a two-pronged approach of setting the boundaries
of acceptable public behaviour and providing help to
vulnerable people through The People’s Project.

This approach has resulted in 211 people housed and
provided with on-going support, and a 32.5 per cent
reduction in reported crime within the central city. The Plan
won the Fulton Hogan Excellence Award for Community
Engagement at the Local Government New Zealand
Excellence Awards in July 2016.

The Council also threw its support behind Sistema Waikato,

a community-based social development programme which
uses orchestral music-making as a model for changing lives
and creating good citizens. Delivered into four primary schools
in the west of the city, it is based on similar, highly successful
international programmes aimed at enhancing social
aspirations while building life skills of young children, their
whanau and communities.

Supporting communities extends to Civil Defence, an
area where Council has a vital role and aims to enhance
its preparedness. Staff from across the organisation have
participated in Civil Defence training and exercises.

HAMILTON CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 10
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COMMUNITY SUPPORT

Service Performance Measures
KEY: Target achieved | Target not achieved

We provide these services to support a strong, resilient and connected community.

You can expect: The Council to always be ready for an emergency

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results

Hamilton's overall capability for an emergency event, No data 75% 75%
assessed against the Ministry of Civil Defence criteria.

What this tells us

An informal external review of the capability of Hamilton CDEM was undertaken in 2016 by Waikato Group Civil Defence.
Due to personnel changes no self-assessment of capability was undertaken and there is no data to report. Any self-
assessment would not have been consistent with those previously carried out. A formal external assessment will be
undertaken by the Department of Prime Minister & Cabinet early in 2016/2017 and this will provide baseline data going
forward.

You can expect: Council grants to be used effectively.

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The value of services leveraged for every $1 of community $14.21 per $1 $3.00 worth of New measure in
grant funding provided. services leveraged 2015/16

for every $1

provided

Through an application process, the Council provides community assistance grants to groups and organisations to deliver
services to the community. This is @ measure of the return on investment for the Council's community grants programme.

The Single-Year Community Grant was distributed to 94 grassroots community organisations. The $292,000 was leveraged
to create $3,518,296 worth of community projects. Combined with the $868,000 distributed through the Multi-Year
Community Grant scheme, the Council distributed $1.16 million leveraged to $16,478,296 meaning $14.21 was leveraged
for every $1 contributed by the Council.

11 HAMILTON CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
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COMMUNITY SUPPORT - FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Long Term Plan Actual Long Term Plan Actual
$000 S000 $S000 $000

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 3,664 4,054 174 292
Targeted rates 39 6 2,894 -
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes 56 21 - -
Fees and charges 3,823 2,328 2,305 1,489
Internal charges and overheads recovered - 10 3 -
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts - 5 1 8
Total operating funding 7,582 6,424 5,377 1,789
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff & suppliers 6,471 6,425 5,084 4,897
Finance costs alilal (138) 13 (220)
Internal charges and overheads applied 5151 10 3 9
Other operating funding applications 6 13! - -
Total applications of operating funding 7,739 6,310 5,100 4,686
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding (157) 114 277 (2,897)
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure - - - -
Development and financial contributions - 306 - -
Increase/(decrease) in debt 48 (29) 3 (17)
Gross proceeds from the sale of assets - 260 7 4,060
Lump sum contributions - - - -
Other dedicated capital funding - 5] - (480)
Total sources of capital funding 48 542 10 3,563
Application of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand - - - -
- to improve the level of service 82 113 14 11
- to replace existing assets 319 163 273 128
Increase/{decrease) in reserves (510) 361 537
Increase/(decrease) of investments - 19 - (10)
Total application of capital funding (109) 656 287 666
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding 157 (114) (277) 2,897

Funding balance = o 5 <

The 2015 Long Term Plan and 2015 Actuals have been restated due to the introduction of a new activity, Recreation, and changes in
other activities.
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Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

DEMOCRACY SERVICES

Democracy is about providing Hamiltonians with excellent governance and
sound leadership for the city, with opportunities to be involved in decisions

the Council makes.

This activity includes Council and Committee meetings, consultation, elected members’ remuneration, and civic functions. We
also run Hamilton's local government elections. We make sure that people have easy access to the information they need to get

involved in Council’s decision making.

The Council fosters opportunities for Maaori to be involved and has relationships and service contracts with organisations to
ensure Maaori views are represented in decisions about the city. We have a number of advisory panels that provide guidance and
advice to Council on a range of matters. These include the Hamilton's Older Persons Advisory Panel and Youth Council who are

key representative partners.

What we do
« Governance and Public Affairs

« Partnership with Maaori

This includes:
Council and Committee Meetings

.

Elected members’ remuneration

-

Elections and Referenda

.

Civic events

.

.

Partnership with Maaori

.

Official information requests

3

Advisory Panels

How we contribute to the Hamilton Plan

Democracy services are about governance and decision-
making, which contributes to all of our Hamilton Plan pricrities.

Effects on the community

We're involved with democracy to provide effective, open and
responsive city governance and opportunities for people to be
part of shaping our city. Enabling democratic local decision-
making is cne of the purposes of local government. The Mayor
and Councillors have been elected by the community and
given responsibility for the overall governance of the city. This
includes setting Hamilton's long-term direction and ensuring
that the Council acts in the best interests of Hamilton residents.

With Hamilton's population becoming increasingly diverse
and the city embracing people from different ethnic groups
and cultural backgrounds, it is even more important that
residents are provided with a range of different ways to
participate in local decision-making and that they are
encouraged to have an active role in the city's development.

2015/16 Year In Review

In the democratic sphere, the Council’s public meeting agendas
and minutes are fully accessible on the Council's website and
can be downloaded directly as PDF files for organisations and
individuals with an interest in the decision making process
undertaken by the Mayor and Councillors.

The livestreaming of Council meetings continues to deliver
democracy directly to the computers and digital devices of
citizens and organisations, and video recordings of the meetings
are alsc made available through the Council’s official YouTube
channels. Consultation processes are broadly advertised
through the varicus Council communication channels and
Local Government Official Information Act requests can be
filed electronically via the Council's website. Similarly, the
Council's bylaws and plans are freely available online.

Maaori and Decision-making
Council seeks to honour the principles of partnership in
decision-making with its treaty partners.

Council has partnerships with Maaori organisations which
assist Council in ensuring Hamilton is a city where people
from different cultures work together and respect each
other's views, heritage, culture and strengths. Following

an independent review carried cut by Pricewaterhouse
Coopers in 2012/13, we continue to receive valued support
and advice from urban Maacri organisation Te Runanga o
Kirikiriroa (for strategic policy advice) and Te Ha o te Whenua
o Kirikiriroa Trust (THaWK), who represent the five hapt

for the greater Hamilton City area on issues relating to the
management of Hamilton's natural and physical resources.

Council's Maaori Relationship Advisor continues to provide
support and advice to Council on issues related to Maaori
and to help with the development of stronger relationships
with local Maaori. Hamilton City Council and Te Arataura,
the Executive of Te Whakakitenga o Waikato Incorporated
are committed to working collaboratively under a co-
governance structure to support and promote better
environmental, social, cultural and economic outcomes
within Hamilton. Council aims to continue building positive
and stronger relationships between the organisations
through collaborative projects with Waikato Tainui.
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Council p Hamilton City Council
29 September 2016

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

DEMOCRACY SERVICES

Service Performance Measures

KEY: Target achieved | Target not achieved

We provide democracy services to support effective, open and responsive city governance.

You can expect: Timely and open access to public information
Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results

The percentage of official information requests responded 99% 100% 99%
to within 20 working days.

What this tells us

All requests for information are considered official. By law the Council must reply to official information requests within
20 working days. Out of a total of 217 official information requests received during the year, 215 were completed on time.
The other two were both completed within one day after their deadline.

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The number of complaints about Council withholding 0 complaints 0 complaints 0
information upheld by the Ombudsman. upheld upheld

Attachment 1

The Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act and the Official Information Act identify certain grounds to
be “valid reasons” for withholding information from the public. During 2015/16 there were three complaints made to the
Ombudsman about the withholding of information. None of these were upheld.

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results

The percentage of Council meeting agendas circulated at 99% 100% 100%
least two working days prior to the meeting.

We are required by law to make sure that meeting agendas are made publicly available within certain timeframes. During
2015/2016 there were 89 agendas which were made publicly available. Due to technical reasons only one agenda was not
made available to the public at least two clear working days prior to the meeting; this was made available four hours later
than the deadline.
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Hamilton City Council

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

DEMOCRACY SERVICES - FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Long Term Plan Actual Long Term Plan Actual
$000 $S000 $000 $000

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 4,079 5,425 551 437
Targeted rates 43 16 4,707 4,452
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes - - -
Fees and charges 30 350 20 22
Internal charges and overheads recovered - - - -
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts - 6 - 1
Total operating funding 4,152 5,797 5,278 4,912
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff & suppliers L5335 4,561 5,251 4,879
Finance costs 10 9 = 3
Internal charges and overheads applied 2,935 - - 10
Other operating funding applications - 54 - -
Total applications of operating funding 4,480 4,624 5,251 4,892
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding (328) 1,173 27 20
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure - - -
Development and financial contributions - - - -
Increase/(decrease) in debt 570 - - -
Gross proceeds from the sale of assets - 598 1 1
Lump sum contributions - - - -
Other dedicated capital funding - 20 - -
Total sources of capital funding 570 618 1 1
Application of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand - - - -
-to improve the level of service 91 463 7 2
- to replace existing assets 156 527 21 19
Increase/{decrease) in reserves (5) 801 - -
Increase/(decrease) of investments - - - -
Total application of capital funding 242 1,791 28 21
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding 328 (1,173) (27) (20)

Funding balance
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Council b Hamilton City Council
29 September 2016

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

The Council is a key contributor to enhancing the Hamilton economy and
delivering core services and infrastructure that enable business to thrive in our city.

What we do

« Economic Initiatives

« Strategic Property Investment
« Claudelands Events Centre

« FMG Stadium Waikato

« Seddon Park

This includes:

« Major Event Sponsorship and Event Leverage
« Hamilton i-site Visitor Information Centre

« Regional Tourism Organisation funding

« Hamilton Central Business Association

« Ownership interest in Waikato Innovation Park Limited and
Hamilton Airport Economic monitoring

.

Property Investments

FMG Stadium Waikato, Seddon Park and Claudelands Events
Centre are owned and managed by H3, a business unit of
Hamilton City Council.

How we contribute to the Hamilton Plan

Qur Economic Development activities primarily contribute to
these Hamilton Plan pricrities:

« The third city economy in New Zealand

« An active, strong commercial central city with distinctive
suburban villages

« Waikato is the capital of high performance sport

Effects on the community

The Council invests in the city's prosperity to support a strong,
productive and sustainable local economy. A strong economy
fosters investment in the city, creating employment and
business opportunities and supporting the overall economic
well-being of the city. There are alsc positive social and lifestyle
benefits for Hamilton residents. A financial return on the
Council's commercial property investments also contributes
towards a strong economy and fosters investment in the city.

Claudelands, FMG Stadium Waikato, Seddon Park and major
events are important contributors to the city's economy as
major generators of business and event tourism that comes

to Hamilton. The events Council hosts bring visitors from
outside Hamilton, which has an economic benefit for the city.
Many stay in the city and buy goods and services while they
are here, which has a flow on effect for businesses. We focus
on bringing a range of international and national events to our
venues to attract people to our city and contribute to Hamilton
being a great place to live.

Significant events at Claudelands, Seddon Park and FMG
Stadium Waikato may have temporary negative environmental
and social effects. These include litter, traffic congestion,
antisocial behaviour, noise and lighting effects for surrounding
residents. The Council manages these effects in compliance
with the District Plan, resource consents and effective asset
management planning. These include having effective event
management plans in place which includes plans tc monitor
alcohol, traffic and security at and around the event.

2015/16 Year In Review

Major events are identified as crucial to economic
development, and the Council’s event facilities attracted
events and people to the city. The H3 year began with the
announcement of 10-year sponsorship deal which saw
Waikato Stadium become FMG Stadium Waikato. And 11
months later, the renamed stadium hosted the historic
match between the Gallagher Chiefs and the touring
Wales rugby team.

Fans attending the match were alsc able to watch the
action on a second big screen installed at the venue. FMG
Stadium also hosted ITM Cup and Super Rugby fixtures,
while a few blocks away Seddon Park boosted its reputation
as one of the country’s top cricket venues, hosting matches
featuring New Zealand, Sri Lanka and Pakistan and Australia.
Claudelands, the third of the city’s international venue trio,
hosted The Waikato Home and Garden Show, Fight for Life,
Pasifika by Nature, Women'’s Lifestyle Expo, Ice Age Live
and ANZ Netball Champicnship games for Waikato Bay of
Plenty Magic.

As well as public ticketed events there were also over 507
conferences, meetings, functions and exhibitions at Council’s
venues which were attended by 138,000 people. Many of
these bring pecple from outside Hamilton and the Waikato
region. In 2015, Claudelands Events Centre was awarded the
Excellence in Innovation award for its Business Systems and
Processes Transformation Project.

Council continued to co-fund (alongside six city and
district councils) Hamilton & Waikato Tourism, the official
Regional Tourism Organisation (RTO) for the region. From
an economic development perspective, Hamilton's value
proposition is underpinned by a strong and vibrant tourism
organisation.

The Council also holds 50 per cent of the shares in Waikato
Regional Airport Limited, which operates Hamilton Airport.
The objective of this company is to operate a successful
commercial business, providing safe, appropriate and
efficient services for the transportation of people and freight
in and out of the airport of Hamilton.
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Council b Hamilton City Council
29 September 2016

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa
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Attachment 1

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Service Performance Measures
KEY: Target achieved | Target not achieved

We invest in our city to support a strong, preductive and sustainable local economy.

You can expect: Our venues to be well used

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The total number of hire days across the Claudelands facilities 486 At least 500 574

each year.

The number of people attending events at Claudelands 170,034 At least 180,000 224,223

each year.

The total number of hire days across the stadium facilities 627 At least 410 618

each year.

The number of people attending events at the stadiums 158,457 At least 200,000 211488

each year.

What this tells us

We measure the number of days a venue is hired instead of the number of events to get a more accurate picture of how
much our venues are used. Venues have multiple spaces available for hire and can host a number of different events on
any particular day. The length of each event varies, so too does the number of days taken to set up or pack down an event.
The term ‘hire days’ therefore reflects the total number of days that each hireable space is booked at a particular venue.

Exhibitions across NZ are reducing in size and frequency and our region reflected this trend in 2015/16. Claudelands saw
reduced exhibition activity and this impacted on “The number of people attending events” measure. At year end, actual
attendance was 170,034 which is below the target of 180,000. FMG Stadium Waikato did not host an All Blacks game,
semi-final or final Super Rugby match in 2015/16 and this is reflected in the overall patronage result of 158,457 which was
below target of 200,000.

By comparison, FMG Stadium Waikato and Seddon Park achieved their hire day targets which indicate a changing mix in
event business and strong naticnal conference and meeting activity.

You can expect: A financial return on the Council’'s commercial property investments

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The financial return on the Council's commercial property 8.6% 7% 8%
investments.

Keeping properties tenanted is the key to ensuring we are achieving good financial returns on our commercial property
investments.

The target reflects the current market we are operating in, and has been benchmarked against other commercial
investment portfolios. The result shows that the Council has achieved better-than-expected investment returns this year.
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Council p Hamilton City Council
29 September 2016

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

You can expect: In-depth economic monitoring

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
Quarterly and annual economic analysis of Hamilton's Achieved Quarterly and New measure
economy to be produced. annual monitoring in 2015/16

reports produced

This analysis provides informaticn data and economic intelligence that informs us about the economic health of the city
and enhances the Council's business decision-making.

You can expect: Growth in the Hamilton and Waikato region visitor economy

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The percentage of growth in the visitor economy of the No data 2.8% growth
Hamilton and Waikatoc Region annually

The Council provides funding to the Waikato Regiconal Tourism Organisation (RTO), along with six other Waikato councils.
Hamilten City Council is the major funder. The core purpose of the RTO is to promote the Hamilton and Waikato region as
an appealing destination to international and domestic visitors in crder to generate the economic benefits for the region
and its communities.

The aspiration for the Hamilton and Waikato region is to expand the visitor economy from $1.08B in 2013 to $1.58 in 2025,
representing growth of 40 per cent or 2.8% per annum. Additional funding has been provided through the seven councils’
2015-25 10-Year Plans to help achieve this.

This is an annual expenditure figure provided by Ministry of Business, Innovation and Employment (MBIE) and isn't available
quarterly. The results for year end March 2016 will be available in November 2016. MBIE have recast growth figures so
Hamilton and Waikatc Tourism have decreased their target to 2.7%.
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Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT - FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Long Term Plan

2015 2015 2016 2016

Actual

Long Term

Actual

$000 $000 $000 $000
Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 15,847 12,490 998 1,222
Targeted rates 169 295 11,062 11,293
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes - 113 - 6
Fees and charges 9,285 10,314 9,057 8,921
Internal charges and overheads recovered - 49 132 164
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts 414 729 550 593
Total operating funding 25,715 23,990 21,799 22,199
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff & suppliers 14,886 20,333 15,028 14,604
Finance costs 7,279 6,739 5,143 4,951
Internal charges and overheads applied 2,240 49 132 271
Other operating funding applications 470 40 - -
Total applications of operating funding 24,875 27,161 20,303 19,826
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding 840 (3,171) 1,496 2,373
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure - - - -
Development and financial contributions 193 - - -
Increase/(decrease) in debt 1,191 (3,516) 1,476 (7,387)
Gross proceeds from the sale of assets 11 18,012 15 1,966
Lump sum contributions - - - -
Other dedicated capital funding - 393 - (20)
Total sources of capital funding 1,395 14,889 1,491 (5,441)
Application of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand - - - -
- to improve the level of service 355 355 169 29
- to replace existing assets 901 1,145 2,818 2,501
Increase/(decrease) in reserves - 8,689 - (1,170)
Increase/{decrease) of investments 979 1,529 - (4,428)
Total application of capital funding 2,235 11,718 2,987 (3,068)
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding (840) 3171 (1,496) (2,373)

Funding balance
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b Hamilton City Council

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

PARKS & GREEN SPACES

One of the great features of Hamilton is its huge range of parks, trees, beautiful
gardens and street plantings. Hamilton Gardens is an internationally award-
winning destination, well-loved by local residents as well as national and

international visitors.

QOur city has a network of natural areas alongside the Waikato River, and a range of gullies and ecological restoration areas such

as the Waiwhakareke Natural Heritage Park.

We also provide burial and crematorium services in park like settings where people can remember loved ones. The parks and
open spaces, with their complementing complimentary walkways and amenities managed by the Council contribute to people’s

sense of pride in how Hamilton locoks and feels.

What we do

« Hamilton Gardens

« Community Parks

« Gullies and native plantings
« Streetscapes

« Sports Parks

« Cemeteries and Crematorium

This includes:

« Neighbourhood and destination parks
« Hamilton Gardens

« Playgrounds

Public Toilets

.

« Sports Parks

.

River and lake walkways

-

Gullies and native plantings

« Natural heritage parks

.

Street plantings and trees

« Cemeteries and crematorium

How we contribute to the Hamilton Plan

Qur parks and green spaces primarily contribute to these
Hamilton Plan priorities:

« An urban garden
« Best garden in the world
« Waikato is the capital of high performance sport

Effects on the community

We provide parks and open spaces to protect, restore and
enhance Hamilton's beautiful green landscape and to offer
community spaces that everyone can enjoy.

Qur parks and open spaces, with their complementary
walkways and amenities managed by the Council, provide
spaces for leisure and recreation, beautify our city and
preserve its green network. They also provide spaces that
protect the city’s heritage and contribute to people’s pride
in how Hamilton looks and feels.

QOur cemeteries and crematorium provide burial and
cremation services in park-like settings where people can
remember loved ones and celebrate our city's heritage.
Potential negative effects on the community from this
activity, such as leachate from burial grounds and cremator
unit discharges are managed through soil and water testing
and resource consent conditions and regular maintenance.

2015/16 Year In Review

It's been another very successful year for the award-winning
Hamilton Gardens. The Hamilton Gardens Development
Project has received contributions from a number of partners
and the development is well on track. Other notable
achievements for the gardens were the announcement of
jeweller and entrepreneur Sir Michael Hill as the patron of the
Hamilton Gardens Development Trust, the launch of a bespoke
range of food products, and the inaugural Katherine Mansfield
Garden Party (a 1930s-themed event held in the Rogers

Rose Garden).

The Playgrounds of the Future Plan won a NZ Recreation
Association Award in November, a significant achievement for
the Council's Parks and Open Spaces unit — which opened
the city’s fifth destination playground, at Minogue Park, in
August. Another playground initiative saw the Council partner
with the Ministry of Education to develop a new playground
at Deanwell School, with construction firm Downer also
contributing financially.

In May 2016 Council resolved to add a 5.13 hectare piece of
land bordering the Waiwhakareke Natural Heritage Park, to the
park. The land was originally designated for a smart subdivision
with an eco-housing focus, but had not been developed into

a residential area. The land has now been re-classified as
reserve land.

The Council alsc adopted the Hamilton Cemeteries Plan,
which guides operation, development, protection and public
use of Hamilton's cemeteries and crematorium. It sets priorities
for the next 10 years and describes how we will sustainably
develop Hamilton Park Cemetery at Newstead to meet current
and future burial and cremation needs. Lastly, the Victoria on
the River project began and, when completed, the site will be a
park-like environment with views across Waikato River.
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b Hamilton City Council

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

PARKS & GREEN SPACES

Service Performance Measures
KEY: Target achieved | Target not achieved

We provide these activities to contribute to a green city with parks, trees, beautiful gardens and street plantings and places for
leisure, sports and recreation.

You can expect: The Council to protect, restore and enhance Hamilton's beautiful green landscape

Measure

The quantity of public green space in the city.

2015/16 Results

9 hectares
gained

2015/16 Targets

No net loss
(1126ha at
30 June 2015)

2014/15 Results

New measure

The number of street trees in the city.

514 more trees

Annual growth
in the number
of street trees
{Approx 30,000
street trees at
June 2015)

New measure

natural areas each year.

a greener city.

The number of native plants planted in Council-owned

63,581 plants
planted

At least 25,000
each year

One of the pricrities in the Hamilton Plan is for the city to be an urban garden. In 2015/16 we increased the area of public
green space in the city and added over 500 more street trees to our existing 30,000 street trees. We also planted over
60,000 native plants, including more than 20,000 at Waiwhakareke Natural Heritage Park in June, to help make Hamilton

85,153

You can expect: Destination playgrounds to be completed as planned

Measure

What this tells us

playgrounds across the city.

Delivery of the destination playgrounds programme.

2015/16 Results
Achieved

2015/16 Targets

1 new destination
playground in
2015/16

The Council has been implementing the Playgrounds of the Future Plan that sets out a programme for development of new

The Minogue Park Destination Playground was opened in August 2015. While it is the fifth destination playground in
Hamilten, this playground was the first of nine to be developed as part of the first 10 years of the Playgrounds Plan.

2014/15 Results

4 destination
playgrounds at
June 2015

You can expect: The Council to invest in sports fields

Measure

What this tells us

The number of hours of play provided per week by the
Council's sports fields during winter.

2015/16 Results
836 hours

2015/16 Targets
836 hours

The Council has retained its sports fields training capacity during 2015/16. Budget provision in 2015/16 has not yet
increased this capacity due to the necessary lead-in time to plan, develop and establish sports facilities. It is anticipated
that this result will increase in future as new facilities are made available.

Maintenance and renewal of existing sports fields ensure levels of service continue to be met.

2014/15 Results
836
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29 September 2016 Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

PARKS & GREEN SPACES

You can expect: The Hamilton Gardens programme to be completed as planned

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results

Delivery of the four-year Hamilton Gardens development On track Hamilton Gardens  First themed

programme. development garden (Tudor
programme Garden) opened
completed by February 2015
2017/18

The estimated number of visitors to the Hamilton Gardens 402,500 Annual increase 371,325

each year. (9% increase) in the number of
visitors

What this tells us

Hamilton Gardens is our biggest tourist attraction and an iconic destination in cur city. In 2015/16 visitor numbers to the
enclosed area of the Gardens increased by nine per cent compared with 2014/15. As part of the four-year development
programme the first themed garden, the Tudor Garden, was cpened in February 2015. The remaining themed gardens will
be completed in 2017 and 2018 along with the destination playground, new toilet block, carpark extension, Information
Centre upgrade and new jetty.
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g Hamilton City Council

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

PARKS AND GREEN SPACES - FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Long Term Plan

Actual

Long Term Plan

Actual

$000 S000 $000 $000
Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 11,847 19,833 1,769 1,502
Targeted rates 126 614 15,690 13,877
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes - 263 7 5
Fees and charges 970 2,373 2,166 2,712
Internal charges and overheads recovered - 781 816 -
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts - 286 393 204
Total operating funding 12,943 24,150 20,841 18,300
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff & suppliers 9,236 16,698 15,724 16,721
Finance costs 1,600 1,441 1,563 1,074
Internal charges and overheads applied 1,463 781 816 182
Other operating funding applications 98 31 - -
Total applications of operating funding 12,397 18,951 18,103 17,977
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding 546 5,199 2,738 323
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure - 481 - -
Development and financial contributions 493 3,020 1,550 4,135
Increase/(decrease) in debt 1,970 (793) 447 (2,240)
Gross proceeds from the sale of assets - 1,096 18 13
Lump sum contributions - - - -
Other dedicated capital funding 926 1,563 1,937
Total sources of capital funding 2,463 4,730 3,578 3,845
Application of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand 440 2,254 3,040 2,970
-to improve the level of service 1,010 2,988 657 1,636
- to replace existing assets 15559 2,906 2,274 2,616
Increase/{decrease) in reserves - 1,442 345 (1;7:12)
Increase/(decrease) of investments - 339 - (1,342)
Total application of capital funding 3,009 9,929 6,316 4,168
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding (546) (5,199) (2,738) (323)

Funding balance

The 2015 Long Term Plan and 2015 Actuals have been restated due to the introduction of a new activity, Recreation, and changes in

other activities.
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Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT

Good planning supports sustainable growth and development. It protects
Hamilton's natural and built environments and helps maintain quality of life for

our city’'s residents.

We prepare the District Plan and cther policies that guide the future development of our city. We are in the final stages of our District
Plan review, the key document that defines how and where the city grows and how its natural and physical resources are managed.

We provide planning information and process applications for land use and subdivision consents and work with developers
to ensure the city is well designed, safe and successful. Our work also includes monitoring and investigating compliance with
resource consent conditions, District Plan, the Prostitution Bylaw and the Gambling Policy.

We issue building consents, inspect buildings under construction and public buildings, and provide advice to help ensure
Hamilton's buildings are safe, healthy and durable. We also maintain property information and answer property enquiries.

What we do
« City Planning
« Planning Guidance & Compliance

« Building Control

This includes:

« District Plan

« Resource consents and monitoring
« Building consents and inspections
« Building warrants of fitness

« Property information and advice

« Urban Design and Heritage Panels

How we contribute to the Hamilton Plan

These activities primarily contribute to these Hamilton

Plan pricrities:

« Hamilton is the third largest city economy in New Zealand

« An active, strong commercial central city and distinctive
suburban villages

« Provide access to affordable housing

Effects on the community

How land is used has a major effect on the lock and feel of
our city and the city environment. City planning supports
the growth of the city while ensuring Hamilton’s unique
environment is protected. Planning guidance activities also
protect Hamilton's natural and physical resources and help
maintain quality of life for Hamilton residents.

Regulating the building activities in the city enables safe and
sustainable housing and commercial solutions in response to
Hamilton's growing population.

HAMILTON CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

2015/16 Year In Review

One of the major pieces of work for the Council’s Planning
Guidance Unit was the granting of consents for Tainui Group
Holdings' logistics and inland port development at Ruakura.

Covering some 60 hectares as the first stage, the entire 480
hectare site will also feature the equivalent to more than 52
rugby fields of open space, a light commercial knowledge
zone and residential housing. This development will
contribute towards economic development through the
creation of jobs and industry in the area. Nearby, a Chedworth
Properties subdivision consent granted (150 lots) will provides
medium density housing in close proximity to the Ruakura
employment area. For the City Planning team, the majority of
the appeals to the Proposed District Plan have been settled.
This means the plan will become operative and subsequently
simplify the planning process for development around the city.

The Ruakura Variation is a proposed addition to the Council's
Proposed District Plan and will enable further development
in the Ruakura area, including housing, businesses, parks,
educational facilities and Tainui Group Holdings' inland port
and freight hub.

The Council also completed its Heritage Plan, a strategic
document to assist and incentivise the use and retention of

the city’s history by helping to reduce the burden for owners

of listed heritage buildings and to ensure adequate long-term
management of the city’s heritage building stock. The Council’s
Building Inspectors have also been equipped with modern
digital technology which gives them the ability to capture “real
time” information and improved reporting capability while
conducting site inspections. Digitisation of all historical building
consents was completed, and those consents are now available
through the Council’s records management system.

The Council’s Eco Design service notched up 10 years free
independent advice, on how to best use energy, water and
materials on home improvement, new building and rencvation
projects. This service was highlighted at the national Eco Design
Advisor workshop held in April 2016.
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PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT

Service Performance Measures

KEY: Target achieved | Target not achieved

We're involved in planning and development to protect Hamilton's unique environment and residents’ quality of life as our
City grows.

You can expect: An adequate supply of land for housing

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results

The number of years of residential land supply zoned and 7 years At least 5 years 8 years
ready for development in greenfield areas.

What this tells us

The Council zones and provides the strategic infrastructure for new areas in the city. While developers provide the
infrastructure needed for their development, the Council needs to make sure that there are the right networks to join up
with. At 30 June 2016 we have nearly seven years of residential-zoned land that has strategic infrastructure in place and
therefore ready for developers to complete their developments and bring them to market for new housing.

In December 2014 the Council measured the number of years of residential land supply zoned and ready for development in
greenfield areas. This methodclogy was replicated in June 2016 to produce a comparable figure to that of December 2014.

You can expect: Planning and building consents to be processed on time
Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results

The percentage of non-notified resource consent 99.2% 100% 99.8%
applications processed within statutory timeframes.

The percentage of building consents processed within 99.6% 100% 99.6%
statutory timeframes.

The Council has legal timeframes that applications must be processed within.

In 2015/16 708 resource consent applications were received by the Council which could be processed to completion
without public or limited notification. Of these 708 applications, six were not completed within the legal timeframe due to
factors such as negotiations with consultants over consent conditions.

In Building Control, 1801 building consent applications were received of which eight were not processed within the legal
timeframe. These resulted from resourcing difficulties at periods of higher-than-usual demand.
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b Hamilton City Council

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT - FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Long Term Plan Actual Long Term Plan Actual
$000 $000 $000 $000

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 3,865 4,253 449 1,111
Targeted rates 41 5 3,831 1,814
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes - - -
Fees and charges 1,119 1,809 7,436 9,816
Internal charges and overheads recovered - 18 - 21
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts - 3 - 12
Total operating funding 5,025 6,088 11,716 12,774
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff & suppliers 4,325 5,646 11,383 12,479
Finance costs 7 3 11 6
Internal charges and overheads applied 1,006 18 - 11
Other operating funding applications - 18 - -
Total applications of operating funding 5,338 5,685 11,394 12,496
Surplus/({deficit) of operating funding (313) 403 322 278
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure - - - -
Development and financial contributions - - - -
Increase/(decrease) in debt 540 - - -
Gross proceeds from the sale of assets - 205 11 7
Lump sum contributions - - - -
Other dedicated capital funding 7 - 2
Total sources of capital funding 540 212 11 9
Application of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand - - - -
- to improve the level of service 86 159 100 98
- to replace existing assets 148 181 233 189
Increase/(decrease) in reserves (7) 275 - -
Increase/(decrease) of investments - - - -
Total application of capital funding 227 615 333 287
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding 313 (403) (322) (278)

Funding balance

The 2015 Long Term Plan and 2015 Actuals have been restated due to the introduction of a new activity, Recreation, and changes in

other activities.
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b Hamilton City Council

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

RECREATION

We provide a range of quality recreational facilities that are widely accessible and

suitable for all ages and abilities.

The Council operates two swimming facilities - Waterworld and Gallagher Aquatic Centre. Waterworld is the largest multi-pool
facility in the Waikato region and hosts both local and national competitions. Gallagher Aquatic Centre is a smaller community

pool well suited to recreational and leisure swimmers. Council also provides grants to partnership pools including Fairfield High
School, University of Waikate, Te Rapa Primary School and Hillcrest Normal School, to increase available pool space and create

local swimming facilities for communities to enjoy.

We also own the Te Rapa Sportsdrome, an indoor recreational facility that supports local sports and community use.

Hamilton Zoo is home to more than 600 exctic and native New Zealand animals spread over 21 hectares. The unique
experience at Hamilton Zoo allows residents and visitors to enjoy wildlife in a natural setting and encourages support for
wildlife conservation and sustainability of natural rescurces. The Zoo offers education programmes for schools, participates in
international breeding programmes for endangered species and breeds native animals for introduction to the wild.

What we do

« Pools

« Hamilton Zoo

« Indoor Recreation

This includes:

« Waterworld

« Gallagher Aquatic Centre
« Partner pool funding

« Hamilton Zoo

« Te Rapa Sportsdrome

How we contribute to the Hamilton Plan
Qur recreation activities primarily contribute to these
Hamilton Plan priorities:

« Waikato is the capital of high performance sport
« An urban garden (Hamilton Zoo)

Effects on the community
We're involved in arts and recreation to support a fun and
creative city with quality artistic and recreational experiences.

Arts and recreation facilities offer health, learning, and social
and leisure benefits. They are a big part of what makes our
city a great place with an attractive lifestyle, especially for
families.

2015/16 Year In Review

An exciting new partnership between the Council and the
Ministry of Education confirmed this year will lead to the
construction of a new indoor recreation centre in Rototuna.
The new four-court facility will be built at Rototuna Junior
High School by July 2017, with Council contributing $4.5
million to the build and will be available for community use
during and outside school hours.

QOur swimming pools — Waterworld and Gallagher Aquatic
Centre-drew over 590,000 visitors, exceeding cur annual
target by more than 10,000. Council also approved a multi-

million dollar renewal and upgrade of Waterworld, which will
be completed in 2016/2017 and will improve the customer
experience and enhance Waterworld's ability to host major
swimming events. A feature of Waterworld's year was the
success of the inaugural Paws in the Pool event, which gave
dogs a chance to paddle in the ocutdoor Lido pool.

Hamilton Zoo notched up a range of highlights, including

a record number of visitors, and the birth of a baby female
chimpanzee, male southern white rhinc and spider monkey,
and the successful launch of the Zoofari programme - a
collaboration with The Warehouse - which makes zoo visits
a reality for children from decile 1 schools. Hamilton Zoo
also opened a new Siamang Gibbon exhibit, and joined a
growing list of international destinations photographed by
Google Trekker.
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RECREATION

Service Performance Measures
KEY: Target achieved | Target not achieved

We are involved in recreation facilities to provide opportunities for fun, leisure and learning.

You can expect: Hamilton Zoo to provide unique visitor and learning experiences landscape

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The number of visits to Hamilton Zoo each year. 129,448 At least 120,000 128,519
The number of students participating in Zoo education 8009 At least 8,000 7.890

programmes each year.

We aim to maintain our Zoo visitor numbers through marketing and providing new reasons to visit, such as animal births
and new arrivals or improved exhibits. Hamilton Zoo remains a popular visitor attraction.

The Zoo provides education programmes that are subsidised by a Learning Experiences Outside The Classroom grant
from the Ministry of Education. The Zoo's programmes focus on social science, including the conservation of wildlife and
environmental responsibility but compete for school visits with other local exhibitions and attractions.

You can expect: Council pools to provide opportunities for recreation, learning and leisure

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results

The number of visits to Waterworld and Gallagher Aquatic 590,216 At least 580,000 640,244
Centre each year

The number of students participating in aquatic education 38,307 At least 28,000 49,860
classes at Council pools.

The number of people participating in Learn to Swim classes 62,646 At least 40,000 44,251
at Council pools.

Qur pools offer curriculum based water safety and aquatic education programmes to local schools that don't have their
own pools. We also offer swimming lessons for people of all ages and abilities to improve their swimming technique and
overall skill level. These programmes and classes remain very popular and contribute to the community’s safety, recreation
and well-being.
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29 September 2016

g Hamilton City Council

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

RECREATION - FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Long Term Plan Actual Long Term Plan Actual
2015 2016 2016
$000 S000 $S000 $000
Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 8,333 7,513 603 1,290
Targeted rates 87 - 5,123 10,486
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes - 318 276 302
Fees and charges 4,985 4,417 4,452 4,371
Internal charges and overheads recovered - 2 - 2
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts - 30 29 39
Total operating funding 13,405 12,282 10,483 16,490
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff & suppliers 10,115 9,961 9,217 14,329
Finance costs 392 315 298 286
Internal charges and overheads applied 2,163 2 - 158
Other operating funding applications 12 38 - -
Total applications of operating funding 12,682 10,316 9,515 14,773
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding 723 1,966 968 1,717
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure - - -
Development and financial contributions 120 - - -
Increase/(decrease) in debt 1,552 (66) 84 (419)
Gross proceeds from the sale of assets - 575 10 6
Lump sum contributions - - - -
Other dedicated capital funding - 52 - 1
Total sources of capital funding 1,672 561 94 (412)
Application of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand - - - -
-to improve the level of service - 764 64 15
- to replace existing assets 2,395 1,063 998 1,541
Increase/{decrease) in reserves - 673 - -
Increase/(decrease) of investments - 28 - (251)
Total application of capital funding 2,395 2,528 1,062 1,305
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding (723) (1,967) (968) (1,717)

Funding balance

The 2015 Long Term Plan and 2015 Actuals have been restated due to the introduction of a new activity, Recreation, and changes in

other activities.
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Hamilton City Council

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

RUBBISH & RECYCLING

We are responsible for the collection, safe disposal and minimisation of household
rubbish and recycling. We provide kerbside rubbish and recycling collections for
residential properties (excluding inner city apartments).

Qur rubbish is disposed of in an out-of-district landfill as the Council no longer operates a landfill locally. We alsc manage
closed landfill sites at Rototuna, Cobham Drive, Willoughby and Horotiu to prevent adverse effects on the environment and

public health.

The Council has a legal responsibility to reduce the amount of rubbish geing inte landfills and to encourage more recycling
and reuse. Our resource recovery centres include the Lincoln Street Refuse Transfer Station, Recycling Centre and the Hamilton
QOrganic Centre. The operation of these three facilities is contracted to privately owned businesses.

What we do

« Rubbish and Recycling Collection
« Waste Minimisation

« Landfill Site Management

This includes:

« Kerbside rubbish & recycling collections
« Resource recovery centres

« Closed landfill management

« Waste minimisation initiatives

How we contribute to the Hamilton Plan
Rubbish and recycling primarily contributes to this Hamilton
Plan pricrity:

« Providing outstanding infrastructure

Effects on the community

We provide these services to protect people’s health and our
environment by minimising the production of rubbish and
promoting recycling and reuse.

The Council aims to reduce the amount of rubbish
produced by residential properties by investigating options
to divert recyclable materials from black bags and cther
rubbish; continuing education programmes; providing
grants for promotion of waste minimisation and investigating
alternative containers.

By reducing our resource consumption and reusing
products, we can minimise the amount we need to recycle
or dispose of and ultimately the rubbish we generate.

Landfilling is the most common method of disposing of
rubbish from Hamilton, as it is elsewhere in New Zealand.
Dealing with rubbish this way is problematic because of
the need to find suitable land and the potential adverse
environmental effects to soil, air and waterways.

The best way to reduce the need for new landfill sites is to
decrease the amount of waste that we need to dispose of,
by reducing the volume of waste we produce, purchasing
low waste products, or diverting waste for re-use, recycling
or recovery.

2015/16 Year In Review

Hamilton residents send 24,000 tonnes of material to landfill
every year. As the city grows, so does the volume of waste
produced by its residents. In June, the Council launched its
Fight the Landfill campaign which aims to divert waste from
landfills and encourage recycling and reuse opticns. The

Fight the Landfill campaign saw the creation of a range of
characters to educate the community about items that can be
recycled, and therefore avoid being sent to landfill.

Hamilton became the first council in New Zealand to officially
support a plastic bag recycling programme which has seen
specially designed collection bins placed in a range of local
retail outlets. We also began reviewing options for future
rubbish and recycling services, increased our focus on illegal
dumping occurring in some areas of the city - issuing of
infringement notices under the Litter Act — and developed

of a waste licencing scheme to provide data to assist with
delivering on our waste management and minimisation

plan objectives.
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RUBBISH & RECYCLING

Service Performance Measures
KEY: Target achieved | Target not achieved
We're involved in planning and development to protect Hamilton's unique environment and residents’ quality of life as our

City grows.

You can expect: Reliable rubbish and recycling collections

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results

The number of weeks with more than 20 complaints about 1 0 0
uncollected kerbside household rubbish and recycling.

The percentage of customer complaints about uncollected 96% 95% 99%
kerbside rubbish and recycling resclved within 24 hours.

We missed our first target due to a large number of excess bags (above the two allowed) not collected during one week
in January, resulting in increased customer complaints being received.

Making sure cur rubbish and recycling collection services are reliable is important. A reliable service stops rubbish
becoming a health risk and keeps the streets tidy. For most of the time for most of Hamilton we are achieving this.

You can expect: The Council to promote and encourage recycling and reuse
Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results

The percentage of waste recovered for recycling through the 28% At least 30% 29%
kerbside collection.

‘Fight the Landfill' programme was launched in late 2015/16. The programme aims to encourage wider participation in the
current kerbside recycling collection service.

Further significant improvements in the percentage of rubbish recovered for recycling are not anticipated to be observed
until proposed improvements are implemented, including any future changes to expand the level of service of the kerbside
recycling collection.
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b Hamilton City Council

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

RUBBISH AND RECYCLING - FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Long Term Plan Actual Long Term Plan Actual
$000 $S000 $000 $000

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 5,023 5,955 683 972
Targeted rates 54 40 5,872 10,310
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes - - 410 543
Fees and charges 328 401 355 344
Internal charges and overheads recovered - - - -
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts - 508 14 20
Total operating funding 5,405 6,904 7,334 12,189
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff & suppliers 4,508 5,368 6,854 10,736
Finance costs 168 734 130 770
Internal charges and overheads applied 733 - - 161
Other operating funding applications 10 12 - -
Total applications of operating funding 5419 6,114 6,984 11,667
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding (14) 790 350 522
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure - - - -
Development and financial contributions - - - -
Increase/(decrease) in debt 1,365 (72) 37 (185)
Gross proceeds from the sale of assets - 132 7 5
Lump sum contributions - - - -
Other dedicated capital funding - 4 - -
Total sources of capital funding 1,365 64 44 (180)
Application of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand - - - -
-to improve the level of service 491 354 214 185
- to replace existing assets 1,079 624 180 268
Increase/{decrease) in reserves (219) (156) - -
Increase/(decrease) of investments - 32 - (111)
Total application of capital funding 1,351 854 394 342
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding 14 (790) (350) (522)

Funding balance -
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b Hamilton City Council

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

SAFETY

The Council plays a large a role in enhancing public safety and security in a range
of areas aimed at enabling growth and making Hamilton a more desirable place

to live.

We ensure dogs are registered and controlled and provide education to schools, businesses and community groups about safety
around dogs and investigation of offences under the Dog Control Act 1996.

We monitor and enforce standards for businesses selling food and liquer, respond te health nuisances and deal with
environmental pollution issues such as noise control and contaminated sites.

Qur work also includes partnering with others, such as the Police, on crime prevention initiatives. Some of the services we
provide are the City Safety Patrols, CCTV cameras in the central city and a graffiti removal service to proactively investigate and

remove tagging from publically visible sites and Council assets.

What we do

« Animal Education and Control
« Environmental Health

« Liquor licensing

« Public Safety

This includes:
« Dog registration
« Investigation of offences under Dog Control Act

« Dog safety education

.

Food and liquor licensing

Public health nuisances

.

« Noise control

« Contaminated site management and hazardous substances
« Graffiti prevention and removal

« City Safe patrols

« CCTV cameras

« Liquor Licensing

How we contribute to the Hamilton Plan

Qur safety activities primarily contribute to this Hamilton
Plan pricrity:

« An active, strong commercial central city with distinctive
suburban villages.

Effects on the community

We provide these services to contribute to a safe community
by minimising risks to public health and working with others
to keep our city safe (eg. 30% decrease in reported crime
within central Hamilton).

Animal control minimises the danger and nuisance from
dogs and contributes to a city where people can enjoy the
benefits of dog ownership.

Environmental health services protect public health and
safety and our city safe services respond to public concerns
about safety and aim to improve people’s perceptions of
safety, particularly in Hamilton’s central city.

2015/16 Year In Review

Making the city a safer place for residents and visitors was an

important focus for the Council in 2015-2016. Animal Control
staff were moved to a new roster system which has extended
the service's coverage and ensures seven day a week staffing.

A technical innovation saw the introduction of new
transferable cages for Animal Control vehicles: the cages are
transferable from chassis to chassis which means there are
long term savings in vehicle refits. On 1 March 2016 the new
Food Act 2014 commenced, introducing new requirements
in relation to compliance monitoring and initiating a transition
pericd for food businesses to comply with the Act. Half

of all Hamilton businesses in the Food Safety sector have
transitioned across to the new Food Control Plans.

City Safe Operations completed the upgrade of the central
city CCTV camera. The Transport Centre and suburban
Ambassador Patrols — undertaken by the City Safe staff -
were reviewed and as a result, the Ambassador Patrols are
now being carried out by the higher qualified Safety Officers.
This allowed more hours of delivery targeted at issues and
hotspots identified though the new mobile data/incident
collection system.

Council has worked with multiple agencies to restore public
confidence in the safety of the CBD this year. The Hamilton
Central Safety Plan continued to deliver a two-pronged
approach of setting the boundaries of acceptable public
behaviour and providing help to vulnerable pecple through
The Pecple’s Project. Encouragingly, NZ Police’s crime
statistics to December showed a 30 per cent drop in reported
crime in the central city. The Council's Tagbusters mural
programme also saw colour and creativity added to a range
of city assets, with a particularly striking example adorning the
Forest Lake Rd water reservoir.

Nearly 6,000 graffiti jobs were recorded (a reduction from
last year) of which 97 per cent were removed within two days.

33 HAMILTON CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

Attachments

Page 36



Council p Hamilton City Council
29 September 2016

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

SAFETY

Service Performance Measures
KEY: Target achieved | Target not achieved

We provide these services to contribute to a safe community by minimising risks to public health and working with others to help
keep our city safe.

You can expect: The Council to work with others to improve perceptions of safety in the central city

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The percentage of central city users surveyed who feel very 79% Improvementson  63% (September
safe or reasonably safe in the central city during the daytime. the previous result  2014)

The Council is working with a range of partners to improve people’s perceptions of safety in the central city during the
daytime. This result is a significant improvement and shows that people feel safer in the city centre now than they did
nearly two years ago.

You can expect: A reliable response to requests for graffiti, excessive noise and dog control
Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results

The percentage of graffiti removal jobs completed within two  98% 95% 98%
working days.

The percentage of complaints about excessive noise 97% 95% 96%
responded to within 30 minutes.

The percentage of urgent requests for dog control 100% 100% 99.7%
responded to within 60 minutes

The Council is providing a prompt service to remove tagging from public spaces. Our focus is to remove tagging quickly
to make sure that it has minimal impact on the lock of cur city and to discourage repeat offending.

Excessive noise is defined as noise that disturbs scmeone’s peace and comfort. The service has provided a prompt
response to complaints about excessive noise.

Urgent requests for dog control involve threats to public safety; this includes attacks on people or dogs and other animals
and where people are intimidated by a dog’s behaviour. Council's responses to urgent dog control incidents met our
promise for speed every time.
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SAFETY

You can expect: Premises selling food and liquor to be regularly monitored

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results

The percentage of high risk premises selling foed inspected 99% 100% 96%
at least once each year for compliance with the current

food safety requirements (excluding those premises

subject to the new Food Act 2014 regime)

The percentage of high risk premises selling liquor 100% 100% 100%
monitored annually

What this tells us

We proactively monitor all high risk premises selling food and liquor through routine inspections and audits. Premises with
a higher risk are inspected more regularly. Under the new Food Act, which commenced on 1 March 2016, high risk food
businesses are required to operate under a registered food control plan that identifies food safety risks and what they will
do to manage those risks. Food businesses will transition over to this plan over the next three years. In the meantime we
continue to inspect and monitor all high risk premises that have not yet transitioned to the plan.

By inspecting high risk food premises the Council is helping to ensure that food providers comply with their legal
obligations and that food is safe and suitable for human consumption. Of 247 high risk food premises requiring inspection,
245 were inspected and the remaining two premises rescheduled early in 2016/17 due to owner absence at the time of
the original inspection.

The Council also protects public health by monitoring and enforcing alcohol licence conditions. By inspecting all high
risk premises the Council helps to ensure that the sale, supply and consumption of alcohol is undertaken safely and
responsibly and minimising the harm from the abuse of alcohol.
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Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

SAFETY - FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Long Term Plan Actual Long Term Plan Actual
$000 $S000 $000 $000

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 1,259 1,224 311 443
Targeted rates 13 9 2,695 2,419
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes 106 113 - 9
Fees and charges 7,279 8,557 2,136 2,267
Internal charges and overheads recovered - 62 - -
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts - 71 13 53
Total operating funding 8,657 10,036 5,155 5,191
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff & suppliers 7,048 9,148 4,925 4,975
Finance costs 46 44 28 27
Internal charges and overheads applied 1,622 62 - 4
Other operating funding applications 3 32 - -
Total applications of operating funding 8,719 9,286 4,953 5,006
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding (62) 750 202 185
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure - - - -
Development and financial contributions - - - -
Increase/(decrease) in debt 139 (19) 7 (36)
Gross proceeds from the sale of assets - 352 4 3
Lump sum contributions - - - -
Other dedicated capital funding - 12 - -
Total sources of capital funding 139 345 11 (33)
Application of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand - - - -
-to improve the level of service 28 314 29 7
- to replace existing assets 48 310 184 167
Increase/{decrease) in reserves 1 463 - -
Increase/(decrease) of investments - 8 - (22)
Total application of capital funding 77 1,095 213 152
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding 62 (750) (202) (185)

Funding balance = . 5 &

The 2015 Long Term Plan and 2015 Actuals have been restated due to the introduction of a new activity, Recreation, and changes in
other activities.
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b Hamilton City Council

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

SEWERAGE

Sewage drains from showers, baths, sinks, washing machines, dishwashers and
toilets. Liquid waste from commercial and industrial premises is also treated

through the sewerage system.

In Hamilton, sewage is transported through a network of pipes and pump stations to the Sewage Treatment Plant plant at
Pukete, where it is treated to a high standard before being discharged into the Waikato River. Solid waste is removed as part of

the treatment process and then composted off-site for reuse.

The sewerage network services approximately 50,000 households and 4800 commercial and industrial premises.

What we do
« Sewage collection

« Sewage treatment and disposal

This includes:

« Sewerage Treatment Plant

« Pump stations and pipes

How we contribute to the Hamilton Plan

QOur sewerage service primarily contributes to this Hamilton
Plan pricrity:

« Providing outstanding infrastructure

Effects on the community

We're in the sewage business to provide our city with
services that are reliable and protect people’s health and
our waterways. Sewage services have potential negative
environmental effects such as cdour, noise and discharges
into waterways.

The Council manages these effects through compliance
with its resource consent conditions, maintaining cdour
control devices at treatment plants and upgrading or
replacing infrastructure as necessary.

2015/16 Year In Review

The Council's investment in core infrastructure included

its sewerage system, with the commencement of an $18.3
million upgrade of the Sewerage Treatment Plant in Pukete.
A highly successful campaign — Bin It, Don't Flush It - to
raise awareness of the impact of unsuitable items going into
the city’s sewerage system was launched in late 2015, and
featured prominently in local media. The Trade Waste and
Wastewater Bylaw — which outlines what can and cannot
be discharged into the city's sewerage system — was also
reviewed and revised.

The revised bylaw provides clarity on everyone's
responsibilities in using the sewerage system, and provides
clear direction to trade waste consent holders and tankered-
waste operators on how they will need to manage any
discharges to the system.

It's a vital tool the Council will use to protect the
environment, public health and cur sewage infrastructure.
The bylaw was developed through the 2015/16, and is
proposed Council to take effect from 15 August 2016.

In July 2015 the Council agreed in principle to support the
formation of a Council-Controlled Organisation (CCO) to
own and manage sewerage and water infrastructure. This
would be in conjunction with Waikato and Waipa District
Councils if further approved by the Council and subject to
public consultation. The three Councils have also approved
in June and July 2016 a Record of Agreement that cutlines
how the CCO would be structured and governed should cne
be formed.
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Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

SEWERAGE

Service Performance Measures

KEY: Target achieved | Target not achieved

We're in the sewerage business to provide our city with reliable services that protect people’s health and our waterways.

You can expect: The sewerage system to be adequately designed and maintained

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The number of dry weather sewerage overflows from the 0.1 No more than 5 New measure in
Council’s sewerage system, per 1000 sewerage connections overflows per 2015/16

to the system. 1000 connections

What this tells us

This measure provides information on whether the sewerage system is designed to an adequate standard and is being
maintained in a way that minimises harm to the community. Overflows are when sewage escapes the sewerage system
and enters the environment. In 2015/16 there were five dry weather overflows in a system servicing 54,000 connections.

You can expect: A quality service

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The total number of complaints received by the Council 104 No more than 25  New measure in
about any of the following, per 1000 connections to its complaints per 2015/16
sewerage system: 1000 connections

« Sewerage odour, sewerage system faults or blockages
and the Council's response to any of these issues.

The number of complaints provides an indication of the quality of the service provided. This measure also provides data
that highlights problems requiring attention, such as the need for maintenance, renewals, upgrades or new infrastructure.
In 2015/16 a total of 563 complaints were received for a range of issues.

You can expect: The sewerage system tc be managed in a way that does not unduly impact on the environment

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The Council's compliance with its resource consents for 0 No more than 1 0
discharge from its sewerage system: abatement notice

a) The number of abatement notices.

b) The number of infringement notices. 0 0 infringement 0
notices

¢) The number of enforcement orders. 0 0 enforcement 0
orders

d) The number of convictions 0 0 convictions 0

This measure indicates how well we are managing the environmental impacts of the city’s sewerage system. It only includes
formal actions taken, as they represent incidents that may have the greatest adverse impact on the environment. In 2015/16
there were no such formal actions taken.

The Council has a resource consent that sets quality standards for the water we discharge from the Sewage Treatment
Plant into the Waikato River. Bathing water standards are measured by the presence of E. coli which is removed from
sewage by exposing it to ultraviolet (UV) light.
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Council b Hamilton City Council

29 September 2016

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

SEWERAGE

You can expect: A timely response if there is a problem with the sewerage system
Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The median response times for the following when the

Council attends to sewerage overflows resulting from a
blockage or other fault in the Council's sewerage system:

a) Attendance time: From the time that the Council 36 minutes No more than New measure in
receives notification to the time that service personnel 60 minutes 2015/16
reach the site.

b) Resolution time: From the time that the Council 1.2 hours No more than New measure in
receives notification to the time that service personnel 5 hours 2015/16

confirm resolution of the blockage or other fault.

This measure shows how quickly we respond when there is a problem with the sewerage system, and how quickly the
problem is resolved. Results show that in 2015/16 the Council was able to respond quickly and able to resolve issues
quickly, providing a better-than-agreed level of service to reduce the inconvenience to the community.
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Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

SEWERAGE - FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Long Term Plan Actual Long Term Plan Actual
$000 S000 $000 $000

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 16,681 16,262 2,110 1,086
Targeted rates 178 817 19,027 16,029
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes - - - -
Fees and charges 3,826 4,101 4,285 4,056
Internal charges and overheads recovered - 780 1,016 633
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts 427 477 355 415
Total operating funding 21,112 22,437 26,793 22,219
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff & suppliers 8,351 12,011 12,356 12,182
Finance costs 4,285 3,936 3,457 3,312
Internal charges and overheads applied 1,596 780 1,016 49
Other operating funding applications 266 27 - -
Total applications of operating funding 14,498 16,754 16,829 15,543
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding 6,614 5,683 9,964 6,676
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure - - - -
Development and financial contributions 2,405 4,999 2,877 7,518
Increase/(decrease) in debt (148) (1,925) 992 (4,966)
Gross proceeds from the sale of assets - 952 13 8
Lump sum contributions - - - -
Other dedicated capital funding - 214 50 332
Total sources of capital funding 2,257 4,240 3,932 2,892
Application of capital funding
Capital expenditure
-to meet additional demand 926 196 5,454 2,883
- to improve the level of service 1,801 2,606 1,123 1,895
- to replace existing assets 5,926 6,067 7,319 7,648
Increase/{decrease) in reserves 218 217 - 119
Increase/(decrease) of investments - 837 - (2,977)
Total application of capital funding 8,871 9,923 13,896 9,568
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding (6,614) (5,683) (9,964) (6,676)

Funding balance = o 5 <
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b Hamilton City Council

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

STORMWATER

Stormwater is rainwater that flows from surfaces like roofs, footpaths and roads.
The stormwater system consists of pipes, channels, treatment devices and open
watercourses, which release water into the city's streams, lakes and the Waikato

River.

Large amounts of uncontrolled stormwater can lead to flooding and damage to property and can lead to potential health

hazards, so it is important that it is managed.

The Council manages stormwater through encouraging stormwater re-use, and ground scakage. Where reuse or soakage
is not possible we transfer stormwater away from properties and provide treatment to ensure people and the environment

is protected.

What we do

« Stormwater Network

This includes:

« Pipes, channels, treatment devices and open watercourses
such as streams, rivers and drains.

« Ponds and wetlands

How we contribute to the Hamilton Plan

Stormwater primarily contributes to this Hamilton Plan priority:

« Providing outstanding infrastructure

Effects on the community

We're in the stormwater business to protect people and
properties from flocding and to minimise the pollution of
waterways.

Council is responsible for identifying flooding hazards

within the city. Our piped stormwater network is designed
and managed to prevent stormwater flocding on private
residential property for a one-in- two year event. Stormwater
from larger storm events is managed via overland flowpaths
which may be located on private property.

Stormwater may contain contaminants, such as sediments,
oils, greases, rubbish and metal/organic materials that have
washed off roads or other surfaces. These are managed
through network design and resource consents which
include regular street sweeping, monitoring stormwater
quality and investigating the source of contaminants.

2015/16 Year In Review

The adoption of the Council's Stormwater Bylaw in
September 2015 sees the introduction of what will be an
effective tool to protect urban water quality and address a
significant challenge for the Council. Adopticn of the
bylaw followed a public consultation process and staff
reports which noted that Council needs new methods to
mitigate the risk of substances being discharged intc its
stormwater network.

Like the Trade Waste and Wastewater Bylaw, the Stormwater
Bylaw provides guidance on what can and can't enter the
stormwater system. The Council is also actively developing
Integrated Catchment Management Plans - covering

water, sewage and stormwater - which outline the
infrastructure needed to open up parts of the city for
development and growth.
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STORMWATER

Service Performance Measures
KEY: Target achieved | Target not achieved

You can expect: The stormwater system to be adequately designed and managed
Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results

a) The number of flooding events that occur within the city 0 No more than 1 0
flooding event

b) For each flooding event, the number of habitable floors 0 No more than 1 0
affected per 1000 properties connected to the Council's habitable floor
stormwater system affected per 1000

properties

What this tells us

Itis important that our stormwater system is reliable and effective in providing an appropriate level of protection from
flooding events. It needs to be designed to an adequate standard and operated in a way that minimises harm to the
community. Throughout 2015/16 the system was effective in managing stormwater as there were no flooding events within
the city.

A flooding event means an overflow of stormwater from the Council’s stormwater system that enters a habitable floor. A
habitable floor refers to a floor of a building (including a basement) but does not include ancillary structures such as stand-
alone garden sheds or garages.

You can expect: The stormwater system to be managed in a way that does not unduly impact on the environment

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The Council's compliance with its resource consents for 0 No more than 1 0
discharge from its stormwater system: abatement notice

a) The number of abatement notices.

b) The number of infringement notices. 0 0 infringement 0
notices

¢) The number of enforcement orders. 0 0 enforcement 0
orders

d) The number of convictions 0 0 convictions 0

The Council has a resource consent that requires us to avoid or minimise pollution in the city’s waterways. We monitor
the quality of stormwater discharge by taking samples from catchment areas across the city.

This measure indicates that the Council is employing its processes adequately to manage the environmental impacts of
the stormwater system; there were no occasions when the Council breached its resource consent conditions.
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STORMWATER

You can expect: A timely response if there is a flooding event

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The median response time to attend a floeding event, 0 No more than 0
measured from the time that the Council receives 60 minutes

notification to the time that service personnel reach the site.

This measure shows how quickly we respond when there is a problem the stormwater system. It measures situations where
water from the stormwater system enters a habitable floor of a building. However, there were no flooding events in 2015/16
that required us to respond.

You can expect: A quality service

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The number of complaints received by the Council about 0 No more than 10 New measure
the performance of the stormwater system, per 1000 complaints per in 2015/16
properties connected to the Council’'s stormwater system. 1000 properties

The number of complaints received gives us an indication of the quality of service we are providing. It also gives us
information about issues with the stormwater system and tells us how satisfied customers are with the way we respond
to requests to fix problems. There were no complaints which indicate that the stormwater system was able to manage
the stormwater volumes in 2015/16.
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Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

STORMWATER - FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Long Term Plan Actual Long Term Plan Actual
m 2015 2016 2016

$000 S000 $000 $000
Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 7,289 3,191 480 241
Targeted rates 78 2 3,941 4,301
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes - 258 - -
Fees and charges 26 57 32 175
Internal charges and overheads recovered - - - -
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts - 43 249 49
Total operating funding 7,393 3,551 4,702 4,766
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff & suppliers 1,337 1,739 2,426 2,711
Finance costs 440 372 462 420
Internal charges and overheads applied 316 - - -
Other operating funding applications 27 5 - -
Total applications of operating funding 2,120 2,116 2,888 3,131
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding 5,273 1,435 1,814 1,635
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure - - - -
Development and financial contributions 609 1,027 502 -
Increase/(decrease) in debt (3,400) (193) 133 (663)
Gross proceeds from the sale of assets - 59 3 2
Lump sum contributions - - - -
Other dedicated capital funding - 77 50 108
Total sources of capital funding (2,791) 970 688 (553)
Application of capital funding
Capital expenditure
-to meet additional demand 878 1,005 1,757 1,550
-to improve the level of service 833 855 7 4
- to replace existing assets 1,039 515 738 637
Increase/{decrease) in reserves (268) (54) - (711)
Increase/(decrease) of investments - 84 - (398)
Total application of capital funding 2,482 2,405 2,502 1,082
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding (5,273) (1,435) (1,814) (1,635)

Funding balance = 5 5 <
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Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

TRANSPORT

We provide and manage a safe and efficient transport network for Hamilton which
integrates freight, private vehicles, buses, walking and cycling.

We alsoc manage on-street parking, clearways, and Council-owned car parks. Our services include cperation and maintenance of
the existing network and planning for future development and growth.

We work with the community to promote different modes of travel and influence travel behaviour to manage the city's transport

demand and get the most out of our investment in the network.

The Government, through the New Zealand Transport Agency (NZTA), partners with Council by operating the State Highways
that run through Hamilton and co-investing with Council in transport infrastructure and services. The bus service is provided and
managed by the Waikato Regional Council through a partnership with the city.

What we do

« Transport Network

« Parking Management

This includes:
« Roads, footpaths, cycleways and bridges

« Traffic lights, street lights, signs, pedestrian crossings, street
furniture, and road safety

« The Transport Centre
« Bus stops and shelters

« Car parks and parking meters

How we contribute to the Hamilton Plan

Qur transport services primarily contribute to these Hamilton
Plan pricrities:

« Providing outstanding infrastructure
« The third city economy in New Zealand

+ An active, strong commercial central city with distinctive
suburban villages

« An urban garden

Effects on the community

We're in the transportation business to make Hamilton easy
to get around by providing a safe, reliable and sustainable
transport system that is accessible to everyone.

The city's Access Hamilton Transport Strategy focuses on

a balance in the areas of transport planning, infrastructure
provision, transport demand management and the ability to
respond to a changing environment.

Negative effects of transportation include air pollution and

2015/16 Year In Review

An award-winning and industry-leading roading network
joint venture between Hamilton City Council and its partner
company Downer was one of the highlights of the year for
the Council's City Infrastructure group. Downer, representing
the Hamilton City Transport Alliance was one of the award
winners at the Hirepool Civil Contractors NZ awards, with
the collaboration seen as delivering benefits to the city. The
Council also launched its new Right Track programme, which
aims to improve the behaviour of drivers with a history of
traffic infringements and poor driving.

Council also committed funding to a section of Resolution
Drive which will see a further collaboration with the New
Zealand Transport Agency to connect the local Council-
managed road to the Waikato Expressway. The design of the
Western Rail Trail was a crucial piece of work and the second
milestone project in the city’s Biking Plan.

The programme of installing pedestrian crossings with traffic
lights near schools and areas where pedestrians can be at
greater risk continued, with these crossings now installed near
almost all of the city’s primary schools.

noise from traffic, potential loss of natural heritage areas and
roads creating barriers to the community. These are mitigated
and managed in a variety of ways, for example road surfacing
designed to reduce noise where there are high traffic flows;
providing alternative transport methods that have less
environmental impacts; consulting with tangata whenua and
other affected parties prior to construction and infrastructure
to make the road network more accessible such as refuge
islands, traffic signals and underpasses.
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Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

TRANSPORT

Service Performance Measures

KEY: Target achieved | Target not achieved

We're in the transport business to make Hamilton easy to get around by providing a safe, reliable and sustainable transport
system that is accessible to everyone.

You can expect: A transport network that is safe to use

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results

The change from the previous financial year in the number 1 more death or 2 fewer deaths 3 fewer deaths

of fatalities and serious injuries on Hamilton's local road serious injury or serious injuries  or serious injuries

network. than the previous than the previcus  than the previous
year (ie 28) - year (ie 25) year (ie 27)

interim result as
at 30 June 2016

The 2015/16 data set is not complete. The data is collected externally and the complete data for 2015/16 will not be
available until the end of September 2016. It is extremely important that our road network is safe for everyone to use.
Road crashes involve many factors, in many of which Council has a role to play, but not ultimate control over.

The number of deaths and sericus injuries is rising naticnally and that has been reflected in Hamilton City's results. We
continue to focus our efforts on activities which aim to reduce the deaths and serious injuries on our network including
minor traffic improvements (e.g. intersection upgrades, pedestrian crossing upgrades) along with education programmes
in schools and with the wider community.

You can expect: The Council to invest in making biking safer in the envirocnment

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The change from the previous financial year in the number 2 more deaths Decreasing trend 4 deaths and

of deaths and sericus injuries involving cyclists on Hamilton's  and serious serious injuries
local road network. injuries involving involving cyclists

cyclists (ie 6) -
interim result as
at 30 June 2016

What this tells us

The 2015/16 data set is not complete. The data is collected externally and the complete data for 2015/16 will not be
available until the end of September 2016. In Hamilton, census data between 2006 and 2013 shows an 11% increase in
people riding to work.

We are working hard to provide improved facilities for people on bikes and have been working closely with NZTA to
provide off-road facilities. Road safety education has also been provided to both motorists and people using bikes to
increase awareness of each other needs.
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You can expect: Roads to be kept in good condition

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The average quality of ride on Hamilton's sealed local road 88% At least 86% 88%
network, measured by smooth travel exposure. Smooth Travel

Exposure

What this tells us

The roughness of roads can impact both on the safety and comfort of road users, as well as on vehicle operating and
maintenance costs. Smooth Travel Exposure (STE) is a system of measurement used to assess the quality of the ride on
our city’s roads. The higher the STE percentage, the smocther the network.

This result tells us that the maintenance of our existing roads and investment in new roads is improving the condition of
the network.

You can expect: Roads to be adequately maintained

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The percentage of Hamilton's sealed local road network that =~ 4% 5% New measure
is resurfaced each year. in 2015/16

What this tells us

This measure provides information on how well we are maintaining our road network and meeting the targets for road
resurfacing set in our Asset Management Plan.

In 2015/16 it was identified through the latest analysis of our asset condition rating data that more asphalt surfacing
was required. Because asphalt costs five times more than chipseal less chipseal surfacing was undertaken to ensure our
surfacing programme stayed within budget. This has resulted in a reduced percentage of our sealed local road network
being resurfaced this year.

You can expect: Footpaths to be kept in good condition

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The percentage of footpaths within Hamilton that fall within ~ 98% 97% New measure
the service standard for the condition of footpaths that is set in 2015/16

out in the Council's Asset Management Plan.

What this tells us

Footpaths are an important part of a city’s infrastructure. Well-maintained footpaths are important for pedestrians’
convenience and safety. This result shows a small improvement on 2014/15 suggesting that more footpaths are being
maintained to our service standard. The service standard set out in our Asset Management Plan is less than five faults per
100m of footpath. Faults are generally tripping hazards.

You can expect: A timely response to requests for service

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The percentage of customer service requests relating to 89% 95% New measure
roads and footpaths responded to within five working days. in 2015/16

In 2015/16 there were 3471 requests out of 3084 responded to within five working days. In late Spring/early Winter there
were a large number of call-outs relating to heavy rain and flooding issues which resulted in some other call-outs being
given a lesser priority.
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TRANSPORT

You can expect: Predictable vehicle travel times for peak time trips

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The percentage of extra time taken for vehicles to travel key  27% No more than New measurement
routes in the city during peak travel times. 50% methodology

applied in 2015/16

Off-peak journey times on key routes are not greatly increased when undertaken in peak-time traffic. For example a 10
minute journey can be expected to take only three minutes longer. This is being achieved by continuously monitor the
city’s main routes, upgrading the traffic signals communication system and proactively monitoring the signals to improve
traffic flows. We also work to minimise disruption to the roads at peak times through better scheduling of road works and
carefully planned management of events.

You can expect: Parking in the central city to be managed effectively

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The percentage of on-street car parks in central city high 64% No more than 53% (between
demand parking areas that are full between 10am - 4pm 85% 8am - 5pm)

on weekdays.

Attachment 1

We are managing parking to ensure that there are enough parks available for shoppers and visitors to the central city,
without leaving too many empty parks. This is especially important in areas of high demand: from London Street to
Hood Street, and Anglesea Street to the River.
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Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

TRANSPORT- FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Long Term Plan Actual Long Term Plan Actual

2015 2015 2016 2016

$000 S000 $000 $000
Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 26,312 22,467 1,790 1,837
Targeted rates 5,280 5,020 21,477 21,664
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes 3,669 3,585 4,380 4,130
Fees and charges 4,783 4,286 5,160 6,668
Internal charges and overheads recovered - 131 - 3
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts 4,019 4,050 3,760 3,733
Total operating funding 44,063 39,539 36,567 38,035
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff & suppliers 12,907 16,442 19,364 21,302
Finance costs 7,527 6,887 8,080 7,761
Internal charges and overheads applied 3,311 131 - 14
Other operating funding applications 466 352 - -
Total applications of operating funding 24,211 23,812 27,444 29,077
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding 19,852 15,727 9,123 8,958
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure 10,156 5,232 4,147 5,508
Development and financial contributions 2,317 3,517 2,656 7,960
Increase/(decrease) in debt (8,532) (3,376) 2,320 (11,612)
Gross proceeds from the sale of assets - 2,495 26 18
Lump sum contributions - - - -
Other dedicated capital funding - 191 - 1,194
Total sources of capital funding 3,941 8,059 9,149 3,068
Application of capital funding
Capital expenditure
-to meet additional demand 1,147 3,153 6,344 5,758
- to improve the level of service 13,085 8,046 2,037 4,512
- to replace existing assets 10,276 9,856 10,235 8,748
Increase/{decrease) in reserves (715) 1,263 (344) (31)
Increase/(decrease) of investments - 1,468 - {6,961)
Total application of capital funding 23,793 23,786 18,272 12,026
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding (19,852) (15,727) (9,123) (8,958)

Funding balance
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Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

WATER SUPPLY

The Council treats, distributes and manages Hamilton's water supply, which all
comes from one place — the Waikato River.

We are allowed to draw a set limit of water from the Waikato River into the Water Treatment Plant, where it is treated to provide a

high standard of drinking water for residents and businesses.

The water supply network services around 50,000 households and 5500 commercial and industrial premises. Water from the
city also supplies approximately 1600 properties in the Waikato area and 100 properties in the Waipa area.

The Council is legally required to ensure water is used sustainably. There are a number of ways we do this, including water
restrictions when demand is high, such as in summer, encouraging residents to conserve water as much as possible because it
is a precious resource and investment in infrastructure to enhance monitoring and better manage water usage.

What we do
« Water treatment and storage

« Water distribution

This includes:
« Water Treatment Plant

« Water storage reservoirs
« Pump stations, hydrants and pipelines
« Commercial water meters

« Water conservation initiatives

How we contribute to the Hamilton Plan
Water supply primarily contributes to this Hamilton Plan priority:

« Providing outstanding infrastructure

Effects on the community

We're involved in the water business to provide Hamiltonians
with a high quality, reliable and sustainable water supply
Having a sufficient amount of good quality drinking water

is essential for a healthy community and our economy. The
Council also has to ensure that long-term, there will be an
adequate supply of water for the city.

As Hamilton's population continues to grow, issues of water
availability and conservation are becoming more important.
To help manage the demand for water, particularly during
the summer months, the Council works with Waikato and
Waipa District Councils to promote smart water use. For
more information, including water alerts, restrictions and
water saving tips, go tc smartwater.org.nz

There are a number of parties with consent to extract

water from the Waikato River. Extracting an excess volume
of water from the river can impact the amount of water
available from users downstream and the ecology and
health of the river. Waikato Regional Council is responsible
for managing the amount of water taken from the Waikato
River and the Council has a resource consent with a set limit
that it can take per day.

Water management practices, which alsc include the
management of stormwater and wastewater, can vary

from Maaori cultural beliefs and practices. For example the
mixing of water from different catchments, discharge of
treated wastewater into the Waikato River and water supply
practices. The Council takes intc account Maaori values
regarding the extraction and discharge water in all its water
management practices and consults with local iwi as part of
the resource consent process.

2015/16 Year In Review

Water was an important theme for the Council’s City
Infrastructure group throughout the year — particularly during
summer, when water restrictions were introduced. As staff
eyed the long-term impact of climate change and periods of
low river level, an innovative Low River Contingency Barge
was designed, built and tested. The barge enables to city to
maintain water supply during times of low river level.

The barge project earned the crganisation a Local
Government New Zealand Awards nomination. The city's
calculated water loss reduced from 16 per cent to 13 per cent,
thanks in large to an increased focus on the issue, increased
monitoring of water usage within the network and information
on water leaks supplied to the Council by residents.

To support city growth and ensure residents continue to
receive a high quality water supply continued investment in
water infrastructure included - In February, a $10.5 million
contract was awarded for the construction of the Rototuna
reservoir. This followed a previous $7.7 million contract
award for the construction of the Rototuna bulk main, a 3.5
kilometre twin pipeline which will connect the city’s water
network to the new reservoir. The project is a vital new asset
for the city's water system, and significantly improves fire
fighting capacity. The Council also initiated a $28.7 million
upgrade of the Water Treatment Plant, in Melville.

In July 2015 the Council agreed in principle to support the
formation of a Council-Controlled Organisation (CCO) to
own and manage water and sewerage infrastructure. This
would be in conjunction with Waikato and Waipa District
Councils if further approved by the Council and subject to
public consultation. The three Councils have also approved
in June and July 2016 a Record of Agreement that outlines
how the CCO would be structured and governed should
one be formed.
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WATER SUPPLY

Service Performance Measures

KEY: Target achieved | Target not achieved

We're in the business to provide Hamiltonian's with a safe, high quality, reliable and sustainable supply.

You can expect: Water that is safe to drink
Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results

The extent to which the Council's water supply
complies with:

e) Part 4 of the drinking-water standards (bacteria Achieved Achieved Achieved
compliance criteria). compliance compliance compliance

f) Part 5 of the drinking-water standards (protozoal Achieved Achieved Achieved
compliance criteria). compliance compliance compliance

This measure informs ratepayers and consumers on whether the water supplied is safe to drink. The New Zealand Drinking
Water Standards, monitored by the Ministry of Health, provide a recognised standard for public safety. Council’s drinking
water complies with those standards for both the bacteria and protozoa criteria.

You can expect: A timely response if there is a problem with the water supply
Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results

The median response times for the following when the
Council attends a call-out in response to a fault or unplanned
interruption to its water reticulation system.

a) Attendance for urgent call-outs - from the time that the 45 minutes No more than New measure
Council receives notification to the time that service 60 minutes for 2015/16
personnel reach the site.

b) Resolution of urgent call-outs - from the time that the 2.5 hours No more than New measure
Council receives notification to the time that service 5 hours for 2015/16
personnel confirm resolution of the fault or interruption.

c) Attendance for non-urgent call-outs - from the time 6.6 days No more than New measure
that the Council receives nctification to the time that 5days for 2015/16
service personnel reach the site.

d) Resolution of non-urgent call-cuts - from the time the 7 days No more than New measure
Council receives notification to the time that service 10 days for 2015/16
personnel confirm resolution of the fault or interruption.

Households and businesses rely heavily on water, so it's important that we provide a timely response when something
goes wrong. An urgent call-out is one when no water is being delivered. A non-urgent call-out is where there is still a
supply of water. In 2015/16 the Council has responded well to urgent call-outs, resolving problems quickly.

Anincrease in reported water leaks in the first quarter of 2016 resulted in an increased work load. Pricrity was directed to
urgent work, with additional resources contracted to manage non-urgent call outs.
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WATER SUPPLY

You can expect: The water network to be well maintained

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results

The percentage of real water loss from the Council's 13% (March No more than Not available.

networked reticulation system. 2015 to March 16% Latest result: 16%
2016) in 2012/13

Water lost from leaking pipes is a key indicator of the performance of our water network. High levels of water loss can
show that the network is in poor condition or that it is being operated inefficiently. The 2015/16 result shows that we are
losing less water than expected which shows we are improving the condition of the water supply network and retaining
more treated water for drinking.

You can expect: A quality service

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The total number of complaints received by the Council 28 No more than 5 New measure
about any of the following, per 1000 connections to the complaints per for 2015/16
Council’s networked reticulation system: 1000 connections

« Drinking water clarity, taste, odour, pressure or flow,
continuity of supply; or Council’s response to any of
these issues.

What this tells us

Attachment 1

The number of complaints provides an indication of the quality of the service provided. In 2015/16 a total of 149 complaints
were received. This result indicates that the Council is providing a water supply service which is more to the satisfaction
of consumers.

You can expect: The water supply to be managed so demand does not outstrip the available capacity

Measure 2015/16 Results 2015/16 Targets 2014/15 Results
The average consumption of drinking water per Hamilton 378 litres No more than 376 litres per
resident per day. 400 litres per resident, per day

resident, per day

The demand for water is not exceeding supply or the capacity of the water supply system.

By using less water than the capacity of the system, fewer chemicals and less energy are needed to treat and transfer the
water, maximising the value of the existing infrastructure and costing less to maintain and operate.

Please note that in calculating this performance result, the number of Hamilton residents is based on the resident numbers
published from the 2013 census.
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WATER SUPPLY - FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Long Term Actual Long Term Plan Actual
$000 S000 $000 $000

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 8,397 8,924 1,778 671
Targeted rates 8,911 7,805 23,311 23,476
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes - - - -
Fees and charges 294 392 173 419
Internal charges and overheads recovered - - - 518
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts - 311 278 336
Total operating funding 17,602 17,432 25,540 25,420
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff & suppliers 6,334 7,231 8,698 6,790
Finance costs 3,207 2,951 3,243 3,121
Internal charges and overheads applied 1,275 - - 428
Other operating funding applications 199 187 - -
Total applications of operating funding 11,015 10,369 11,941 10,339
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding 6,587 7,063 13,599 15,081
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure - - - -
Development and financial contributions 1,968 3,201 1,915 4,626
Increase/{decrease) in debt 9,456 (1,443) 931 (4,657)
Gross proceeds from the sale of assets - 373 7 5
Lump sum contributions - - - -
Other dedicated capital funding - 338 50 422
Total sources of capital funding 11,424 2,469 2,903 396
Application of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand 5,771 971 9,393 11,810
-to improve the level of service 7,723 4,180 2,125 3,702
- to replace existing assets 4,462 3,919 4,984 4,756
Increase/{decrease) in reserves 55 (166) - (2,000)
Increase/(decrease) of investments - 628 - (2,791)
Total application of capital funding 18,011 9.532 16,502 15,477
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding (6,587) {7,063) {13,599) (15,081)

Funding balance
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o

DELIVERING THE

FINANCIAL STRATEGY

2015/16 has been another excellent year for Hamilton City Council - the city's
finances are in great shape, the Council has performed better than expected
against its financial strategy and a number of significant projects in the Hamilton

Plan have been delivered.

QOur financial strategy is the key to the Council achieving

its goals of managing growth and living within its means.

In 2015/16 the Council met its target for balancing the books
for the third consecutive year and delivered an adjusted
operating surplus of nearly $13 million (refer page 56).

The Council’s overall debt is $348 million, lower than the
projected target of $407 million. As a result the Council's
debt-to-revenue ration is now 170% - well below the 205%
target we had set.

Total Overall Debt
M
600

500

400

300

200

100

o.n.
88808080’8
N | N[N |N [N NN | NN

|

2004 m—
2005 E—

2006 |——

2007 —
2008 IE———

| 2009 E—

Balancing the Books
M
30

15

10

: |l
ol N |

e | I
-10
-15

-20
-25

2004
| 2005
2006
(2007
2008
2000
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
[2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
| 2025

M History M 2015/16 Result M Projected

Debt to Revenue Ratio
250%

200%
M History W 2015/16 Result M Projected i
£ 150%
=
prr
o
x 100%
o
SUAI I
Rates
SBBBBSE:ﬁ‘:EﬁﬁuﬂﬂRNNNEH
9.0% ocooccccccoocooooooooo
NIN[N|N|[N[N|[N|[N[N[N[N[N|N|N|N|N|N|N[N|[N[N| N
8.0%
7.0% M History M 2015/16Result M Projected
5 6.0%
ES.O%
Q 4.0% »
©
& 3.0%
2.0%
1.0% I
0.0%
3|3|3‘B|3|8|2|:’2‘2’3‘5‘2‘2‘E‘ﬂ‘ﬁt&"ﬁ‘ﬁ‘ﬁlﬂ
o|oc|e|o|o|e|c|8|o|o|o|2|8|c|B|B|o|o|o|o|o|o
NN | N (NN NN N NN NN NN NN N[N NN NN
M History M Targeted rate M 2015/16 Result M Projected
HAMILTON CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 54
Attachments Page 57

Item 5

Attachment 1



Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

Council g Hamilton City Council
29 September 2016

ltem 5

Attachment 1

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Council Group
Actual Budget Actual Actual Actual
[ Note | 2016 2016 2015 2016 2015
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Revenue
Rates 3 147,294 146,244 140,375 147,214 140,250
Subsidies and grants 4 10,533 9,257 10,895 10,308 10,895
Development and financial contributions 24,239 9,500 16,069 24,034 16,069
Fees and charges 5 42,807 42,056 41,372 52,889 47,970
Interest revenue 6 2,369 2,000 2,319 2,397 2,534
Other revenue 7 40,932 11,381 26,451 41,004 26,513
Total revenue 268,174 220,438 237,481 277,846 244,231
Expenses
Personnel costs 9 64,042 66,546 65,943 66,142 67,731
Depreciation and amortisation 22 60,416 58,269 57,278 61,501 58,105
Finance costs 6 21,713 22,647 23,591 22,907 24,596
Other expenses 10 79,357 63,744 65,151 81,746 67,653
Total expenses 225,528 211,206 211,963 232,296 218,085
Operating surplus/{deficit) 42,646 9,232 25,518 45,550 26,146
Gains 8 3,893 - 3,022 4,943 5,020
Losses 8 (35,498) - (20,124) (36,406) (20,141)
Share of associates' surplus/{deficit) 24 - - - 168 85
Surplus/(deficit) before tax 11,041 9,232 8,416 14,255 11,110
Income tax expense 11 - - - 146 343
Surplus/(deficit) after tax 11,041 9,232 8,416 14,109 10,767
Other comprehensive revenue and expense
ftems that could be reclassified to surplus/{deficit)
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive revenue and expense 29 (106) - - (106) -
ftems that will not be reclassified to surplus/{deficit)
Gain on property, plant and equipment revaluations 29 271,509 18,261 36,098 275,498 36,098
Income tax on other comprehensive income - - - (501) -
Total other comprehensive revenue and expense 271,403 18,261 36,098 274,891 36,098
Total comprehensive revenue and expense 282,444 27,493 44,514 289,000 46,865
Surplus/(deficit) attributable to:
Hamilton City Council 11,041 9,232 8,416 14,011 10,767
Non-controlling interest - - - 98 -
Total comprehensive revenue and expense attributable to:
Hamilton City Council 282,444 27,493 44,514 288,515 46,865
Non-controlling interest - - - 485 -

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
Explanations of major variances against budget are provided in note 39.
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BALANCING THE BOOKS MEASURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Council
e [ et
$000 $000 5000
Surplus/(deficit) before tax 11,041 9,232 8,416
Adjustments for balancing the books measure
Gains 8 3,893 - 3,022
Losses 8 (35,498) - (20,124)
Vested assets {included in Other revenue) 7 34,274 8,481 19,824
Ring Road subsidy {included in Subsidies and grants) 852 - 637
Total adjustments 3,521 8,481 3,359
Balancing the books surplus/(deficit) 7,520 751 5,057
Provisions and Impairment* (6,306) 371
Adjusted balandng the books surplus/(deficit) 12,728 751 4,686
*These adjustments are not included in the 10-Year Plan.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
Council Group
Actual Budget Actual Actual
[ Note | 2016 2016 2015 2016
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Balance at 1 July 2,916,531 2,955,514 2,872,017 2,949,841 2,899,976
Total comprehensive revenue and expense for the year 282,444 27,493 44,514 289,000 46,865
Issue of NZFIW shares - - - - 3,000
Balance at 30 June 29 3,198,975 2,983,007 2,916,531 3,238,841 2,949,841
Total comprehensive revenue and expense attributable to:
Hamilton City Council 282,444 27,493 44,514 288,515 46,865
Non-controlling interest - - - 485 -
Transactions with owners of the NZFIW:
Gain on non-controlling interest through retained equity - - - - 1,685
Non-controlling interest from issue of NZFIW shares - - - - 1,315
Total comprehensive revenue and expense 282,444 27,493 44,514 289,000 49,865

The accompanying notes from part of these financial statements.
Explanations of major variances against budget are provided in note 39.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2016

Council

Actual Budget Actual Actual
2016 2016 2015 2016
S000 S000 S000 S000 S000

Group

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 12 6,964 45,000 57,291 9,080 57,616
Receivables 13 19,646 17,101 19,276 20,485 20,183
Prepayments 1,557 1,663 1,465 1,661 1,606
Inventory 16 142 237 109 486 109
Other financial assets 15 41,090 - 5,010 46,654 11,252
Derivative financial instruments 14 - - - - -
Non-current assets held for sale 17 - - - - -
Total current assets 69,399 64,001 83,151 78,366 90,766
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 20 3,517,156 3,294,067 3,237,606 3,538,272 3,260,646
Intangible assets 21 19,835 19,184 19,726 19,835 19,726
Investment property 23 24,795 24,308 24,139 50,445 39,839
Investment in associates 24 7,430 7,430 7,430 32,203 29,835
Other financial assets 15 24,038 8,280 8,611 21,977 6,125
Investment in subsidiaries 18 8,422 10,150 10,150 - -
Derivative financial instruments 1,052 - - 1,052 -
Total non-current assets 3,602,728 3,363,419 3,307,662 3,663,784 3,356,171
Total assets 3,672,127 3,427,420 3,390,813 3,742,150 3,446,937
Liabilities

Current liabilities

Payables and deferred revenue 25 37,314 13,621 32,206 38403 36,334
Provisions 26 2,697 1,724 2,219 2,697 2,219
Employee entitlements 27 6,043 5,013 7,038 6,043 7,038
Borrowings 28 73,400 79,048 56,375 89,778 62,630
Derivative financial instruments 14 41 - 234 41 234
Total current liabilities 119,495 99,406 98,072 136,962 108,455
Non-current liabilities

Provisions 26 12,559 8,085 8,477 12,748 8,648
Employee entitlements 27 1,068 886 881 1,068 881
Payables and deferred revenue - - - 606 512
Deferred tax liability 11 ] L] - 2,555 1,965
Borrowings 28 291,489 336,036 340,989 300,829 350,772
Derivative financial instruments 14 48,541 = 25,863 48,541 25,863
Total non-current liabilities 353,657 345,007 376,210 366,347 388,641
Total liabilities 473,152 444,413 474,282 503,309 497,096
Net assets 3,198,975 2,983,007 2,916,531 3,238,841 2,949,841
Equity

Accumulated funds 29 1,642,101 1,609,284 1,611,331 1,660,722 1,626,982
Other reserves 29 1,556,874 1,373,723 1,305,200 1,576,319 1,321,544
Non-controlling interest 29 - - - 1,800 1,315
Total equity attributable to Hamilton City Council 3,198,975 2,983,007 2,916,531 3,238,841 2,949,841
Total equity 3,198,975 2,983,007 2,916,531 3,238,841 2,949,841

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
Explanations of major variances against budget are provided in note 39.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Council

Group

Actual Budget Actual Actual Actual
m 2016 2016 2015 2016 2015

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash was provided from:
Rates revenue 148,749 146,244 140,482 148,668 140,357
Fees, rents and charges 46,735 42,056 43,210 56,569 50,223
Subsidies and grants 11,110 9,257 10,634 10,885 10,634
Other capital contributions 26,594 11,213 19,212 26,389 19,212
Interest received 1,972 2,000 2,133 2,000 2,348
Dividends received 120 143 132 192 185
Sundry revenue - 1,044 - 263 494
735,280 711,957 715,803 744,966 223,453
Cash was applied to:
Payments to employees 65,510 66,546 61,483 67,610 63,257
Payments to suppliers 67,562 61,845 69,583 74,784 72,105
Interest paid 21,036 22,647 23,179 22,218 24,186
Tax payments - - - 376 4
Net GST paid 327 1,900 (1,564) 276 (1,492)
154,435 152,938 152,681 165,264 158,060
Net cash flow from operating activities 30 80,845 59,019 63,122 79,702 65,393
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash was provided from:
Proceeds from reduction in other financial assets 40 - 291 230 291
Proceeds from sale of shares - - - - 3,000
Proceeds from sale of investment property 1,647 - 17,565 1,647 17,565
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4,690 139 8,119 4,692 8,119
6,377 139 25,975 6,569 28,975
Cash was applied to:
Acquisition of investments 36,080 - 5,000 36,080 5,602
Purchase of investment property 23 - - 6,618 14
Purchase of intangible assets 3,187 - 7,895 3,187 7,895
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 65,785 65,646 50,381 66,146 56,186
105,075 65,646 63,276 112,031 69,697
Net cash flow from investing activities (98,698) {65,507) {37,301) {105,462) {40,722)
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash was provided from:
Loans raised 5,687 32,913 35,290 15,648 44,822
Finance leases raised 276 - 555 276 555
5,963 32,913 35,845 15,924 45,377
Cash was applied to:
Loan repayments 38,000 26,000 47,000 38,263 55,416
Finance lease repayments 437 425 342 437 342
38,437 26,425 47,342 38,700 55,758
Net cash flow from financing activities (32,473) 6,488 (11,497) (22,776) {10,381)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash held (50,327) - 14,324 (48,536) 14,290
Opening cash and cash equivalents balance 57,291 45,000 42,967 57,616 43,326
Closing cash and cash equivalents balance 12 6,964 45,000 57,291 9,080 57,616
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE
2016

REPORTING ENTITY

Hamilton City Council (the Council) is a territorial local
authority governed by the Local Government Act 2002
and is domiciled and operates in New Zealand. The
relevant legislation governing the Council’s operations
includes the LGA and the Local Government (Rating) Act
2002.

The Group consists of the ultimate parent, Council, and
its subsidiaries, Hamilton Properties Ltd, Vibrant
Hamilton Trust and Innovation Waikato Ltd. The
following associate, Waikato Regional Airport Ltd is
equity accounted. The Council’s subsidiaries and
Waikato Regional Airport Ltd are incorporated and
domiciled in New Zealand.

The primary objective of the Council is to provide goods
or services for the community or social benefit rather
than making a financial return. Accordingly, the Council
has designated itself and the Group as public benefit
entities (PBEs) as defined under New Zealand
Equivalents to International Financial Reporting
Standards (NZ IFRS).

The financial statements of the Council and Group are
for the year ended 30 June 2016. The financial
statements were authorised for issue by Council on 29
September 2016.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on the
going concern basis, and the accounting policies have
been applied consistently throughout the period.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Council and Group have
been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Local Government Act 2002, which include the
requirement to comply with generally accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand (NZ GAAP).

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Tier 1 PBE accounting statements.

Measurement base

The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, modified by the revaluation of land
and buildings, certain infrastructure assets, investment
property and financial instruments {(including derivative
instruments).

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand dollars ($'000). The functional currency of the
Council and its subsidiaries and associate is New Zealand

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by
adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity,
income, and expenses on a line-by-line basis. All
significant intragroup balances, transactions, income,
and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

e  Subsidiaries
The Council consolidates in the group financial
statements all entities where the Council has the
capacity to control their financing and operating policies
s0 as to obtain benefits from the activities of the
subsidiary. This power exists where the Council controls
the majority voting power on the governing body or
where such policies have been irreversibly pre-
determined by the Council or where the determination
of such policies is unable to materially affect the level of
potential ownership benefits that arise from the
activities of the subsidiary.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The consideration transferred in an acquisition of a
subsidiary reflects the fair value of the assets
transferred by the acquirer and liabilities incurred by the
acquirer to the former owner.

The Council will recognise goodwill where there is an
excess of the consideration transferred over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. This
difference reflects the goodwill to be recognised by the
Council. If the consideration transferred is lower than
the net fair value of the Council’s interest in the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the
difference will be recognised immediately in the surplus
or deficit.

e  Associates

The Council’s associate is accounted for in the Group
financial statements using the equity method. An
associate is an entity over which the Council has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. The investmentin an
associate is initially recognised at cost and the carrying
amount in the group financial statements is increased or
decreased to recognise the group’s share of the surplus
or deficit of the associate after the date of acquisition.
Distributions received from an associate reduce the
carrying amount of the investment.

If the share of deficits of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, the group discontinues
recognising its share of further deficits. After the
group’s interest is reduced to zero, additional deficits
are provided for, and a liability is recognised, only to the
extent that the Council has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the

dollars. associate. If the associate subsequently reports
surpluses, the group will resume recognising its share of
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those surpluses only after its share of the surpluses
equals the share of deficits not recognised.

Where the group transacts with an associate, surpluses
or deficits are eliminated to the extent of the group’s
interest in the associate.

Dilution gains or losses arising from investments in
associates are recognised in the surplus or deficit.

The investment in the associate is carried at cost in the
Council’s parent entity financial statements.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration
received or receivable.

. Rates revenue
Rates are set annually by a resolution from Council and
relate to a financial year. All ratepayers are invoiced
within the financial year to which the rates have been
set. Rates revenue is recognised when payable.

Rates arising from late payment penalties are
recognised as revenue when rates become overdue.

Revenue from water rates by meter is recognised on an
accrual basis. Unbilled usage, as a result of unread
meters at year-end, is accrued on an average usage
basis.

Rates remissions are recognised as a reduction of rates
revenue when the council has received an application
that satisfies its rates remission policy.

Rates collected on behalf of the Waikato Regional
Council (WRC) are not recognised in the financial
statements, as the Council is acting as an agent for the
WRC.

e Infringement fees and fines
Infringement fees and fines mostly relate to traffic and
parking infringements and are recognised when the
infringement notice is issued. The fair value of this
revenue is determined based on the probability of
collecting fines, which is estimated by considering the
collection history of fines over the preceding 2-year
period.

e  Other grants received
Other grants are recognised as revenue when they
become receivable unless there is an obligation in
substance to return the funds if conditions of the grant
are not met. If there is such an obligation, the grants are
initially recorded as grants received in advance and
recognised as revenue when conditions of the grant are
satisfied.

e Interest and dividends
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. Interest revenue on an impaired financial asset
is recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive
payment has been established. When dividends are
declared from pre-acquisition surpluses, the dividend is
deducted from the cost of the investment.

e  Development and financial contributions
Development and financial contributions are recognised
as revenue when the relevant application for service
connection; code of compliance; or s.224(c) completion
of resource consent conditions is received.

. New Zealand Transport Agency roading
subsidies

The Council receives funding assistance from the New
Zealand Transport Agency, which subsidises part of the
costs of maintenance and capital expenditure on the
local roading infrastructure. The subsidies are
recognised as revenue upon entitlement, as conditions
pertaining to eligible expenditure have been fulfilled.

. Entrance fees

Entrance fees are fees charged to users of the Council’s
local facilities, such as the zoo, pools, museum, and
gallery. Revenue from entrance fees is recognised upon
entry to such facilities.

e  Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when a
product is sold to the customer.

e  Vested or donated physical assets

For assets received for no or nominal consideration, the
asset is recognised at its fair value when the Council
obtains control of the asset. The Fair value of the asset is
recognised as revenue, unless there is a use or return
condition attached to the asset.

The fair value of vested or donated assets is usually
determined by reference to the cost of constructing the
asset. For assets received from property developments,
the fair value is based on construction price information
provided by the property developer.

For long-lived assets that must be used for a specific use
(e.g. land must be used as a recreation reserve), the
Council immediately recognises the fair value of the
asset as revenue. A liability is recognised only if the
council expects that it will need to return or pass the
asset to another party.

e  Donated and bequeathed financial assets

Donated and bequeathed financial assets are recognised
as revenue unless there are substantive use or return
conditions. A liability is recorded if there is substantive
use or return conditions and the liability released to
revenue as the conditions are met (e.g. as the funds are
spent for the nominated purpose).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue and contract costs are recognised as
revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract at balance date.
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The stage of completion is measured by reference to the
contract costs incurred up to balance date as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

Contract costs include all costs directly related to
specific contracts, costs that are specifically chargeable
to the customer under the terms of the contract, and an
allocation of overhead expenses incurred in connection
with the group’s construction activities in general.

An expected loss on construction contracts is recognised
immediately as an expense in the surplus or deficit.

Where the outcome of a contract cannot be reliably
estimated, contract costs are recognised as an expense
as incurred. When itis probable that the costs will be
recovered, revenue is recognised to the extent of costs
incurred.

Construction work in progress is stated at the aggregate
of contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
surpluses less recognised losses and progress billings. If
there are contracts where progress billings exceed the
aggregate costs incurred, plus surpluses less losses, the
net amounts are presented as a liability.

Grant expenditure

Non-discretionary grants are grants that are awarded if
the grant application meets the specified criteria and are
recognised as expenditure when an application that
meets the specified criteria for the grant has been
received.

Discretionary grants are grants where Council has no
obligation to award on receipt of the grant application
and are recognised as expenditure when a successful
applicant has been notified of Council’s decision.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions {including those for which
foreign exchange contracts are held) are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at year
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
surplus or deficit.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

All items in the financial statements are stated exclusive
of GST, except for receivables and payables, which are
stated on a GST inclusive basis. Where GST is not
recoverable as input tax then it is recognised as part of
the related asset or expense.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the Inland Revenue Department (IRD) is included as part
of receivables or payables in the statement of financial
position. The net GST paid to, or received from the IRD,
including the GST relating to investing and financing
activities, is classified as an operating cash flow in the
statement of cash flows. Commitments and
contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST.

Income tax

Income tax expense in relation to the surplus or deficit
for the period comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable based
on the taxable profit for the current year, plus any
adjustments to income tax payable in respect of prior
years. Current tax is calculated using rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by balance date.

Deferred tax is the amount of income tax payable or
recoverable in future periods in respect of temporary
differences and unused tax losses. Temporary
differences are differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax is not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or from the initial recognition of an asset and liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination, and at
the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit.

Deferred tax is recognised on taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the company can control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realised, using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by balance date.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the entity expects to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current tax and deferred tax is recognised against the
surplus or deficit for the period, except when it relates
to a business combination, or to transactions recognised
in other comprehensive revenue and expense or directly

in equity.
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment consist of:

e  Operational assets
These include land, buildings (which includes cultural
assets, community and leisure facilities), improvements,
non-restricted parks and gardens, plant and equipment,
vehicles, sports areas and library books.
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e  Zoo animals
Zoo animals are held primarily for a social and
recreational purpose. The capital cost consists of the
actual expense incurred in acquiring the Zoo animals.

e  Restricted assets
These are parks and reserves owned by Council that
cannot be disposed of because of legal or other
restrictions and provide a benefit or service to the
community.

e  Heritage assets
These are museum collections and library collections
(New Zealand Room).

. Infrastructure assets
These are the fixed utility systems owned by the Council
and group. Each asset type includes all items that are
required for the network to function.

Land (operational and restricted) is measured at fair
value, and buildings (operational and restricted), library
books, and infrastructural assets (except land under
roads) are measured at fair value less accumulated
depreciation. All other asset classes are measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

e  Additions
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that
future economic benefits or service potential associated
with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably.

Work in progress is recognised at cost less impairment
and is not depreciated.

In most instances, an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised at its cost. Where an asset is
acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, it is
recognised at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

e Disposals
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of the
asset. Gains and losses on disposals are reported in the
net surplus or deficit. When revalued assets are sold,
the amounts included in asset revaluation reserves in
respect of those assets are transferred to accumulated
funds.

¢  Subsequent costs
Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are
capitalised only when it is probable that future
economic benefits or service potential associated with
the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably.

The costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant, and
equipment are recognised in the surplus or deficit as
they are incurred.

Revaluation

Land and buildings (operational and restricted), library
books, and infrastructural assets (except land under
roads) are revalued with sufficient regularity to ensure
that their carrying amount does not differ materially

from fair value and at least every three years. All other
asset classes are carried at depreciated historical cost.

The carrying values of revalued assets are assessed
annually to ensure that they do not differ materially
from the assets’ fair values. If there is a material
difference, then the off-cycle asset classes are revalued.

Revaluations of property, plant, and equipment are
accounted for on a class-of-asset basis.

The net revaluation results are credited or debited to
other comprehensive income and are accumulated to an
asset revaluation reserve in equity for that class of asset.
Where this would result in a debit balance in the asset
revaluation reserve, this balance is not recognised in
other comprehensive income but is recognised in the
surplus or deficit. Any subsequent increase on
revaluation that reverses a previous decrease in value
recognised in the surplus or deficit will be recognised
first in the surplus or deficit up to the amount previously
expensed, and then recognised in other comprehensive
income.

e  Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis on all
property, plant, and equipment other than land, at rates
that will write off the cost (or valuation) of the assets to
their estimated residual values over their useful lives.

The useful lives and associated depreciation rates of
major classes of assets have been estimated as follows:

Buildings - structure/

10-100 yrs 1% - 10%
fit out/services
Plant and vehicles 3-15yrs 6.6% -33.3%
Furrlllture, fittings and 5-10yrs 10% - 20%
equipment
Library books 8 yrs 7.1%
Zoo animal

10 yrs 10%
{acquisition costs)
Improvements — Parks
& Gardens 5-150 yrs 0.6%-20%
Roads and traffic
network:
Top surface (seal) 6-18yrs 5.5% - 16.6%

Pavement (base course) 30-140yrs | 2%-4%

Catchpits 70 yrs 2%
Culverts 60 - 80 yrs 1.25% - 1.6%
Footpaths 50 - 70 yrs 1.4%-2%
Kerbs and traffic islands 70 yrs 1.4%
Signs 12 yrs 8.3%
Street lights 25 yrs 4%
Bridges 150 yrs 0.6%
Traffic signals 15 yrs 6.6%
Barriers 25-40yrs 2.5%-4%
iu;:?:lters and parking 4-10yrs 10% - 25%
Verge, embankment and 60 yrs 1.6%

retaining walls
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Wastewater Non-current assets held for sale
reticulation:
Pipes 60-100yrs | 1%-1.6% Non-.curre.nt asse.ts held for salle are classified as rweI.d for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
Manholes 75yrs 1.3% . P
through a sale transaction, not through continuing use.
Treatment plant 5-100yrs: | 1%-20% Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the
Bridges 75-100yrs | 1%-1.3% lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs

Pump stations 15-100yrs | 1%-6.6%

Stormwater system:
Pipes 100 yrs 1%
Manholes, cesspits 100 yrs 1%

Service connections and

30-100yrs | 1%-3.3%
outlets

Water reticulation:

Pipes 60-80yrs 1.25%- 1.6%
Butterfly valves 50-75yrs 1.3%-2%
Treatment plant 10-120yrs | 0.8%-10%
Meters 20-75 yrs 1.3% - 5%
Hydrants 50 yrs 2%
Reservoirs 30-80yrs 1.25%-3.3%

Refuse — Rubbish and
Recycling

10-100yrs | 1%-10%

The residual value and useful life of an asset is reviewed
and adjusted if applicable at each financial year end.

Heritage assets are not depreciated due to their
extremely long life and heritage value.

Depreciation is not provided in these statements on the
following assets:

e lLand
e  Formation costs associated with roading
e Investment properties
e Non-current asset held for resale
e  Workin progress and assets under
construction
Any work undertaken on infrastructure assets to

reinstate (termed ‘renewal’) or add to the service
potential is capitalised.

Investment properties

Properties leased to third parties under operating leases
are classified as investment property unless the property
is held to meet service delivery objectives, rather than
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation.

These assets consist of investment properties owned by
the Council, funded either from Corporate Funds, the
Domain Endowment Fund or the Municipal Endowment
Fund.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including transaction costs.

After initial recognition, all investment property is
measured at fair value as determined annually by an
independent valuer.

Gains or losses arising from a change in the fair value of
investment property are recognised in the surplus or
deficit.

to sell.

Any impairment losses for write-downs of non-current
assets held for sale are recognised in the surplus or
deficit.

Any increases in fair value (less costs to sell) are
recognised up to the level of any impairment losses that
have been previously recognised.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a
disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while
they are classified as held for sale.

Intangible assets
Software acquisition and development

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to
use the specific software.

Costs that are directly associated with the development
of software for internal use are recognised as an
intangible asset. Direct costs include the software
development employee costs and an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads.

Staff training costs are recognised in the surplus or
deficit when incurred. Costs associated with maintaining
computer software are recognised in the surplus or
deficit when incurred. Costs associated with
development and maintenance of the Council’s website
are recognised as an expense when incurred.

Amortisation

The carrying value of an intangible asset with a finite life
is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life.
Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use
and ceases at the date that the asset is derecognised.
The amortisation charge for each period is recognised in
the surplus or deficit.

The useful lives of major classes of intangible assets
have been estimated as follows:

Computer Software 3-5 years

Consents & Delegations 10-35 years
Licenses 3-10years
Models 7-15 years

Value in use for non-cash-generating assets

Non-cash-generating assets are those assets that are not
held with the primary objective of generating a
commercial return.

For non-cash-generating assets, value in use is
determined using an approach based on either a
depreciated replacement cost approach, restoration
cost approach, or a service units approach. The most
appropriate approach used to measure value in use

o/16
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depends on the nature of the impairment and
availability of information.

Value in use for cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are those assets that are held
with the primary objective of generating a commercial
return.

The value in use for cash-generating assets and cash-
generating units is the present value of expected future
cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Council’s assets, other than
investment property and inventories are reviewed at
each balance date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Where itis not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Council
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Where the future economic benefits of an asset are not
primarily dependant on the asset’s ability to generate
net cash flows, and where the Council would, if deprived
of the asset, replace its remaining future economic
benefits, value in use shall be determined as the
depreciated replacement cost of the asset.

Where the Council accounts for revaluations of
property, plant and equipment on a class of asset basis,
an impairment loss on a revalued asset is recognised
directly against any revaluation reserve in respect of the
same class of asset to the extent that the impairment
loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation
reserve for that same class of asset.

Where that results in a debit balance in the revaluation
reserve, the balance is recognised in the surplus or
deficit.

Where the Council accounts for revaluations of
property, plant and equipment on a class of asset basis,
a reversal of an impairment loss on a revalued asset is
credited directly to the revaluation reserve. However, to
the extent that an impairment loss on the same class of
asset was previously recognised in the surplus or deficit,
a reversal of that impairment loss is also recognised in
the surplus or deficit.

For assets not carried at a revalued amount, the total
impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Impairment of property, plant, and equipment
and intangible assets

Intangible assets subsequently measured at cost that
have an indefinite useful life, or are not yet available for
use, and goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment.

Property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets
subsequently measured at cost that have a finite useful
life are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use.

If an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is regarded as impaired and the
carrying amount is written-down to the recoverable
amount. The total impairment loss is recognised in the
surplus or deficit. The reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Inventory

Inventories held for distribution or consumption in the
provision of services that are not supplied on a
commercial basis are measured at cost (using the FIFO
method), adjusted, when applicable, for any loss of
service potential.

Inventories acquired through non-exchange transactions
are measured at fair value at the date of acquisition.
Inventories held for use in the provision of goods and
services on a commercial basis are valued at the lower
of cost (using the FIFO method) and net realisable value.

The amount of any write-down for the loss of service
potential or from cost to net realisable value is
recognised in the surplus/deficit in the period of the
write-down.

When land held for development and future resale is
transferred from investment property/property, plant,
and equipment to inventory, the fair value of the land at
the date of the transfer is it's deemed cost. Costs
directly attributable to the developed land are
capitalised to inventory, with the exception of
infrastructural asset costs which are capitalised to
property, plant, and equipment.

Receivables

Receivables are recorded at their face value, less any
provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, and other short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Other financial assets

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transactions costs unless they are carried at fair value
through surplus or deficit in which case the transaction
costs are recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Council and group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Council and group have transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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Financial assets are classified into the following
categories for the purpose of measurement:

e Loans and receivables

s Fair value through surplus or deficit

e Fair value through other comprehensive
income

¢  Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
(such as general or community loans, deposits and term
deposits) with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after balance date, which are included in non-
current assets.

After initial recognition, they are measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method, less
impairment. Gains and losses when the asset is impaired
or derecognised are recognised in the surplus or deficit.
Loans to community organisations made at nil or below-
market interest rates are initially recognised at the
present value of their expected future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial instrument. The difference between the
face value and present value of the expected future cash
flows of the loan is recognised in the surplus or deficit as
a grant expense. The loans are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

e  Financial assets at fair value through surplus
or deficit

Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit
include financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short-term or it is part
of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of
short-term profit-taking. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated into a hedge accounting relationship for
which hedge accounting is applied.

Financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short-term or part of a portfolio classified
as held for trading are classified as a current asset. The
current/non-current classification of derivatives is
explained in the derivatives accounting policy below.

After initial recognition, financial assets in this category
are measured at their fair values with gains or losses on
remeasurement recognised in the surplus or deficit.

e  Fair value through other comprehensive
revenue and expense

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive revenue and expense are those that are
designated into this category at initial recognition or are
not classified in any of other categories above. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of, or realise, the investment within
12 months of balance date. The Council and Group
includes in this category;

e Investments that it intends to hold long-term
but which may be realised before maturity;
and

¢  Shareholdings that it holds for strategic
purposes.

These investments are measured at their fair value, with
gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses, which are
recognised in the surplus or deficit.

On derecognition the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to the surplus or deficit.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for objective evidence of
impairment at each balance date. Impairment losses are
recognised in the surplus or deficit.

¢  Loans and other receivables, and held-to-
maturity investments

Impairment is established when there is objective
evidence that the Council and Group will not be able to
collect amounts due according to the original terms of
the receivable. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter into
bankruptcy, receivership or liquidation, and default
payments are indicators that the asset is impaired. The
amount of the impairment is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted using the
original effective interest rate. For debtors and other
receivables, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit.
When the receivable is uncollectable, it is written-off
against the allowance account. Overdue receivables that
have been renegotiated are reclassified as current (that
is, not past due). Impairment in term deposits, local
authority stock, government stock bonds, general and
community loans are recognised directly against the
instruments’ carrying amount.

e  Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost
is considered objective evidence of impairment.

For debt investments, significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter into
bankruptcy, and default in payments are considered
objective indicators that the asset is impaired.

If impairment evidence exists for investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income, the
cumulative loss (measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the surplus or deficit) recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to the
surplus or deficit.

Equity instrument impairment losses recognised in the
surplus or deficit are not reversed through the surplus or
deficit.

Attachments

Page 68



29 September 2016

h Hamilton Cit

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

If in a subsequent period the fair value of a debt
instrument increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed in the
surplus or deficit.

Payables

Short-term creditors and other payables are recorded at
their face value.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at their face value
plus transaction costs. After initial recognition, all
borrowings are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Council or Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
balance date.

Employee entitlements

Short-term employee entitlements

Employee benefits expected to be settled within 12
months after the end of the period in which the
employee renders the related service are measured
based on accrued entitlements at current rates of pay.
These include salaries and wages accrued up to balance
date, annual leave earned to, but not yet taken at
balance date, and sick leave.

A liability for sick leave is recognised to the extent that
absences in the coming year are expected to be greater
than the sick leave entitlements earned in the coming
year. The amount is calculated based on the unused sick
leave entitlement that can be carried forward at balance
date; to the extent it will be used by staff to cover those
future absences.

The provision for retirement gratuities has been
calculated on an actuarial basis bringing to account what
is likely to be payable in the future in respect of service
that employees have accumulated up until twelve
months after balance date.

Long-term employee entitlements

Employee benefits that are due to be settled beyond 12
months after the end of the period in which the
employee renders the related service, such as
retirement gratuities, have been calculated on an
actuarial basis. The calculations are based on:

s likely future entitlements accruing to staff,
based on years of service, years to
entitlement, the likelihood that staff will reach
the point of entitlement, and contractual
entitlement information; and

e the present value of the estimated future cash
flows.

Presentation of employee entitlements

Sick leave, annual leave, and vested long service leave
are classified as a current liability. Non-vested long
service leave and retirement gratuities expected to be
settled within 12 months of balance date, are classified

as a current liability. All other employee entitlements
are classified as a non-current liability.

Superannuation schemes

Defined contribution schemes

Obligations for contributions to KiwiSaver are accounted
for as defined contribution superannuation schemes and
are recognised as an expense in the surplus or deficit
when incurred.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivative financial instruments are used to manage
exposure to foreign exchange arising from the Council’s
operational activities and interest rate risks arising from
Council’s financing activities.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each
balance date. The Council has elected not to hedge
account for these derivative financial instruments.

Changes in the fair value of the derivative financial
instruments are recognised in the surplus/deficit.

Leases

e  Finance leases
A finance lease is a lease that transfers to the lessee
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset, whether or not title is eventually
transferred.

At the commencement of the lease term, Council
recognises finance leases as assets and liabilities in the
statement of financial position at the lower of the fair
value of the leased item or the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

The finance charge is charged to the surplus or deficit
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.

The amount recognised as an asset is depreciated over
its useful life. If there is no certainty as to whether
Council will obtain ownership at the end of the lease
term, the asset is fully depreciated over the shorter of
the lease term and its useful life.

e  Operating leases
An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset. Lease payments under an
operating lease are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the surplus or deficit as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term.

Provisions

A provision is recognised for future expenditure of
uncertain amount or timing when there is a present
obligation (either legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of future
economic benefits will be required to settle the
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obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
an interest expense and is included in “finance costs”.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the Council or Group to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder of the contract for loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised at
fair value. If a financial guarantee contract was issued in
a stand-alone arm’s length transaction to an unrelated
party, its fair value at inception is equal to the
consideration received. When no consideration is
received, the fair value of the liability is initially
measured using a valuation technique, such as
considering the credit enhancement arising from the
guarantee or the probability that the Council will be
required to reimburse a holder for a loss incurred
discounted to present value. If the fair value of a
guarantee cannot be reliably determined, a liability is
only recognised when it is probable there will be an
outflow under the guarantee.

Financial guarantees are subsequently measured at the
higher of:

e  The present value of the estimated amount to
settle the guarantee obligation if it is probable
there will be an outflow to settle the
guarantee; and

¢  The amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation as
revenue.

Landfill post-closure costs

The Council has legal obligations under resource consent
to provide ongoing maintenance and monitoring
services at several of its landfill sites. Provision for post-
closure costs is recognised as a liability when the
obligation for post-closure arises.

The provision is measured based on the present value of
future cash flows expected to be incurred, taking into
account future events including legal requirements and
known improvements in technology. The provision
includes all costs associated with landfill post-closure.

Amounts provided for landfill post-closure are
capitalised to the landfill asset where they give rise to
future economic benefits to be obtained. Components
of the capitalised landfill asset are depreciated over
their useful lives.

The discount rate used is a rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the Council.

All subsequent changes in the liability shall be
recognised in the surplus/deficit and the periodic
unwinding of the discount will also be recognised in the
surplus/deficit as a finance cost as it occurs.

Equity

Equity is the community's interest in Council and is
measured as the difference between total assets and
total liabilities. Equity is disaggregated and classified
into a number of reserves.

The components of equity are:

Accumulated funds

Property revaluation reserves
Restricted reserves

Council created reserves; and

Fair value through other comprehensive
revenue and expense reserve

Accumulated funds

Accumulated funds comprise accumulated surpluses
over the years.

Property revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserves comprise accumulated revaluation
increments/decrements.

Restricted reserves

Restricted reserves are a component of equity generally
representing a particular use to which various parts of
equity have been assigned. Reserves may be legally
restricted or created by the Council.

Restricted reserves include those subject to specific
conditions accepted as binding by the Council and which
may not be revised by the Council without reference to
the Courts or a third party. Transfers from these
reserves may be made only for certain specified
purposes or when certain specified conditions are met.

Also included in restricted reserves are reserves
restricted by Council decision. The Council may alter
them without reference to any third party or the Courts.
Transfers to and from these reserves are at the
discretion of the Council.

Council created reserves

Council created reserves are formally imposed
designations of public equity that indicate Council’s
intention to use a certain level of resources for a special
purpose.

Fair value through other comprehensive revenue and
expense reserve

This reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the
fair value of assets classified as fair value through other
comprehensive revenue and expense.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are recorded
at the point at which the contingency is evident and if
the possibility that they will materialise is not remote.
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Contingent assets are disclosed if it is probable that the
benefits will be realised.

Statement of cash flows

Cash comprises cash balances on hand, held in bank
accounts, demand deposits and other highly liquid
investments in which Council invests as part of its day-
to-day cash management.

Operating activities include cash received from all
income sources of Council and cash payments made for
goods and services.

Investing activities are those activities relating to the
acquisition and disposal of non-current assets.

Financing activities comprise the change in debt capital
structure of Council.

Budget figures

The budget figures are those approved by the Council in
the 2015-2025 10-Year Plan. The budget figures have
been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP, using
accounting policies that are consistent with those
adopted in preparing these financial statements.

Cost allocation

The cost of service for each significant activity of the
Council has been derived using the cost allocation
system outlined below.

Direct costs are those costs directly attributable to a
significant activity. Indirect costs are those costs that
cannot be identified in an economically feasible manner
with a specific significant activity.

Direct costs are charged directly to significant activities.
Indirect costs are charged to significant activities using
appropriate cost drivers such as actual usage, staff
numbers, and floor area.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

In preparing these financial statements, estimates and
assumptions have been made concerning the future.
These estimates and assumptions may differ from the
subsequent actual results. Estimates and assumptions
are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations or
future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

e Infrastructure assets
Note 20 provides information about the estimates and
assumptions applied in determining the fair value of
infrastructural assets.

e Landfill aftercare provision
Note 26 provides information about the estimates and

assumptions surrounding the landfill aftercare provision.
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NOTE 2: SUMMARY REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE FOR GROUP OF ACTIVITIES

Council Grou
2016 2015 2016 h

$000 $000 $000 $000

Revenue

Arts and Culture 1,979 2,445 1,979 2,445
Community Support 877 2,641 877 2,641
Democracy Services 23 354 23 354
Economic Development 9,119 11,304 18,871 18,179
Parks and Green Spaces 10,661 8,119 10,661 8,119
Planning and Development 9,849 8,155 9,849 8,155
Recreation 4,720 4,990 4,720 4,990
Rubbish and Recycling 911 909 911 909
Safety 2,331 2,532 2,331 2,532
Sewerage 16,335 12,147 16,335 12,147
Stormwater 7,706 2,848 7,706 2,848
Transportation 49,007 36,685 49,007 36,685
Water Supply 16,172 12,539 16,172 12,539
Total activity revenue 129,690 105,668 139,442 112,543
Less internal revenue (1,342) (1,831) (1,342) (1,831)
General and transitional rates 139,826 133,644 139,746 133,519
Total revenue 268,174 237,481 277,846 244,231
Expenditure

Arts and Culture 18,689 17,987 18,689 17,987
Community Support 5,521 5,868 5,521 5,868
Democracy Services 4,984 6,274 4,984 6,274
Economic Development 26,010 31,132 32,778 37,254
Parks and Green Spaces 22,203 21,721 22,203 21,721
Planning and Development 12,937 11,784 12,937 11,784
Recreation 16,643 12,352 16,643 12,352
Rubbish and Recycling 12,338 6,799 12,338 6,799
Safety 5,452 5,606 5452 5,606
Sewerage 24,758 25,118 24,758 25,118
Stormwater 11,275 7,928 11,275 7,928
Transportation 47,724 43,551 47,724 43,551
Water Supply 18,336 17,674 18,336 17,674
Total activity expenditure 226,870 213,794 233,638 219,916
Less internal expenditure (1,342) (1,831) (1,342) (1,831)
Total expenditure 225,528 211,963 232,296 218,085

Each significant activity is stated gross of internal costs and revenue, and includes targeted rates attributable to activities {refer to note 3). In
order to fairly reflect the total external operations for the Council in the Statement of comprehensive revenue and expense, these
transactions are eliminated as shown above.

The 2015 actuals have been restated to reflect a new activity, Recreation, and movement of cost centres within activities.

Revenue reclassified as exchange or non-exchange transactions

Council
[ 206 [ 2015 [ o016 [ 2015
$000 $000 $000 $000

Revenue from exchange transactions
Fees and user charges 40,551 38,252 50,633 44,850
Rental income 2,256 3,120 2,256 3,120
Subsidies and grants 1,036 1,792 811 1,792
Targeted rates for water supply 7,955 7,330 7,955 7,330
Interest revenue 2,369 2,319 2,397 2,534
Total revenue from exchange transactions 54,167 52,813 64,052 59,626
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Development and financial contributions 24,239 16,069 24,034 16,069
Subsidies and grants 9,497 9,103 9,497 9,103
Infringements and fines 1,880 2,374 1,880 2,374
Other revenue 4,778 4,253 4,850 4,315
Rates, excluding targeted rates for water supply 139,339 133,045 139,259 132,920
Vested assets 34,274 19,824 34,274 19,824
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 214,007 184,668 213,794 184,605
Total revenue 268,174 237,481 277,846 244,231
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NOTE 3: RATES

Council Group
$000 $000 $000 $000

General rates 13,475 126,696 13,395 126,571
Targeted rates attributable to activities:

- Transitional rate 120,065 - 120,065 -

- Metered water supply 8,279 7,693 8,279 7,693
- Access Hamilton 5,011 5,005 5,011 5,005
- Community use 944 1,069 944 1,069
- Business improvement district 280 283 280 283
- Hamilton Gardens 615 607 615 607
Rates penalties 1,029 920 1,029 920
Rates remissions (1,593) (936) {1,593) (936)
Less: rates charges to Council properties (487) (599) (487) (599)
Less: metered water charges to Council properties (324) (363) (324) (363)
Total rates 147,294 140,375 147,214 140,250

Water rates charged on council properties have been restated from expenditure to Rates revenue.

Rates remissions

Rates revenue is shown gross of rates remissions. The Council's rates remission policy allows rates to be remitted on condition of a
ratepayer's extreme financial hardship, and land protected for historical or cultural purposes. Commercial and residential properties in rural
areas where services are not available are also covered under the rates remission policy.

Rating base information
The rating base information is as at the end of the preceding financial year:

30 June 2015 30 June 2014
The number of rating units 56,118 55,447

The total capital value of rating units S 26,392,724,150 $ 25,913,715,550
The total land value of rating units S 10,947,230,650 S 10,845,594,050

NOTE 4: SUBSIDIES AND GRANTS

Council Grou
2016 2015 2016 h

$000 $000 $000 $000
New Zealand Transport Agency roading subsidies 9,497 9,103 9,497 9,103
Other grants 1,036 1,792 811 1,792
Total subsidies and grants 10,533 10,895 10,308 10,895

There are no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to subsidies and grants recognised (2015 Snil).

NOTE 5: FEES AND CHARGES

Council Group
$000 $000 $000 $000
Building and resource consent charges 9,257 7,737 9,257 7,737
Rental income from investment properties 2,256 3,120 2,256 3,120
Swimming pool revenue 2,678 2,618 2,678 2,618
Parking fees 2,669 3,360 2,669 3,360
Rendering of services - - 10,090 6,137
Sale of goods 908 765 908 765
Commission received 1,187 1,183 1,187 1,183
Pensioner housing 1,592 2,230 1,592 2,230
Other rental income 1,548 1,346 1,548 1,346
Trade waste 2,974 3,062 2,974 3,062
Cemetery and crematorium 1,624 1,561 1,624 1,561
Event facilities 4,197 5,952 4,197 5,952
Shared services recoveries 859 713 859 713
Zoo 1,406 1,288 1,406 1,288
Animal control 1,013 995 1,013 995
Other fees and charges 8,639 5,442 8,631 5,903
Total fees and charges 42,807 41,372 52,889 47,970

Revenue for Trade waste in 2015 has been restated to include revenue classified as Other fees and charges.

HAMILTON CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

70

Attachments

Page 73

Item 5

Attachment 1



Council g Hamilton City Council
29 September 2016

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

ltem 5

Attachment 1

NOTE 6: INTEREST REVENUE AND FINANCE COSTS

Council Group

$000 $000 $000 $000
Interest revenue
Term deposits 2,003 1,939 2,031 2,154
Community loans 6 19 6 19
Local authority and government bonds 123 361 123 361
Discount unwind on Community loan 237 - 237 -
Total interest revenue 2,369 2,319 2,397 2,534
Finance costs
Interest on borrowings 20,998 22,913 22,172 23,903
Interest on finance leases 72 66 92 81
Discount unwind on provisions (note 26) 643 612 643 612
Total finance costs 21,713 23,591 22,907 24,596
Net finance costs 19,344 21,272 20,510 22,062
NOTE 7: OTHER REVENUE

Council Group

$000 $000 $000 $000
Other revenue
Vested land and infrastructure from property development 34,274 19,824 34,274 19,824
Traffic and parking infringements 1,880 2,374 1,880 2,374
Petrol tax 988 950 988 950
Bequests and other donations 3,504 2,423 3,504 2,423
Dividends 120 132 190 185
Insurance recoveries:
- plant and equipment 35 64 25 64
- motor vehicles - 45 - 45
- other insurance recoveries 54 84 54 84
Miscellaneous revenue 77 555 79 564
Total other revenue 40,932 26,451 41,004 26,513

The Waste minimisation levy is classified as Subsidies and grants (note 4) in 2016 and was classified as Other in 2015.

NOTE 8: GAINS/(LOSSES)

Council Group
$000 $000 $000 $000

Gains

Investment property gain on disposal 128 260 128 260
Property, plant, and equipment gain on disposal {note 20) 42 2,521 42 2,521
Investment property revaluation gain (note 23} 2,754 241 3,541 1,427
Unrealised gain on revaluation of interest rate swaps (note 14) 969 - 969 -
Unrealised gain on other financial assets - - - 318
Realised gain on other financial assets - - 263 494
Total gains 3,893 3,022 4,913 5,020
Losses

Investment property loss on disposal (601) - (601) -
Property, plant, and equipment loss on disposal {note 20) (12,496) {6,033) (12,916) (6,050)
Unrealised loss on other financial assets - - (488) -
Unrealised loss on revaluation of interest rate swaps (note 14) (22,401) (14,091) (22,401) {14,091)
Total losses (35,498) (20,124) (36,406) (20,141)
Total net gains/(losses) (31,605) (17,102) (31,463) (15,121)
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NOTE 9: PERSONNEL COSTS

Council Group
[ 206 | o015 [ 2016 | 2015 |
$000 $000 $000 $000

Salaries and wages 59,146 61,338 61,246 63,126
Defined contribution plan employer contributions * 978 898 978 898
Increase/(decrease) in employee benefit liabilities 995 803 995 803
Total salaries and wages 61,119 63,039 63,219 64,827
ACC Accredited Employers Programme 213 408 213 408
Contract staff 737 676 737 676
Training and development 942 830 942 830
Recruitment costs 379 392 379 392
Other personnel costs 652 598 652 598
Total employee benefit expenses 64,042 65,943 66,142 67,731

*Employer contributions to defined contribution plans include contributions to KiwiSaver.

ACC Accredited Employers Programme, recruitment, contract staff and Other personnel costs, totalling $2.9m have been re-classified from

Other expenses.

NOTE 10: OTHER EXPENSES

Council Group
[ 2016 | 2015 [ 2016 | 2015 |
$000 $000 $000 $000

Fees to auditors:
- Fees to Audit New Zealand for audit of financial statements 199 199 249 252
- Fees to Audit New Zealand for other services* 17 130 17 130
- Fees to Assurance CA firm for the internal audit function 163 253 163 253
- Fees to Assurance firms for the accreditation and safety function 47 - 47 -
General grants 7,067 2,173 7,067 2,173
Contractors 17,882 16,982 17,882 16,982
Insurance premiums 1,669 1,747 1,669 1,747
Consultants 6,111 4,535 6,111 4,535
Legal fees 1,652 1,767 1,652 1,767
Inventory consumption 115 168 115 168
Impairment of receivables (note 13) (11) (181) 11 (175)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (note 20) 36 492 36 492
Impairment of other financial assets (note 15) 353 107 32 107
Impairment of investment in subsidiaries {(note 18) 1,728 - - -
Operating lease expense 298 327 298 327
Other operating expenses 42,031 36,452 46,397 38,895
Total other expenses 79,357 65,151 81,746 67,653

ACC Accredited Employers Programme, recruitment, contract staff and Other personnel costs, totalling $2.9m have been re-classified as

Personnel costs.

* The fees paid to Audit New Zealand for other services in the year ending 30 June 2016 were for Project Management assurance over

projects in the Information Services programme of work.

The fees paid to Audit New Zealand for other services in the year ending 30 June 2015 were for the audit of the Council's 2015-2025

Consultation Document and Long-Term Plan, Long-Term Plan Amendment and other assurance services.

General grants in 2016 include a grant of $4.5m to the Ministry of Education, and represents Hamilton City Council's contribution to the cost

of building the Rototuna Indoor Recreation Centre.
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NOTE 11: TAX

Components of tax expense

Council Group
2016 2015 2016 2015
$000 $000 $000 $000
Current tax expense - - 93 136
Deferred tax expense - - 53 207
Tax expense - - 146 343
Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
Council Group
2016 2015 2016 2015
000 $S000 5000 $000
Surplus/(deficit) before tax 11,041 8,416 14,255 11,110
Tax at 28% 3,091 2,356 3,991 chilikl
Effect of tax exempt income (2,784) {2,355) (3,945) (2,999)
Taxation loss not recognised - (1) -
Equity accounted earnings of associates - - 47 24
Deferred tax adjustment - - 53 207
Tax expense - - 146 343
Movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the year
Group

Balance as at 1 July 2014
Acquired balance -

Investment Other
» i Tax losses Total
properties provisions
(1,902) - 6 138

{1,758)

Charged to surplus or deficit 23 (153) 25 (102) (207)
Charged to other comprehensive income - - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2015 (1,879) (153) 31 36 (1,965)
Acquired balance -
Charged to surplus or deficit (3) (65) 4 (25) (89)
Charged to other comprehensive income (501) - - - (501)
Balance at 30 June 2016 (2,383) (218) 35 11 (2,555)
The parent has not recognised any deferred tax assets or liabilities during the period.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:
Council Group

2016 2005 [ 2016 | 2015

000 5000 5000 $000
Tax losses - Council 132 132 136 136
Tax losses - Hamilton Properties Limited - - 134 134

132 132 270 270

Under current income tax legislation the tax losses do not expire.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items, as it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available

against which the benefit of the losses can be utilised.
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NOTE 12: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Council Group
[ 2016 | o015 [ 2016 | 2015
$000 $000 $000 $000
Cash at bank and on hand 6,964 1,745 9,080 2,070
Term deposits with maturities of less than three months at acquisition - 55,546 = 55,546
Total cash and cash equivalents 6,964 57,291 9,080 57,616

Council has a bank overdraft facility of $500k on the daily trading account that is secured by way of debenture trust deed over general rates.
At 30 June 2016 the interest rate on the facility was 1.5 per cent per annum {2015 2.25 per cent per annum).

Council has a bank overdraft facility of $10k on the direct fees account that is also secured by way of debenture trust deed over general rates.
At 30 June 2016 the interest rate was 6.0 per cent perannum (2015 6.0 per cent per annum).

The carrying value of cash at bank and term deposits with maturities less than three months approximate their fair value.

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdraft includes the following for the purposes of the statement of cash flows:

Council Group

$000 $000 $000 $000
Cash at bank and on hand 6,964 1,745 9,080 2,070
Term deposits with maturities of less than 3 months at acquisition = 55,546 - 55,546
Total 6,964 57,291 9,080 57,616
NOTE 13: RECEIVABLES

Council Group

$000 $000 $000 $000
Rates receivables 2,928 3,740 2,928 3,740
New Zealand Transport Agency 1,758 2,465 1,758 2,465
Water by meter 2,268 1,953 2,268 1,953
GST refund due 3,729 1,637 3,729 1,637
Sundry debtors 12,057 12,798 12,896 13,705
Gross debtors and other receivables 22,740 22,593 23,579 23,500
Less: Provision for impairment (3,094) (3,317) (3,094) (3,317)
Total receivables 19,646 19,276 20,485 20,183
Total receivables comprise:
Receivables from non-exchange transactions include outstanding amounts for rates,
grants, infringements, and fees and charges that are partly subsidised by rates 10;541, 9638 10,639 9638
Receivables from exchange transactions include outstanding amounts for 9,105 9,638 9,846 10,545

commercial sales and fees and charges that have not been subsidised by rates.

Fair value
Receivables are generally short-term and non-interest bearing. Therefore, the carrying value of debtors and other receivables approximates
their fair value.

Impairment

Council does provide for impairment on overdue rates on Maori freehold land. It has various powers under the Local Government (Rating)
Act 2002 to recover any outstanding debts. These powers allow Council to commence legal proceedings to cover any rates that remain
unpaid four months after the due date for payment. If payment has not been made within three months of the Court's judgement, then
Council can apply to the Registrar of the High Court to have the judgement enforced by sale or lease of the rating unit.

Ratepayers can apply for payment plan options in special circumstances.
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The ageing profile of receivables at year end is detailed below:

2016 2015
[ net | Gross |
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Coundil

Not past due 15,796 (94) 15,702 13,864 - 13,864
Past due 1-60 days 1,382 (87) 1,295 2,613 - 2,613
Past due 61-120 days 1,009 {172) 837 1,278 - 1,278
Past due > 120 days 4,553 (2,741) 1,812 4,838 (3,317) 1,521
Total 22,740 (3,094) 19,646 22,593 (3,317) 19,276
Group

Not past due 15,796 (94) 15,702 14,771 - 14,771
Past due 1-60 days 1,382 (87) 1,295 2,613 - 2,613
Past due 61-120 days 1,009 (172) 837 1,278 - 1,278
Past due > 120 days 4,553 (2,741) 1,812 4,838 (3,317) 1,521
Total 22,740 (3,094) 19,646 23,500 (3,317) 20,183

All receivables greater than 30 days in age are considered to be past due.

The impairment provision has been calculated based on a review of specific overdue receivables and a collective assessment. The collective
impairment provision is based on an analysis of past collection history and debt write-offs.

Counci Group
oo | oo | aoie | Gois
$000 $000 $000 $000
Individual impairment 392 313 392 313
Collective impairment 2,702 3,004 2,702 3,004
Total provision for impairment 3,094 3,317 3,094 3,317

Individually impaired receivables have been determined to be impaired because of the significant financial difficulties being experienced by
the debtor. An analysis of these individually impaired debtors is as follows:

Council Group
[ 2016 | 2015 | 2016 [ 2015 |
$S000 $S000 $000 S000
0 to 3 months 22 - 22 -
3 to 6 months 50 - 50 -
6 to 9 months 27 - 27 -
9to 12 months 22 4 22 4
>12 months 271 309 271 309
Total individual impairment 392 313 392 313
Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows:
Council Group
T STTCNE T T
5000 5000 S000 S000
At 1 July 3,317 5,472 3,317 5,472
Additional provisions made during the year 124 60 124 60
Provisions reversed during the year (289) (242) (289) (242)
Receivables written off during the period (58) (1,973) (58) (1,973)
At 30 June 3,094 3,317 3,094 3,317

The Council and group holds no collateral as security or other credit enhancements over receivables that are either past due or impaired.
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NOTE 14: DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Council Group

2016 2015 2006 | 2015 |

$000 $000 $000 $000
Current asset portion
Interest rate swaps - held for trading - - - -
Total - - - -
Non-current asset portion
Interest rate swaps - held for trading 1,052 - 1,052 -
Total 1,052 - 1,052 z
Total derivative financial instrument assets 1,052 - 1,052 -
Current liability portion
Interest rate swaps - held for trading 41 234 41 234
Total 41 234 41 234
Non-current liability portion
Interest rate swaps - held for trading 48,541 25,863 48,541 25,863
Total derivative financial instrument liabilities 48,541 25,863 48,541 25,863
Total net derivative financial instruments 47,530 26,097 47,530 26,097

Fair value

Interest rate swaps

The fair values of interest rate swaps have been determined by calculating the expected future cash flows under the terms of the swaps and
discounting these values to present value. The inputs into the valuation model are from independently sourced market parameters such as
interest yield curves. Most market parameters are implied from instrument prices.

Information about interest rate swaps

The notional principal amounts of outstanding interest rate swap contracts for the Council and group were $443m (2015 $420m). This
includes $64.5m (2015 $81.5m) of forward start swaps, leaving $378.5m (2015 $338.5m) in actual committed swaps at 30 June 2016. At 30
June 2016 the fixed interest rates of fair value interest rate swaps ranged from 4.02% to 5.96% (2015 4.09% to 6.45%).

The revaluation of interest rate swaps held by Council shows unrealised mark-to-market revaluation losses for 2016 of $22.4m (2015 $14.1m)
and gains of $969k (2015 Snil) as disclosed in note 8.

The Council and group currently have no fair value hedges.

Information about forward foreign exchange contracts
The Council and group currently have no foreign currency forward exchange contracts.
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NOTE 15: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Council Grou

$000 $000 $000 $000
Current portion:
Loans and receivables
Term deposits with original maturities greater than 3 months and remaining
maturities less than 12 months 41,000 5,000 41,000 5,000
Community loans 90 10 90 10
Fair value through surplus/deficdt
Equity securities managed by Gareth Morgan Investments (GMI) - - 2,855 3,240
Fixed interest instruments managed by Gareth Morgan Investments (GMI) - - 2,709 3,002
Total 41,090 5,010 46,654 11,252
Non-current portion:
Loans and receivables
Term deposits with maturities greater than 1 year 3,680 3,600 3,680 3,600
Community loans 15,947 141 15,947 141
Unlisted shares
Local Authority Shared Services Ltd {LASS) 171 254 171 254
NZ Local Government Funding Agency Ltd (LGFA) 1,866 1,866 1,866 1,866
NZ Local Government Insurance Co Ltd (Civic) 295 244 295 244
NZ Food Innovation Network Ltd (NZFIN) - - 18 20
Waikato Innovation Park Ltd (WIPL) 2,079 2,506 - -
Total 24,038 8,611 21,977 6,125
Total other finandal assets 65,128 13,621 68,631 17,377

Fair value
Term deposits
The carrying amount of term deposits approximates their fair value.

Community loans
The fair value of community loans is $16m (2015 $151k).

Staples Rodway (SR) was advanced a loan in 2012 in respect of the fit out for the BNZ building they lease from Council. The loan was repaid
in March 2015.

The Northern Districts Cricket Association Incorporated (NDC) loan was to enable them to fund their share of the Seddon Park upgrade. The
loan is due to be repaid in July 2016.

Accessible Properties Limited (AP) purchased council's housing assets in March 2016. The balance of the settlement {$18.8m) is due to be
repaid on 7 March 2019. The outstanding amount has been recorded as a community loan after discounting back to present value.

Unlisted shares

NZ Local Government Insurance Co Ltd made a net surplus for the year ended 31 December 2015 of $0.51m (31 December 2014 net deficit
$0.17m). Council has made an adjustment through surplus/(deficit) to reflect its share of the increase in net equity of the company resulting
from the surplus for the year.

New Zealand Food Innovation (Waikato) Ltd (NZFIW), Waikato Innovation Park Ltd (WIPL) and Innovation Park Ltd (IWL) became Council
Controlled Organisations (CCOs) on 9 October 2013, when Council was gifted the shares in Innovation Waikato Ltd {IWL) by the Katolyst
Group. Council has a shareholding in IWL (100%) which is recognised as a subsidiary of Council. Refer note 18, Investment in subsidiaries for
further details. IWL has 80.2% shareholding in WIPL, and the balance of 19.8% is owned directly by Council. Council has indirect control of
NZFIW, as WIPL holds 70% of NZFIW, and in turn NZFIW holds a 25% shareholding in NZ Food Innovation Network Ltd (NZFIN).

Impairment
An impairment of $83k was made to Council's investment in Local Authority Shared Services Limited to reflect Council's share of the

reduction in LASS's equity resulting from an operating loss for the year ended 30 June 2016.

In 2016 Council impaired the value of WIPL to reflect the current market valuation.

Fair value

Vibrant Hamilton Trust has a portfolio of fixed interest instruments and equity funds managed by Gareth Morgan Investments (GMI). These
investments are held for trading and classified as current assets. They are managed as a balanced portfolio to an agreed investment
mandate. After initial recognition this category of financial assets are measured at fair value with gains and losses on remeasurement
recognised in the surplus/{deficit).

Investments in unlisted shares are initially recognised at cost and subsequently measured at fair value with any movements in fair value
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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The carrying amount of other financial assets approximates their fair value.

The details of unlisted shares are summarised as follows:

Number of Council Grou
Unlisted Shares $000 $000
Local Authority Shared Services Ltd
- Ordinary 1 7.69 1 1 i il
- Shared Valuation Data 220,514 13.72 52 77 52 77
- Waikato Regional Transport Model 50,625 37.50 118 176 118 176
NZ Local Government Funding Agency Ltd 1,865,980 8.30 1,866 1,866 1,866 1,866
NZ Local Government Insurance Corporation Ltd 202,729 1.84 295 244 295 244
NZ Food Innovation {(Waikato) Ltd- uncalled capital 100 100.00 - - - -
NZ Food Innovation Network Ltd 25 25.00 - - 17 20
Waikato Innovation Park Ltd 247 19.80 2,079 2,506 - -
Total unlisted shares 4411 4,870 2,349 2,384
The weighted average interest rates for financial assets (current and non-current) were as follows:
Council Group
2016

$000 $000 $000 $000
Loan to Staples Rodway (SR} 0.00% 7.14% 0.00% 7.14%
Loan to Northern Districts Cricket Club {NDC) 5.70% 5.70% 5.70% 5.70%
Loan to Accessible Properties Ltd (AP} 0.00% - 0.00% -

Movements in loans are summarised as follows:

2016
Opening balance

Counciland Group ($000)

I T T
- 151 - 151

Advance of loan - (21) 15,947 15,926
Repayment of loan - (40) - (40)
Closing balance - 90 15,947 16,037

Council and Group ($000)

2015 NDC
Opening balance 261 - S 261
Advance of loan - 161 - 161
Repayment of loan {261) {10) - (271)
Closing balance - 151 - 151
Movements in unlisted shares are summarised as follows:
Councl| 000) Group (5000

Opening balance 2,506 254 244 1,866 20 4,890
Impairment of shares (surplus/deficit) {427) (83) - (459) (3) {462)
Closing balance 2,079 171 295 1,866 4411 17 4,428

Council ($000)

Group ($000)

Opening balance 2,506 1,866 4,977 kil 4,988
Impairment of shares (surplus/deficit) - (124) 17 - (107) 9 (98)
Closing balance 2,506 254 244 1,866 4,870 20 4,390
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NOTE 16: INVENTORY

Council Group
[ 2016 | 2015 | 2016 | 2015 |
$000 $000 $000 $000
Held for distribution inventory:
Nursery 77 91 77 91
Utilities 65 18 409 18
Total inventory 142 109 486 109

The write-down of inventory during the year was $nil (2015 Snil). There have been no reversals of write-downs (2015 $nil).

No inventory is pledged as security for liabilities (2015 $nil). However, some inventory is subject to retention of title clauses.
NOTE 17: NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Council Grou

$000 $000 $000 $000
Non-current assets held for sale are:
- Land = a & -
Total non-current assets held for sale & = = 2

There are no properties that meet the criteria required to be presented as held for sale as at 30 June 2016.
There were no properties that met the criteria required to be presented as held for sale as at 30 June 2015.

NOTE 18: INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Council Group
$000 $000 $000 $000
Hamilton Properties Ltd (HPL) 1 1 - -
Vibrant Hamilton Trust (VHT) - - - -
Innovation Waikato Ltd {IWL) 8,421 10,149 - -
Total investments in subsidiaries 8,422 10,150 - -

Council has a 100% shareholding in its subsidiary Hamilton Properties Limited and comprises 1,000 shares. Hamilton Properties Limited
remains a non-active company for the year ended 30 June 2016.

The Vibrant Hamilton Trust was incorporated on 24 August 2010 under the Charitable Trust Act 1957. The Trust was established as a Council
Controlled Organisation (CCO) as per the requirements under section 64(1) of the Local Government Act 2002 to provide a legal entity which
would receive funds from the Waikato Foundation Trust and be empowered to make distributions of income and capital for the charitable
purposes authorised in its Trust Deed.

Vibrant Hamilton Trust commenced trading on 31 January 2012, when The Waikato Foundation Trust transferred funds to the Vibrant
Hamilton Trust {65%) and the Waikato District Community Wellbeing Trust Board {35%). The Waikato Foundation Trust was subequently
disestablished.

Council has 100% shareholding in its subsidiary Innovation Waikato Ltd {IWL), when 1,247 shares were gifted to Council by the Katolyst Group
on 9 October 2013. The Katolyst Group was subsequently disestablished. In 2016 Council impaired the value of IWL to reflect the current
market valuation.

Council recognised 100% shareholding in IWL on 9 October 2013 based on the fair value of the IWL Group net equity as at 30 September
2013, $10.149m (i.e. 80.2% of $12.655m). Based on using the same fair value of the IWL Group net assets as at 30 September 2013, Council
reflected a gain on the shares in WIPL of $106k, which increased the Council's investment to $2.506m (i.e. 19.8% of $12.655m).

Council has utlilised the following IWL Group financial results for the year ended 30 June 2016 for the Group consolidation. An adjustment
has been made to eliminate intercompany revenue and expenses in the Statement of comprehensive revenue and expense.
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Innovation Waikato Limited (Group) 2016 m

$000 $000
Assets 50,061 39,976
Liabilities 30,648 23,006
Equity 19,413 16,970
Revenue 10,099 7,790
Expenditure 8,945 6,545
Surplus/(deficit) after tax 1,154 1,245
Other comprehensive income 1,288 0
Total comprehensive revenue and expense 2,442 1,245

NOTE 19: INVESTMENTS IN COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS

Section 4(3) of the Local Government (Financial Reporting) Regulations 2011, requires Council to present a single Council Controlled
Organisation (CCO) investment sum in the Statement of financial position. Council has decided to disclose the total CCO investment amount
in a note to the financial statements.

The three related entities, NZ Food Innovation (Waikato) Ltd (NZFIW), Waikato Innovation Park Ltd (WIPL) and Innovation Waikato Ltd (IWL)
became CCOs of Council on 9 October 2013 when the shares in IWL were gifted to Council by the Katolyst Group. Refer to notes15and 18
for further information.

Council Group

$000 $000 $000 $000
Investment in subsidiaries
Hamilton Properties Ltd (HPL) 1 1 - -
Innovation Waikato Ltd (IWL) 8,421 10,149 - -
Vibrant Hamilton Trust (VHT) - - - -
Investment in associates
Waikato Regional Airport Ltd (WRAL) 7,430 7,430 32,203 29,835
Other financial assets
Local Authority Shared Services Ltd {LASS) 171 254 171 254
NZ Local Government Insurance Co Ltd (Civic) 295 244 295 244
NZ Local Government Funding Agency Ltd (LGFA) 1,866 1,866 1,866 1,866
NZ Food innovation (Waikato) Ltd (NZFIW) - - - -
Waikato Innovation Park Ltd (WIPL) 2,079 2,506 - -
Total investments in Council Controlled Organisations 20,263 22,450 34,535 32,199
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VALUATION
Previous
Most recent .
2 Date of estimate of Date of
estimate of H i
estimate replacement estimate
replacement cost
cost
$000 $000
Roads & footpaths 1,126,803 30 June 2016 1,077,387 30 June 2015
Water
- Treatment and facilities 101,432 30 June 2016 96,439 30 June 2015
- Other 373,002 30 June 2016 411,807 30 June 2015
Sewerage
- Treatment and facilities 87,889 30 June 2016 84,125 30 June 2015
- Other 519,098 30 June 2016 452,311 30 June 2015
Stormwater 755,822 30 June 2016 529,235 30 June 2015
Flood protection & control ) 30 June 2016 _ 30 June 2015

works

Land (operational, restricted, infrastructural and
parks and gardens)

Land is valued at fair value using market-based evidence
based on its highest and best use with reference to
comparable land values. Adjustments have been made to
the "unencumbered" land value where there is a
designation against the land or the use of the land is
restricted because of reserve or endowment status. These
adjustments are intended to reflect the negative effect on
the value of the land where an owner is unable to use the
land more intensively.

The most recent valuation was performed by independent
valuers, Lynda McNamara, M.Com (VPM), and lan
Sutherland, BBS (VPM), ANZIV of QV Asset & Advisory, and
the valuation was effective as at 30 June 2016.

Buildings (operational)

Specialised buildings are valued at fair value using
depreciated replacement cost because no reliable market
data is available for such buildings.

Depreciated replacement cost is determined using a
number of significant assumptions. Significant assumptions
include:

¢ The replacement asset is based on the replacement
with modern equivalent assets with adjustments
where appropriate for obsolescence due to over-
design or surplus capacity.

e  The replacement cost is derived from recent
construction contracts of similar assets and Property
Institute of New Zealand cost information.

e  The remaining useful life of assets is estimated.

s  Straight-line depreciation has been applied in
determining the depreciated replacement cost value
of the asset.

Non-specialised buildings (for example residential
buildings) are valued at fair value using market-based
evidence. Market rents and capitalisation rates were
applied to reflect fair value.

The most recent valuation was performed by independent
valuers, Kees Beentjes BSc, BE (Hons), Asset Management
Consultant for SPM Assets Ltd, and reviewed by C Jenkins
BE (Civil) (First Class Honours), MIPENZ, MInstD of SPM
Assets Ltd, Lynda McNamara, M.Com (VPM) and lan
Sutherland, BBS (VPM), ANZIV of QV Asset & Advisory. The
valuation was effective as at 30 June 2016.

Heritage assets

Library Heritage collection (Central Library Reference
Collection) is valued at fair value. Major collection items
have been valued separately or by formulae based on
quantity measurements and determined by details
provided by a random cross section sampling methodology.

The most recent valuation for the Library Reference
Collection was performed by Pam Plumbly, Rare Book
Consultant of Art + Object, The 21> Century Auction House,
and James Parkinson, Director of Valuations and Collections
Management of Art + Object. The last revaluation was
effective as at 1 July 2014.

Museum Heritage Collection is valued at fair value using
various methods as follows:

a) Reference to observable prices in an active
market. Where that market exists for the same
or similar asset the market prices are deemed to
be fair value. The values ascribed are primarily
based on observable prices in both the primary
retail market and the secondary auction market.

b) If there is no active market, fair value is
determined by other market based evidence
adjudged by the valuers as active and
knowledgeable participants in the market.
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When ascribing values, consideration was given to the
following:

e  Historical and cultural significance recognising
that there is a strong trend in sales that reflect
this significance

s  Comparison with the values ascribed to the value
of similar items held in other institutions.

e  Recentauction catalogue sales nationally and/or
internationally. These values are known by the
valuer’s attendance at sales as well as by access
to numerous auction houses and on line data
base records, such as the Australian Art Sales
Digest which tracks sales results across all of the
major auction houses in Australasia.

The most recent valuation for the Museum Heritage
Collection was performed by Ben Plumbly, Director Art of
Art + Object, The 21 Century Auction House, and James
Parkinson, Director of Valuations and Collections
Management of Art + Object. The last revaluation was
effective as at 1 July 2014.

Parks and gardens improvements

Parks and gardens improvements are valued at fair value
using depreciated replacement cost because no reliable
market data is available for such assets.

Depreciated replacement cost is determined using a
number of significant assumptions. Significant assumptions
include:

e  Thereplacement asset is based on the replacement
with modern equivalent assets with adjustments
where appropriate for obsolescence due to over-
design or surplus capacity.

In arriving at the value, it is assumed that modern
construction techniques and modern equivalent materials
are used, but that the physical asset replaces the asset as it
exists.

Where possible, replacement rates have been based on the
recent actual construction costs. Where this information
wasn’t available, rates have been calculated based on
those used in the last revaluation adjusted by the
appropriate cost adjustment factor, which was calculated
based upon the methodology defined in Appendix A of the
New Zealand Standards for Conditions of Contract for
Buildings and Civil Engineering Construction, NZS 3910.

The default construction date was assumed to be 50% of
the Total Useful Life (TUL) —unless it is otherwise stated —
and only used where there was no construction date.

Straight-line depreciation has been applied in determining
the depreciated replacement cost value of the asset.

The most recent valuation was performed by Mectildah
Chikwiri BSc (Computer, Statistics) and Hannah Helleur
BSocSc {(Hons) of Hamilton City Council and reviewed by B
Smith B Com CA of Brian Smith Advisory Services Ltd, and
Sarah Seel, Principal Asset Management Consultant, of
AECOM New Zealand Ltd. The valuation was effective as at
1 July 2014.

Infrastructural asset classes: water reticulation,
wastewater reticulation and pump stations,
stormwater, refuse, water and wastewater
treatment plants, water reservoirs and roading
assets (excluding land)

Water reticulation, wastewater reticulation and pump
stations, stormwater, refuse, water and wastewater
treatment plants, water reservoirs and roading assets
(excluding land) are valued at depreciated replacement
cost.

There are a number of estimates and assumptions
exercised when valuing infrastructural assets using the
depreciated replacement cost method. These include:

e  Estimating any obsolescence or surplus capacity
of the asset.

e  Estimating the replacement cost of the asset. The
replacement cost is derived from recent
construction contracts in the region for similar
assets.

s  Estimates of the remaining useful life over which
the asset will be depreciated. These estimates
can be affected by the local conditions, for
example weather patterns, soil types and traffic
growth. If useful lives do not reflect the actual
consumption of the benefits of the asset, then
HCC could be over or under estimating the
annual depreciation charge recognised as an
expense in the statement of comprehensive
income. To minimise this risk, infrastructural
asset lives have been determined with reference
to the NZ Infrastructural Asset Valuation and
Depreciation Guidelines published by the
National Asset Management Steering Group, and
have been adjusted for local conditions based on
past experience. Asset inspections, deterioration
and condition-modelling are also carried out
regularly as part of asset management planning
activities, which provides further assurance over
useful life estimates.

The most recent valuation for water reticulation,
wastewater reticulation and pump stations and stormwater
was performed by Emily Botje, CPeng (Int)., MBA, BTech
(Hons), Water Asset Manager of Hamilton City Council and
reviewed by B Smith B Com CA of Brian Smith Advisory
Services. The valuation was effective 1 July 2015.

The most recent valuation for refuse, water and
wastewater treatment plants, and water reservoirs was
performed by Sarah Seel, Principal Asset Management
Consultant, of AECOM New Zealand Ltd, and the valuation
was effective 1 July 2013.

The most recent valuation for roading assets (excluding
land) was performed by Robert Berghuis, Senior Plant and
Machinery Valuer), of Beca Valuations Ltd (New Zealand),
and the valuation was effective as at 1 July 2013.
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Disposals

The sale of the Council owned Housing Services
Portfolio to another housing services provider was
completed in March 2016. Proceeds after costs
from this sale have been allocated to the Domain
Endowment Fund {$2.8m) and the balance used to
pay off debt. The net loss on disposal of the land
and buildings was $7.5m.

During the year, the land located at 83 Riverlea
Road, Hamilton was sold to the Riverlea Theatre &
Art Centre Incorporated, which was completed in
June 2016. The proceeds from the sale were used
to pay off debt, and the net loss on disposal was
$986k.

Operational assets {for buildings, parks and gardens
improvements, vehicles and miscellaneous plant &
equipment) were replaced during the year due to
failure, or obsolescence. The carrying amount of
$1.8m was recognised as a loss on disposal.

Infrastructure assets {for roading, water supply,
waste- water and stormwater reticulation) were
replaced during the year due to failure, or
obsolescence. The carrying amount of $2.1m was
recognised as a loss on disposal.

The net loss on disposal of Property, Plant and
Equipment {$12.5m) has been recognised in the
Statement of comprehensive revenue and expense
in the line items “Property, plant, and equipment
gain on disposal” and “Property, plant, and
equipment loss on disposal”.

Impairment

Impairment losses totalling $35k {2015 $550k) have
been recognised for Property, plant and
equipment.

This relates items of miscellaneous plant and
equipment located at the pools and libraries that
have deteriorated to such a stage that their
remaining useful life was less than their recorded
remaining useful life. This has been recognised in
Other expenses in the Statement of comprehensive
revenue and expense.

Leasehold improvements

Fit-out improvements are made to buildings which
are not owned by Council, but are occupied by
Council under lease. The non-removable assets
created are depreciated over the life of the lease,
while removable assets are recorded as plant and
equipment.

Finance leases

The net carrying amount of plant and equipment
held under finance leases is $646k {2015 $1.6m)
and relates to information and communication
technology.

Uninsured assets

Since 1 July 2013 Council has insurance cover for
material damage for the underground pipe
networks, bridges and reservoirs. This is cover in
the event of a major incident or disaster. The road
network assets remain uninsured.

Restrictions

Land in the “Restricted Asset” category is subject to
either restrictions on use, or disposal, or both. This
includes restrictions from legislation {such as land
declared as a reserve under the Reserves Act 1977),
or other restrictions {such as land under a bequest
or donation that restricts the purpose for which the
asset can be used)
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Work in progress

Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction by class of asset are detailed as follows:

206 | 2015 |

$000 $000
Operational assets
- Land 32 6
- Buildings 3,796 3,955
- Land — parks and gardens 22 470
- Improvement — parks and gardens 4,946 4,957
- Plant and equipment 2,223 3,941
- Vehicles 355 114
- Library Books 5 308
- Zoo Animals 12 63
- Leasehold Improvements - -
Restricted Assets
- Land - -
Heritage Assets
- Museum and library 25 -
Infrastructure Assets
- Land 31 134
- Refuse 273 1,950
- Roads and traffic network 11,948 16,621
- Land under roads 0 994
- Stormwater system 1,073 3,158
- Wastewater system 5,892 10,963
- Wastewater treatment plant 2,767 1,848
- Water system 15,122 10,479
- Water treatment station 3,300 2,699
TOTAL 51,822 62,660

The decrease in value relates to the increasing focus on the management of asset data and the capitalisation of

assets.
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NOTE 21: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are defined as identifiable non-monetary assets without physical form. Amortisation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable
amount of an intangible asset over its useful life.

Council and Group

Infrastructural Computer Consents & Total
Modelling Software Designations
$000 000

$000 $S000 $000

Cost
Balance as at 1 July 2015 2,635 236 16,277 10,502 29,650
Additions - 151 2,699 - 2,850
Disposals - - - - -
Change in Work in Progress
- Opening WIP 483 20 2,492 326 3,321
- Closing WIP 2,128 - 1,089 441 3,658

1,645 (20) (1,403) 115 337
Balance as at 30 June 2016 4,280 367 17,573 10,617 32,837
Balance as at 1 July 2014 - 162 15,276 6,317 21,755
Additions 2,152 55 4,750 4,611 11,568
Disposals - - - - -
Change in Work in Progress
- Opening WIP - 1 6,241 752 6,994
- Closing WIP 483 20 2,492 326 3,321

483 19 (3,749) (426) (3,673)

Balance as at 30 June 2015 2,635 236 16,277 10,502 29,650
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance as at 1 July 2015 (211) (25) (6,947) (2,741) (9,924)
Amortisation charge (43) (48) (2,612) (375) (3,078)
Impairment - - - - -
Amortisation reversed on disposal - - - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2016 (254) (73) (9,559) (3,116) (13,002)
Balance asat 1 July 2014 - (11) (5,308) (2,347) (7,666)
Amortisation charge (211) (14) (1,603) (394) (2,222)
Amortisation reversed on disposal - - (36) - (36)
Balance as at 30 June 2015 (211) (25) (6,947) (2,741) (9,924)
Carrying amounts
Balance asat 1 July 2014 - 151 9,968 3,970 14,089
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2015 2,424 211 9,330 7,761 19,726
Balance as at 30 June 2016 4,026 294 8,014 7,501 19,835

Restrictions over title
There are no restrictions over the title of intangible assets. No assets are pledged for security for liabilities.

Impairment
No intangible assets have been impaired (2015 $nil).
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NOTE 22: DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE BY GROUP OF ACTIVITY

Council Grou
2016 2015 2016 m

5000 S000 S000 S000

Directly attributable depreciation and amortisation expense by group of activity

Arts and Culture 2,721 1,396 2,721 1,39
Community Support 807 193 807 193
Economic Development 5,193 2,559 5,193 2,559
Parks and Green Spaces 3,253 2,357 3,253 2,357
Recreation 1,382 642 1,382 642
Rubbish and Recycling 372 292 372 292
Safety 86 51 86 51
Sewerage 9,056 8,312 9,056 8,312
Stormwater 8,013 5,623 8,013 5,623
Transport 18,503 17,935 18,503 17,935
Water Supply 6,660 6,949 6,660 6,949
Total directly attributable depreciation and amortisation by group of activity 56,046 46,309 56,046 46,309
Depreciation and amortisation not directly related to group of activities* 4,370 10,969 5,455 11,796
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 60,416 57,278 61,501 58,105

*Depreciation was charged to Property (support unit) in 2015 and charged to an activity in 2016.

Depreciation actuals for 2015 have been restated due in changes in activities.
NOTE 23: INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Council Grou
2016 2015 2016 h

$000 $000 $000 $000
Balance at 1 July 24,139 41,203 39,839 55,703
Additions from acquisitions - - - -
Additions from subsequent expenditure 22 - 9,185 14
Disposals (2,120) {17,305) {2,120) {17,305)
Fair value gains/({losses) on valuation {note 8) 2,754 241 3,541 1,427
Balance at 30 June 24,795 24,139 50,445 39,839

The valuation of investment property was performed by R A Smithers an independent valuer from Telfer Young (Waikato) Limited and P A
Curnow an independent valuer from Curnow Tizard Limited. Telfer Young {(Waikato) Limited and Curnow Tizard Limited are experienced
valuers with extensive market knowledge in the types and locations of investment properties owned by the Council.

The fair value of investment property has been determined using the capitalisation of net revenue and discounted cash flow methods. These
methods are based upon assumptions including future rental revenue, anticipated maintenance costs, and appropriate discount rates.

Information about revenue and expenses in relation to investment property is detailed below:

Council Group
2016 2015 2016 | 2015 |
S000 S000 000 S000
Rental revenue 2,256 3,120 2,256 3,120
Direct operating expenses from investment property generating revenue 1,851 2,172 1,851 2,172
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NOTE 24: INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

Council Group
$000 $000 $000 $000
Waikato Regional Airport Limited 7430 7,430 32,203 29,835
Total 7,430 7,430 32,203 29,835

Summarised financial information of associate presented on a gross basis

Assets

Liabilities
Revenue
Surplus/({deficit)
Group's interest

Number of shares
Balance date

$000 $000
82,115 78,543
17,898 18,874
8,079 7,765
338 169
50.00% 50.00%
2,486,802 2,486,802
30 June 30June

Details of any contingent liabilities arising from the group's involvement in an associate are disclosed separately in note 32.

Waikato Regional Airport Limited is an unlisted company.

NOTE 25: PAYABLES AND DEFERRED REVENUE

Council Grou
[ o [ oo o [ o5
$000 $000 $000 $000

Current portion
Payables and deferred revenue under exchange transactions
Trade payables and accrued expenses 31,095 25,492 32,684 29,620
Income in advance 2,874 3,177 2,374 3,177
Amounts due to subsidiaries and associates - - - -
Amounts due to customers for contract work 1,243 632 1,243 632
Total 35,212 29,301 36,301 33,429
Payables and deferred revenue under non-exchange transactions
Trade payables and accrued expenses 259 1,250 259 1,250
Income in advance 1,816 1,622 1,816 1,622
Income tax payable - - - -
Other taxes payable (Fringe benefit tax) 27 33 27 33
Total 2,102 2,905 2,102 2,905
Non-current portion
Payables and deferred revenue under exchange transactions
Income in advance - - 606 512
Total - - 606 512
Total payables and deferred revenue 37,314 32,206 39,009 36,846

Payables are generally non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms.
approximates their fair value.
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NOTE 26: PROVISIONS

Council Group
o6 | oois [ aoie 1 a0is ]
5000 5000 $S000 5000
Current portion
Restructuring provision 96 753 9% 753
WorkSafe fine 350 - 350 -
Weathertight homes resolution services claims 970 763 970 763
Landfill aftercare 1,281 703 1,281 703
Total 2,697 2,219 2,697 2,219
Non-current portion
Landfill aftercare 12,559 8,477 12,559 8,477
Loan repayment provision - - 189 171
Total 12,559 8477 12,748 8,648
Total provisions 15,256 10,696 15,445 10,867
Council Group
Weather-
WorkSafe tightness Loan
Restructuring fine claims Landfill Total Councl repayment Total Group
5000 $000 $000 5000 5000 $000 5000

2015
Balance at 1 July 2014 - - 1,063 8,746 9,809 - 9,809
Additional provisions made 753 - 100 681 1,534 171 1,705
Amounts used - - {300) {859) {1,159) - {1,159)
Unused amount reversed - - {100) - {100} - (100)
Discount unwind (note 6) - - - 612 612 - 612
Balance at 30 June 2015 753 - 763 9,180 10,696 171 10,867
2016
Balance at 1 July 2015 753 - 763 9,180 10,696 171 10,867
Additional provisions made - 350 207 5,080 5,637 18 5,655
Amounts used {605) - - (1,063) (1,668) - (1,668)
Unused amount reversed (52) - - - (52) - (52)
Discount unwind (note 6) - - - 643 643 - 643
Balance at 30 June 2016 96 350 970 13,840 15,256 189 15,445

Weathertight homes resolution services claims provision

Three claims have been lodged with the Weathertight Homes Resolution Service (WHRS) as at 30 June 2016 (2015 5 claims). These claims relate
to weathertightness issues of homes in Hamilton and name the Council as well as other parties. The WHRS is a central government service
established under the Weathertightness Homes Resolution Services Act 2006.

Two claims {2015 1 claim) lodged via the court system are outstanding with an estimated liability of $670k (2015 $250k).

Total estimated exposure is $970k (2015 $763k). This represents an overall increase of $207k for the vear.

Landfill aftercare costs
Council is responsible for four closed landfill sites - Horotiu, Willoughby, Cobham Drive and Rototuna.

Council's aftercare responsibilities include ongoing maintenance and monitoring such as the following:
- treatment and monitoring of leachate

- groundwater and surface monitoring

- gas monitoring and recovery

- implementation of remedial measures such as need for cover and control systems

- ongoing site maintenance for drainage systems, final cover and control.

The cash outflows for the landfills are expected to occur until 2049. The long-term nature of the liability means that there are inherent
uncertainties in estimating costs that will be incurred.

The following significant assumptions have been made in calculating the provision:
- a discount rate of 7.0% (2015 7.0%)
- an inflation rate of 2.8% {2015 3.2%)
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Restructuring

In response to the restructuring plan announced by the Chief Executive on 14 May 2015 a provision was established on 30 June 2015 to cover the
associated costs. By 30 June 2016 $657k had been used leaving a balance of $96k. This will be used to cover the remaining costs of the
restructure that will be incurred in 2016-17.

WorkSafe fine
Hamilton City Council has entered a guilty plea in relation to a charge laid by WorkSafe New Zealand over the death of the Zoo Curator at the
Hamilton Zoo.

Loan repayment

A subsidiary of Innovation Waikato Limited, New Zealand Food Innovation (Waikato) Limited, entered into a contract to lease a factory and
received a loan for equipment. If the lease is not renewed on 1st September 2019, one third of the loan is repayable on that date. A provision has
been created, discounted to present value, for one third of the loan.

ACC partnership programme

Council belongs to the ACC Employer Reimbursement Agreement whereby Council accepts the financial responsibility of work related illnesses
and accidents of employees. Under this agreement Council is effectively providing accident insurance to employees for work related accidents
equal to 80% of the first week of absence from work. No provision has been made for any outstanding liability at balance date as the liability is
not material for Council's financial statements based on payments made in prior years.

Council manages its exposure arising from the programme by promoting a safe and healthy working environment by:

- implementing and monitoring health and safety policies

- induction training on health and safety

- actively managing injuries to ensure employees return to work as soon as practical

- recording and monitoring work place injuries and near misses to identify risk areas and implementing mitigating actions
- identification of work place hazards and implementation of appropriate safety procedures

NOTE 27: EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS

Council Group

2016 2015

5000 5000 $S000 5000
Current portion
Accrued pay 1,024 1,915 1,024 1,915
Annual leave 4,548 4,560 4,548 4,560
Sick leave 203 214 203 214
Retiring gratuities 268 349 268 349
Total 6,043 7,038 6,043 7,038
Non-current portion
Retiring gratuities 1,068 881 1,068 881
Total 1,068 881 1,068 881
Total employee entitlements 7,111 7,919 7,111 7,919

Key assumptions in measuring retiring gratuity obligations

The present value of retiring gratuity obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis. Two key assumptions
used in calculating this liability include the discount rate and the salary inflation factor. Any changes in these assumptions will affect the carrrying
amount of the liability.

Retiring gratuities that are due to be settled beyond 12 months after the end of the financial year have been calculated on an actuarial basis. The
calculations are based on:

- likely future entitlements accruing to staff, based on years of service, years to entitlement, the likelihood that staff will reach the point of
entitlement and contractual entitlement information; and

- the present value of the estimated future cash flows.

91 HAMILTON CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

Attachments Page 94



Council b Hamilton City Council
29 September 2016

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

NOTE 28: BORROWINGS

Council Group
$000 $000 $000 $000

Current

Secured loans 73,000 56,000 89,378 62,255
Lease liabilities 400 375 400 375
Total current borrowings 73,400 56,375 89,778 62,630
Non-current

Secured loans 290,000 340,000 299,340 349,783
Unsecured loans 976 290 976 290
Lease liabilities 513 699 513 699
Total non-current borrowings 291,489 340,989 300,829 350,772
Total borrowings 364,889 397,364 390,607 413,402

Total overall debt
Total overall debt is Council's debt performance measure that was put in place for the 2015-2025 10-Year Plan.

Council restricted reserves and the council cash-backed reserves are held in cash and are not used to reduce external borrowing
requirements as they are held for a specific purpose and may be utilised at any time.

Council Group
$000 $000 $000 $000
Total borrowings {excluding bank overdraft) 364,889 397,364 390,607 413,402
less: Cash investments (note 12) (6,964) (57,291) {(9,080) (57,616)
less: Term deposits (note 15) (44,680) (8,600) (44,680) (8,600)
plus: Restricted and cash-backed reserves 34,760 35,783 34,760 35,783
Total overall debt 348,005 367,256 371,607 382,969

Interest terms for secured loans

Council has $28m of its total debt of $363m issued at fixed rates of interest (2015 $40m of $396m). The remainder of Council’s secured loans
are issued at floating rates of interest. For floating rate debt, the interest rate is reset quarterly based on the 90-day bank bill rate plus a
margin for credit risk.

Council uses synthetic instruments {swaps and FRAs) to manage the interest rate risk profile based on independent professional advice {see
note 14).

Security

Council's secured loans have been issued in accordance with the Local Government Act 2002.

The loans are secured through the debenture trust deed over all rates, with the exception of $18m (2015 $30m) of Commercial Paper that has
a maturity of three months or less.

Finance lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessor in the event of default.

Unsecured loans
Council has an unsecured loan of $976k (2015 $290k) being the NZTA advance funded portion of the Cambridge Road to Cobham Drive section
of the Ring Road. The loan is due for repayment at the later of 1 July 2019 or the completion of the works.

Fair values
The carrying amounts of borrowings repayable within one year approximate their fair value as the effect of discounting is not significant.

Due to interest rates on debt resetting to the market rate every three months, the carrying amounts of the majority of secured loans
approximates their fair value. There is a $10m secured loan that has been issued at a fixed rate and has greater than 12 months to maturity.
The fair value of this loan is $11.32m (2015 $10.629m). Fair value has been determined using contractual cash flows discounted using a rate
based on market borrowing rates at balance date of 2.65% (2015 3.84%).
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Analysis of lease liabilities

Council Group

$000 5000 5000 5000
Total minimum finance lease payments payable:
Not later than one year 452 440 452 440
Later than one and not later than five years 556 762 556 762
Later than five years - - - -
Total minimum finance lease payments 1,008 1,202 1,008 1,202
Future finance charges {95) {128) (95) (128)
Present value of minimum finance lease payments 913 1,074 913 1,074
Present value of minimum finance lease payments payable:
Not later than one year 400 375 400 375
Later than one and not later than five years 513 699 513 699
Later than five years - - - -
Total minimum finance lease payments 913 1,074 913 1,074
Current portion 400 375 400 375
Non-current portion 513 699 513 699
Total finance lease liability 913 1,074 913 1,074
Interest rate

The interest rates applying to lease liabilities for 2016 range from 3.14% to 6.68% (2015 range from 3.89% to 7.31%).
Description of material leasing arrangements
Council has entered into finance leases for various plant and equipment. The net carrying amount of leased items within each class of property,

plant and equipment is included in the numbers disclosed in note 20.

The finance leases can be renewed at Council's option, with rents set by reference to current market rates for items of equivalent age and
condition. Council does have the option to purchase the asset at the end of the lease term.

There are no restrictions placed on Council by any of the finance leasing arrangements.

Internal borrowings

Internal borrowings apply to Council created reserves that are not supported by cash. These are the Reserves Contribution Fund and Rotokauri
Land Sale Reserves both of which support the Parks and Green Spaces activity.

The interest earned by these reserves is an internal interest allocation, based on the weighted average cost of borrowing to Council less 0.5%.

During 2015 Council chose to support the Bus Shelter Reserve, Project Watershed Reserve and Waste Minimisation Reserve with cash and as
such they are no longer subject to internal borrowings. These reserves support the Solid Waste, Stormwater and Transportation activities.

Balance & Balance

2016 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Parks and Green Spaces 4,940 (2,634) 134 280 2,720
Sewerage - - - - -
Stormwater - - - - -
Transport - - - - -
Total internal borrowings 4,940 (2,634) 134 280 2,720
R
2015 $000 S000 $000 S000 $000
Parks and Green Spaces 4,979 (480) 218 223 4,940
Sewerage 508 (508) - - -
Stormwater 480 (480) - - -
Transport 305 (305) - - -
Total internal borrowings 6,272 (1,773) 218 223 4,940
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NOTE 29: EQUITY

Council Group
[ 2015 |
$000 $000 $000 $000

Accumulated funds
Balance 1 July 1,611,331 1,618,890 1,626,982 1,632,122
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 11,041 8,416 14,011 10,767
Transfer from property revaluation reserve on disposal 16,406 2,318 16,406 2,318
Transfers from restricted and Council created reserves 9,664 1:725 9,664 1,725
Transfers to restricted and Council created reserves (6,327) {20,018) {6,327) {(20,018)
Gain on Non Controlling Interest - - - 1,685
Transfer to asset revaluation reserve (14) - (14) (1,617)
Balance at 30 June 1,642,101 1,611,331 1,660,722 1,626,982
Restricted and Council created reserves
Balance at 1 July 40,817 22,524 40,817 22,524
Transfers from accumulated funds 6,327 20,018 6,327 20,018
Transfers to accumulated funds (9,664) {(1,725) (9,664) (1,725)
Balance at 30 June 37,480 40,817 37,480 40,817
Revaluation reserve
Balanceat 1 July 1,264,383 1,230,603 1,280,727 1,245,330
Transfer to accumulated funds on disposal of assets (16,406) (2,318) (16,406) (2,318)
Impairment (95) - (95)
Revaluation gains/(losses) - property, plant and equipment 271,523 36,193 274,624 36,193
Revaluation gains/(losses) - share of associates' reserves - - - -
Other movements - - - 1,617
Revaluation gains/{losses) - shareholdings (106) - (106) -
Balance at 30 June 1,519,394 1,264,383 1,538,839 1,280,727
Property revaluation reserves for each class consist of:
Operational assets
Buildings 110,623 97,021 112,823 97,021
Plant and equipment - 2,907 2,006
Heritage assets 11,284 11,284 11,284 11,284
Land 32,135 37,593 32,135 37,593
Parks and gardens improvement 21,170 21,178 21,170 21,178
Parks and gardens land 256,825 170,912 256,825 170,912
Restricted assets
Land 10,088 6,686 10,088 6,686
Infrastructure assets
Land 16,220 13,309 16,220 13,309
Refuse 39,419 39,461 39,419 39,461
Roads and streets 306,545 307,538 306,545 307,538
Stormwater 372,782 223,353 372,782 223,353
Wastewater 201,338 160,450 201,338 160,450
Wastewater treatment station 12,582 12,582 12,582 12,582
Water treatment station 10,627 10,627 10,627 10,627
Water Supply 117,756 152,283 117,756 152,283
Total 1,519,394 1,264,277 1,524,501 1,266,283
Fair value through other comprehensive revenue and expense reserve
Balance at 1 July 106 106 14,444 14,444
Net change in fair value {106) - {106) -
Balance at 30 June - 106 14,338 14,444
Total reserves 1,556,874 1,305,200 1,576,319 1,321,544
Non controlling interest - - 1,800 1,315
Total equity 3,198,975 2,916,531 3,238,841 2,949,841
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Information about reserve funds held for a specific purpose is provided below:

Reserve) Activities to which the Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
reserve relates 1July into fund out of fund 30 June
$000 $000 $000 $000
2016
Cemetery plot maintenance in perpetuity Cemeteries and Crematorium 1,701 97 (94) 1,704
reserve
Domain Endowment Fund Parks and Green Spaces and Stormwater 1,778 659 (97) 2,340
Municipal Endowment Fund Strategic property investment 27,000 1,422 - 28,422
Waikato Art Gallery Endowment reserve  Arts promotion 9 - - 9
Dame Hilda Ross Children's Library Libraries i - (1) -
Memorial Fund
Roman Catholic Schools Library Fund Libraries 2 - 2) -
Total restricted reserves - 2016 30,491 2,178 (194) 32,475
Bus shelter reserve Travel demand management 337 185 {216) 306
Project Watershed operating reserve Parks and Green Spaces and Stormwater 953 378 {362) 969
Hamilton Gardens reserve Parks and Green Spaces 468 2,470 (2,255) 683
Housing upgrade reserve Housing 3,420 141 (3,561) -
Rotokauri land sale reserve Strategic property investment 2,274 125 (2,399) -
Reserves contribution fund Strategic property investment 2,666 289 {235) 2,720
Waste minimisation reserve Waste minimisation 208 561 {(442) 327
Total Council created reserves - 2016 10,326 4,149 (9,470) 5,005
Total restricted and Council created reserves - 2016 40,817 6,327 (9,664) 37,480

Resane Activities to which the Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
reserve relates 1 July intofund | out of fund 30 June
$000 $000 $000 $000
2015
Cemetery plot maintenance in perpetuity Cemeteries and Crematorium 1,695 87 (81) 1,701
Domain Endowment Fund Parks and Green Spaces and Stormwater 1,778 - - 1,778
Municipal Endowment Fund Strategic property investment 9,435 17,565 - 27,000
Waikato Art Gallery Endowment reserve  Arts promotion 9 - - 9
Dame Hilda Ross Children's Library Libraries il - - 1
Memorial Fund
Roman Catholic Schools Library Fund Libraries 2 - - 2
Total restricted reserves - 2015 12,920 17,652 (81) 30,491
Bus shelter reserve Travel demand management 305 69 (37) 337
Project Watershed operating reserve Parks and Green Spaces and Stormwater 960 564 {571) 953
Hamilton Gardens reserve Parks and Green Spaces - 609 (141) 468
Housing upgrade reserve Housing 3,332 164 (76) 3,420
Rotokauri land sale reserve Strategic property investment 2,167 107 - 2,274
Reserves contribution fund Strategic property investment 2,332 334 - 2,666
Waste minimisation reserve Waste minimisation 508 519 {819) 208
Total Council created reserves - 2015 9,604 2,366 (1,644) 10,326
Total restricted and Council created reserves - 2015 22,524 20,018 (1,725) 40,817
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Purpose of each reserve fund:

Restricted reserves 2016

Cemetery plot maintenance in perpetuity reserve - To maintain and provide for improvements to the cemeteries.

Domain endowment fund reserve - Established by the Hamilton Domain Endowment Act 1979 to provide a capital endowment fund for
domain land for investment in property. Rental income and interest earned from domain endowment land is used to fund parks and reserves

operating costs.

Municipal Endowment Fund - To provide a capital fund for Crown endowment land vested in the council for investment in property. Rental
income and interest earned from the land and property may be used for council purposes to offset rates.

Waikato Art Gallery Endowment reserve - To provide funds for the acquisition of works of art for the Waikato Museum of Art and History.
Dame Hilda Ross Children's Library Memorial Fund - To manage a bequest by Dame Hilda Ross given for the purpose of extending the
children's collection in the Dame Hilda Ross Memorial Arts Centre {Children's Library). Only the interest from the fund may be used for

purchases.
Roman Catholic Schools Library Fund - To manage a bequest made for the purpose of extending the children's collection in the Children's

Library. The interest income from the fund may be used for children's book collection purchases.

Council Created Reserves 2016

Bus shelter reserve - To manage the income generated from advertising in bus shelters to provide, maintain and enhance passenger
infrastructure.

Project Watershed operating reserve - To fund works relating to river flood protection and erosion control (Project Watershed). Waikato
Regional Council is the funding agency and Hamilton City Council carries out agreed works within the city boundary.

Hamilton Gardens reserve - To provide funds for the development of Hamilton Gardens. Funds are being sourced from a target rate over a four
year period starting 2014/15.

Housing upgrade reserve - To assist in improving council owned housing. There is no specific plan to use this reserve for the coming ten years
while the council considers its future role in this activity.

Rotokauri land sale reserve - To manage funds derived from the sale of land in Foreman Road. These funds are for a purchase of land reserves
in the Rotokauri growth cell.

Reserves contribution fund - This fund receives contributions from Council policy on levying sub-dividers and developers for provision of
reserves. Payment may be in kind {land) or a pro rata levy on the value of the development. The balance of the fund is used for the purchase of
land for reserves (or the development of same). Reserve contributions were levied on sub-divisions approved prior to the advent of
development contributions for reserves which came into effect on 1 July 2006.

Waste minimisation reserve - To encourage a reduction in the amount of waste generated and disposed of in New Zealand, and to lessen the
environmental harm of waste. The reserve was created in 2009 as a result of the Waste Minimisation Act 2008. Funding is distributed to local
authorities by the Ministry of Environment and expenditure includes grants to others, waste minimisation initiative operating expenses and
recycling contract.

Reserves closed in 2016
Restricted reserves
- Dame Hilda Ross Children's Library Memorial Fund

- Roman Catholic Schools Library Fund

Council created reserves
- Housing upgrade reserve
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NOTE 30: RECONCILIATION OF NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) AFTER TAX TO NET CASH

Council Grou
2016 | 205 | 20t | 205 |

S000 5000 $000 S000
Net surplus/{deficit) after tax 11,041 8,416 14,109 10,767
Add/(less) non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation 60,416 57,278 61,501 58,105
(Gains)/losses in fair value of bank borrowings - - - -
(Gains)/losses in fair value of interest rate swaps 21,432 14,091 21,432 14,091
{Gains)/losses in fair value of investment properties (2,754) (241) (3,541) (1,427)
{Gains)/losses unrealised on fair value of other financial assets - - 488 (318)
Impairment of other financial assets 2,096 107 64 107
Share of associates (surplus)/deficit - - (168) (94)
Income tax expense recognised in surplus/deficit - - (89) 207
Reclassification of WIP to operating expenditure 1,682 913 1,682 913
Vested assets (34,274) (19,824) (34,274) (19,824)
Total non-cash items 48,598 52,324 47,095 51,760
Add/(less) items dassified as investing or finandng activities:
Change in capital expenditure accruals (122) (191) (122) (2,846)
Change in loan repayment provision - - - (171)
{Gains)/losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 12,454 3,512 12,874 3,529
{Gains)/losses on disposal of investment property 473 (260) 473 (260)
(Gains)/losses on disposal of investment in associate - - - -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 36 492 36 492
Total items classified as investing or financing activities 12,841 3,553 13,261 744
Add/(less) movements in working capital:
Trade debtors and other receivables (369) {2,175) (310) (2,706)
Inventory (33) 57 (377) 57
Prepayments (92) {154) (54) (213)
Trade creditors and other payables 5,107 (588) 2,208 3,124
Employee entitlements (809) 803 (809) 803
Provisions 4,561 886 4,579 1,057
Total movements in working capital 8,365 {1,171) 5237 2,122
Net cash inflow from operating activities 80,845 63,122 79,702 65,393
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NOTE 31: CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING LEASES

Council Group
(2016 | 2015 | 2016 | 2015 |
$000 $000 $000 $000
Capital commitments
Property, plant and equipment 53,712 32,978 53,806 38,621
Total capital commitments 53,712 32,978 53,806 38,621
Capital commitments represent capital expenditure contracted for at balance date but not yet incurred.
Council Group
$000 $000 $000 $000
Capital commitments by asset dass
Buildings 80 226 174 5,869
Improvements - parks and gardens 996 484 996 484
Leasehold improvements 98 228 98 228
Museum and library 1,942 79 1,942 79
Plant and equipment 604 941 604 941
Refuse 3 11 3 11
Roads and traffic network 26,278 28,249 26,278 28,249
Stormwater system 542 176 542 176
Wastewater system 509 313 509 313
Wastewater treatment plant 485 586 485 586
Water system 22,100 1,360 22,100 1,360
Water treatment station 75 325 75 325
53,712 32,978 53,806 38,621

Operating leases as lessee

Council leases property, plant and equipment in the normal course of its business. The majority of these leases have a non-cancellable term
of 36 or 48 months. The future aggregate minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Council Group
$000 $000 $000 $000
Not later than one year 306 248 331! 273
Later than one year and not later than five years 329 416 404 491
Later than five years 118 192 252 326
Total non-cancellable operating leases 753 856 987 1,090

The total minimum future sublease payments expected to be received under subleases at balance date is $nil (2015 Snil). Leases can be
renewed at Council's option, with rents set by reference to current market rates for items of equivalent age and condition. Council has the

option to purchase the asset at the end of the lease term except where Council is leasing land or buildings. There are no restrictions placed

on Council by any of the leasing arrangements.

Operating leases as lessor
Investment property is leased under operating leases.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments to be collected under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Counci Group
$000 $000 $000 $000
Not later than one year 2,203 2,053 2,203 2,053
Later than one year and not later than five years 6,441 5,782 6,441 5,782
Later than five years 2,326 2,420 2,326 2,420
Total non-cancellable operating leases 10,970 10,255 10,970 10,255

No contingent rents have been recognised during the period.
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NOTE 32: CONTINGENCIES
Contingent liabilities

Financial guarantees

Council is at times requested to act as guarantor to loans raised by community organisations and sports clubs to construct facilities on
Council reserve land. These structures form part of the reserve but are not included in the fixed asset figures. No provision has been made
because Council do not consider it likely that these loans will require settlement. Council's potential liability under the guarantees is as

follows:
Council Group
2016 2015 2016 | 2015 |
$000 $000 $000 $000
Lending institution:
Bank of New Zealand 275 290 275 290
Total loans guaranteed 275 290 275 290

Insurance and liability claims
Council was involved as defendant in various public liability and professional indemnity claims as at 30 June 2015. Council's potential
liability, if at all, would be its insurance excess. Council has also estimated its other liability claims.

Council Group
[ 2006 [ 2015 [ 2016 | 2015
$000 $000 $000 $000
Insurance claim excess = - = =
Other liability claims 259 859 259 859
Total insurance and liability claims 259 859 259 859

Unquantified daims
The Council is also exposed to potential future claims which have not yet been advised until the statutory limitation period expires. The
amount of potential future claims are not able to be reliably measured and is therefore unquantifiable.

The Supreme Court decision in October 2012 on Council's liability for non-residential buildings may affect the liability of the Council for
weathertightness claims for non-residential buildings. The impact of the decision is yet to be quantified by the Council.

Weathertight homes resolution services and court claims

A provision for potential liability for three claims (2015 5 claims) that are outstanding with the Weathertight Homes Resolution Service, and
two claims (2015 1 claim) lodged via the court system have been made per note 26. There may be further claims in future but these are
unable to be quantified at this point in time.

Uncalled capital
Council has contingent liabilities in respect of uncalled capital for the entities as follows:

Council Group
2015 [ 2016 ] 2015
$000 $000 $000 $000

Uncalled capital
Innovation Waikato Ltd 3 3 3 3
New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Ltd 1,866 1,866 1,866 1,866
Waikato Regional Airport Ltd - 4,800 - 4,800
Total uncalled capital 1,869 6,669 1,869 6,669

Innovation Waikato Ltd
Innovation Waikato Ltd does not have any contingent liabilities or capital comittments as at 30 June 2016 (2015 nil).

New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Ltd

Council is a guarantor of the New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited (LGFA). The LGFA was incorporated in December 2011
with the purpose of providing debt funding to local authorities in New Zealand and it has a current credit rating from Standard and Poor's of
AA+.

Council is one of 30 local authority shareholders and 8 local authority guarantors of the LGFA. The LGFA has uncalled capital of $20m of
which Council's share is $1.9m as at 30 June 2016 (2015 $1.9m). At 30 June 2016, LGFA had total borrowings of $6.2b {2015 $5b) for which
Council is a guarantor along with other shareholders and guarantors.

Financial reporting standards require Council to recognise the guarantee liability at fair value. However, the Council has been unable to
determine a sufficently reliable value for the guarantee, and therefore has not recognised a liability.
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The Council considers the risk of LGFA defaulting on repayment of interest or capital to be very low on the basis that:

- Council is not aware of any local authority debt default events in New Zealand; and

- Local government legislation would enable local authorities to levy a rate to recover sufficient funds to meet any debt obligation if further
funds were required.

- LGFA has a credit rating of AA+.

Waikato Regional Airport Ltd
Waikato Regional Airport Ltd has repurchased all 939,334 shares of uncalled capital from the shareholders.

There are no contingent liabilities arising from Council's involvement in its associates for 2016 {2015 S$nil).
Contingent assets

WEL Energy Trust

Council is a 63% capital beneficiary of the WEL Energy Trust. The life of the Trust ends in 2073 unless terminated earlier if its purpose is
completed. Given the uncertainties surrounding the life of the Trust, Council is unable to accurately establish the appropriate value of its 63
per cent share.

NOTE 33: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party disclosures have not been made for transactions with related parties that are within a normal supplier or client/recipient
relationship on terms and conditions no more or less favourable than those that it is reasonable to expect the Council and group would have
adopted in dealing with the party at arm's length in the same circumstances.

Related party disclosures have also not been made for transactions with entities within the Council group (such as funding and financing
flows), where the transactions are consistent with the normal operating relationships between the entities, and are on normal terms and
conditions for such group transactions.

Key management personnel compensation
During the year Councillors and key management, as part of a normal customer relationship, were involved in minor transactions with
Council (such as payment of rates, use of Council facilities, etc).

2015

$ $

Councillors

Remuneration 1,066 1,061
Full-time equivalent members 13 13
Senior Management Team including the Chief Executive

Remuneration 2,121 2,122
Full-time equivalent members 7.15 9
Total key management personnel remuneration 3,187 3,183
Total full-time equivalent personnel 20.15 22

Due to the difficulty in determining the full-time equivalent for Councillors, the full-time equivalent figure is taken as the number of
Councillors.

Key management personnel include the Mayor, Councillors, Chief Executive and other members of the senior management team.

No provision has been required, or any expense recognised for impairment of receivables for any loans or other receivables to related
parties.
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NOTE 34: REMUNERATION

Elected members
Elected members received the the following remuneration:

Council Group
[ 2o [ oo [ | ois
$ $ $ 5

Mayor
Julie Hardaker

Salary 151,137 146,756 151,137 146,756

Vehicle 2,929 2,929 2,929 2,929
Councillors
Gordon Chesterman 86,750 86,748 86,750 86,748
Margaret Forsyth 76,340 76,338 76,340 76,338
Martin Gallagher 76,340 76,338 76,340 76,338
Karina Green 69,000 69,000 69,000 69,000
Andrew King 76,340 76,338 76,340 76,338
Dave Macpherson 69,400 69,398 69,400 69,398
Garry Mallett 75,900 75,900 75,900 75,900
Angela O'Leary 83,280 83,278 83,280 83,278
Rob Pascoe 83,280 83,278 83,280 83,278
Leo Tooman 76,340 76,338 76,340 76,338
Ewan Wilson 69,400 69,398 69,400 69,398
Philip Yeung 69,400 69,398 69,400 69,398
Total Elected Members' remuneration 1,065,836 1,061,435 1,065,836 1,061,435

The remuneration received by elected members for 2016 totalled $1.07m. This amount was within the allowable remuneration pool
determined by the Remuneration Authority for the year ended 30 June 2016. It is noted that elected members did not receive fees for
attending resource consent hearings for 2016.

The remuneration received by elected members for 2015 totalled $1.06m. This amount was within the allowable remuneration pool
determined by the Remuneration Authority for the year ended 30 June 2015. It is noted that elected members did not receive fees for
attending resource consent hearings for 2015.

Chief Executive
The Chief Executive received the following remuneration:

2015
8 2

Richard Briggs

Salary 330,000 228,462

Superannuation contribution 9,900 4,960
Barry Harris

Salary - 113,348

Vehicle - 5,195

Superannuation contribution - 2,699
Total Chief Executive's remuneration 339,900 354,664
Council employees
The total annual remuneration by band for employees as at 30 June:

No

< $60,000 692
$60,000 - $79,999 201
$80,000 - $99,999 111
$100,000 - $119,999 41
$120,000 - $139,999 28
$140,000 - $159,999 10
$160,000 - $239,999 8
> $240,000 5
Total employees 1,096

Total remuneration includes non-financial benefits provided to employees.

At 30 June there were 5 or fewer employees in the bands $160,000 - $179,999 and $180,000 - $199,999, therefore the numbers for those
bands have been combined with the next highest band of $160,000 - $239,999.

At balance date, the Council employed 763 full-time employees (2015 724), with the balance of staff representing 162.47 full-time equivalent
employees (2015177.26). A full-time employee is determined on the basis of a 40 hour working week.
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The total annual remuneration by band for employees as at 30 June:

No
< $60,000 718
$60,000 - $79,999 190
$80,000 - $99,999 96
$100,000 - $119,999 50
$120,000 - $139,999 22
$140,000 - $179,999 12
$180,000 - $259,999 7
> $300,000 )
Total employees 1,100

NOTE 35: SEVERANCE PAYMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2016 the Council made severance payments to seven employees totalling $147,163 (2015 eight employees
$63,532). The value of each of the severance payments was $2,380, $7,244, $11,667, $16,000, $32,500, $35,000 and $42,372 The amounts
disclosed above represent any payment made in addition to the terms of the employment contract for each staff member.

NOTE 36: EVENTS AFTER BALANCE DATE

There have been no events after balance date.
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NOTE 37: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Instrument Categories

Council Group
2015
$000 $000 5000 $000
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Fair value through surplus/deficit - held for trading
Equity securities - - 2,855 3,240
Fixed interest instruments - - 2,709 3,002
Derivative financial instrument assets {note 14) 1,052 - 1,052 -
Total fair value through surplus/deficit - held for trading 1,052 - 6,616 6,242
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 6,964 57,291 9,080 57,616
Debtors and other receivables 19,646 19,276 20,485 20,183
Other financial assets:
- community loans 16,037 151 16,037 151
- term deposits 44,680 8,600 44,680 8,600
Total loans and receivables 87,327 85,318 90,282 86,550
Fair value through other comprehensive revenue and expense
Other financial assets:
- Unlisted shares 4,411 4,870 2,350 2,384
Total fair value through other comprehensive income 4411 4,870 2,350 2,384
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Fair value through surplus or deficit
Derivative financial instrument liabilities (note 14) 48,582 26,097 48,582 26,097
Total fair value through surplus or deficit 48,582 26,097 48,582 26,097
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Creditors and other payables (note 25) 37,314 32,206 39,009 36,846
Borrowings: (note 28)
- bank overdraft - - - -
- secured loans 363,000 396,000 388,718 412,038
Total financial liabilities at amortised cost 400,314 428,206 427,727 448,884

Fair value hierarchy disclosures

For those instruments recognised at fair value in the statement of financial position, fair values are determined according to the following
hierarchy:

- Quoted market price (level 1) - Financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.

- Valuation technique using observable inputs {level 2) - Financial instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs
are observable.

- Valuation tech niques with significant non-observable inputs (level 3) - Financial instruments valued using models where one or more significant
inputs are not observable.

The following table analyses the basis of the valuation of classes of financial instruments measured at fair value in the statement of financial
position.
Valuation Technique

Quoted Observable
Total market price puts
5000 $000 $000
30 June 2016 - Council
Financial assets

Shares (note 15) 4,411 - - 4,411
Derivative financial instrument assets (note 14) 1,052 - 1,052 -
Financial liabilities

Derivative financial instrument liabilities (note 14) 48,582 - 48,582 -

30 June 2016- Group
Financial assets

Shares 2,350 - - 2,350
Equity securities 2,855 2,855 - -
Fixed interest instruments 2,709 2,709 - -
Derivative financial instrument assets {note 14) 1,052 - 1,052 -
Financial liabilities

Derivative financial instrument liabilities (note 14) 48,582 - 48,582 -
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Valuation Technique

Quoted Observable Significant
. “ non-obervable
market price inputs inpits
5000 $000 $000 5000

30 June 2015 - Council
Financial assets
Shares 4,870 - - 4,870
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instrument liabilities (note 14) 26,097 - 26,097 -
30 June 2015 - Group
Financial assets
Shares 2,384 - - 2,384
Equity securities 3,240 3,240 - -
Fixed interest instruments 3,002 3,002 - -
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instrument liabilities (note 14) 26,097 - 26,097 -

There were no transfers between the different levels of the fair value hierarchy.

Valuation techniques with significant non-observable inputs (level 3)
The table below provides a reconciliation from the opening balance to the closing balance for the level 3 fair value measurements:

Council Group
[ 2016 | o015 1 016 | 2015 ]
5000 5000 5000 5000

Balance at 1 July 4,870 4,977 2,384 2,482
Gain and (losses) recognised in the surplus or deficit (459) (107) (34) (98)
Gain and (losses) recognised in other comprehensive revenue and expense - - - -
Purchases - - -
Sales - - - -
Consolidation elimination- Waikato Innovation Park Ltd - -
Transfers into level 3 - - - -
Transfers out of level 3 - - - -
Balance at 30 June 4,411 4,870 2,350 2,384

Changing a valuation assumption to a reasonably possible assumption would not significantly change fair value.

Financial instrument risks
The Council's activities expose it to a variety of financial instrument risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Council has policies

to manage risks associated with financial instruments and seeks to minimise exposure from its treasury activities. Council has established Council
approved investment and liability management policies. These policies do not allow any transactions that are speculative in nature to be entered
into.

Market risk

- Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. Equity
securities price risk arises on listed equity investments, which relate to Vibrant Hamilton Trust and are classified as financial assets held at fair
value through surplus/deficit. This price risk arises due to market movements in listed shares.

- Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. Council uses foreign

currency forward exchange contracts to manage foreign currency exposure. Council's policy is that foreign currency exposure of amounts
greater than 525k are to be covered by way of forward exchange contracts. Council is exposed to foreign currency movements through the
Vibrant Hamilton Trust investment portfolio to the extent that $1.7m of the total equity securities of $2.85m are not hedged (2015 $1.8m out of
total equity securties of $3.2m).

- Interest rate risk

Fair value interest rate risk

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. Borrowings
and investments issued at fixed rates expose Council to fair value interest rate risk. Council's Investment and Liability Management policy
outlines the level of borrowing that is to be secured using fixed interest rate instruments.

Cash flow interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
Borrowing and Investments issued at variable interest rates expose Council to cash flow interest rate risk.

HAMILTON CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 104

Attachments Page 107

Item 5

Attachment 1



Council b Hamilton City Council
29 September 2016

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

ltem 5

Attachment 1

Council manages its cash flow interest rate risk on borrowings by using floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps. Such interest rate swaps have the
effect of converting borrowings at floating rates and swaps them into fixed rates that are known and therefore assist with forecasting future
interest costs. Under the interest rate swaps, Council agrees with other parties to exchange, at specific intervals, the difference between fixed
contract rates and floating-rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts.

Credit risk
The council is exposed to credit risk as a guarantor of all of LGFA's borrowings. Information about this exposure is explained in note 32.

Credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligation to Council, causing Council to incur a loss. Council has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, as it has a large number of credit customers, mainly ratepayers, and Council has powers under the Local
Government (Rating) Act 2002 to recover debts from ratepayers.

Council invests funds in short term deposits with registered banks and has loaned funds to the Northern Districts Cricket Association. The
Vibrant Hamilton Trust is consolidated into Council's Group financial statements and also includes cash and fixed interest securities that are a
credit risk.

Maximum exposure to credit risk
Council's maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instrument is as follows:

Council Group
5000 5000 5000 5000
Cash and cash equivalents 6,964 57,291 9,080 57,616
Debtors and other receivables 19,646 19,276 20,485 20,183
Equity securities - - 2,855 3,240
Fixed interest instruments - - 2,709 3,002
Community and related party loans 16,037 151 16,037 151
Term deposits 44,680 8,600 44,680 8,600
Financial guarantees 275 290 275 290
Total credit risk 87,602 85,608 96,121 93,082

Credit quality of financial assets
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to credit ratings (if available) or to
historical information about counterparty default rates:

Council Group
TR T T
Counterparties with credit ratings Rating $000 5000 000 $000
Cash and cash equivalents AA- 6,964 52,291 9,080 52,616
A+ - 5,000 - 5,000
Term deposits AA+ 3,680 3,600 3,680 3,600
AA- 35,000 5,000 35,000 5,000
A+ 6,000 - 6,000 @
Fixed interest instruments AAA - - 636 645
AA+ - - 74 80
AA - - 35 61
AA- - - 545 1,065
A+ - - 140 257
A - - 166 242
A- - - 173 181
BBB+ - - 414 193
BBB - - 101 66
BBB- - - 30 90
BB+ - - ALl s
Total fixed interest instruments - - 2325 2,880
Council Group
BT EETT
Counterparties without credit ratings $000 $000 $000 $000
Fixed interest instruments
- existing counterparty with no defaults in the past - - 384 122
Community and related party loans and mortgages
- existing counterparty with no defaults in the past 16,037 151 16,037 151
Total community and related party loans and mortgages 16,037 151 16,037 151
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Settlement risk

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that Hamilton City Council will encounter difficulty raising liquid funds to meet commitments as they fall due. Prudent
liquidity management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities
and the ability to close out market positions. Council aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping credit lines available.

Council manages its borrowings in accordance with its funding and financial policies, which includes an Investment and Liability Management
Policy.

Council has a maximum amount that can be drawn down against its overdraft facility of $500k (2015 $500k). There are no restrictions on the use
of this facility. Council also has $405m (2015 $426m) of committed borrowing facilities, with available headroom of $88.9m (2015 $94.1m) at
balance date.

The Council is exposed to liquidity risk as a guarantor of all of LGFA's borrowings. This guarantee becomes callable in the event of the LGFA
failing to pay its borrowings when they fall due. Information about this exposure is explained in note 32.

Contractual maturity analysis of financial liabilities

The table below analyses Council's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance date to the
contractual maturity date. Future interest payments on floating rate debt are based on the floating rate on the instrument at balance date. The
amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and include interest payments.

Car Contractual Less than s More than
Amount Cash flows 1year it 5 years

Council 2016 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Creditors and other payables 37,314 37,314 37,314 - -
Secured loans 363,000 395,114 82,905 269,848 42,361
Finance leases 913 1,008 452 556 -
Financial guarantees 275 275 275 - -
Net settled derivatives 48,582 61,653 8,184 27,934 25,535
Total 450,084 495,364 129,130 298,338 67,896
Group 2016
Creditors and other payables 39,009 39,009 39,009 - -
Secured loans 388,718 422,834 100,299 280,174 42,361
Finance leases 913 1,008 452 556 -
Financial guarantees 275 275 275 - -
Net settled derivatives 48,582 61,653 8,184 27,934 25,535
Total 477,497 524,779 148,219 308,664 67,896
Amount Cash flows 1 year 5 years
Council 2015 5000 5000 5000 5000 5000
Creditors and other payables 32,206 32,206 32,206 - -
Secured loans 396,000 459,620 92,151 284,540 82,929
Finance leases 1,074 1,202 440 762 -
Financial guarantees 290 290 290 - -
Net settled derivatives 26,097 36,762 5,417 18,795 12,550
Total 455,667 530,080 130,504 304,097 95,479
Group 2015
Creditors and other payables 36,846 36,846 36,846 - -
Secured loans 412,038 478,198 99,610 295,659 82,929
Finance leases 1,074 1,202 440 762 -
Financial guarantees 290 290 290 = -
Net settled derivatives 26,097 36,762 5,417 18,795 12,550
Total 476,345 553,298 142,603 315,216 95,479

Contractual maturity analysis of financial assets
The table below analyses Council's financial assets into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and include interest receipts.
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Carrying Contractual Less than i AT More than
Amount Cash flows 1 year 5 years
5000 $000 $000 5000 5000

Council 2016
Cash and cash equivalents 6,964 6,964 6,964 - -
Debtors and other receivables 19,646 19,646 19,646 - -
Community and related party loans 16,037 18,890 90 18,800 -
Term deposits 44,680 46,391 42,424 3,545 422
Total 87,327 91,891 69,124 22,345 422
Group 2016
Cash and cash equivalents 9,080 9,080 9,080 - -
Debtors and other receivables 20,485 20,485 20,485 - -
Community and related party loans 16,037 18,890 90 18,800 -
Term deposits 44,680 46,391 42,424 3,545 422
Total 90,282 94,846 72,079 22,345 422

Carrying Contractual Less than More than

e |[RT [
5000 $000 $000 5000 5000

Council 2015
Cash and cash equivalents 57,291 57,291 57,291 - -
Debtors and other receivables 19,276 19,276 19,276 - -
Community and related party loans 151 179 19 160 -
Term deposits 8,600 9,121 5134 2,810 1,177
Total 85,318 85,867 81,720 2,970 1,177
Group 2015
Cash and cash equivalents 57,616 57,616 57,616 - -
Debtors and other receivables 20,183 20,183 20,183 - -
Community and related party loans 151 179 19 160 -
Term deposits 8,600 9,121 5,134 2,810 1,177
Total 86,550 87,099 82,952 2,970 1,177

Sensitivity analysis
The tables below illustrate the potential effect on the surplus or deficit and equity {excluding accumulated funds) for reasonably possible market
movements, with all other variables held constant, based on Council's financial instrument exposures at balance date.

2016 2015
Council -100bps +100bps -100bps +100bps
[ Surpius | cauity | surpus | oty | Surglus | Gaity | Surpus | quiy |
$000 5000 5000 5000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Interest rate risk
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (70) - 70 - {573) - 573 -
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - secured loans 845 - {(845) - 575 - {575) -
Derivative financial
instruments (24,809) - 21,959 - (19,807) o 18,346 c
Total sensitivity to interest
rate risk (24,034) g 21,184 : (19,805) o 18,344 o
2016 2015
Group -100bps +100bps -100bps +100bps
ETRETTE oy | supke | bty supius | Eauny |
5000 5000 5000 5000 $000 $000 5000 5000
Interest rate risk
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (91) - 91 - (576) - 576 -
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - secured loans 1,102 - {1,102) - 735 - {735) -
Derivative financial
instruments (24,809) - 21,959 - (19,807) - 18,346 -
Total sensitivity to interest
rate risk (23,798) o 20,948 . (19,648) - 18,187 =
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Explanation of interest rate risk sensitivity

The interest rate sensitivity is based on a reasonably possible movement in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, measured as a
basis points (bps) movement. For example, a decrease of 100bps is equivalent to a decrease in interest rates of 1%. The sensitivity for derivatives
{(interest rate swaps) has been calculated using a derivative valuation model based on a parallel shift in interest rates of +/- 100bps.

2016 2015
Group -10% +10% -10% +10%
[ surplus | _Equity | surplus | Equity [ Surplus | [ Surplus |
Foreign exchange risk 5000 5000 5000 5000 5000 5000 5000 5000
Financial assets
Equity securities (172) - 172 - (180) - 180 -
Total (172) % 172 P (180) z 180 z
2016 2015
Group -10% +10% -10% +10%
[ surplus | _Equity | Surplus | _Equity | Surplus | Equity [ Surplus | Equity |
Equity price risk 5000 5000 5000 5000 5000 5000 5000 5000
Financial assets
Equity securities - (285) - 285 - (324) - 324
Total z (285) = 285 : (324) z 324

Explanation of foreign exchange risk sensitivity
The foreign exchange sensitivity is based on a reasonably possible movement in foreign exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
measured as a percentage movement in the foreign exchange rate.

Explanation of equity price risk sensitivity
The sensitivity for equity securities has been calculated based on a -10%/+10% movement in the quoted share price at year end for the listed
shares.

NOTE 38: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Council's capital is its equity {or ratepayers' funds), which comprises accumulated funds and reserves. Equity is represented by net assets.
The Local Government Act 2002 (the Act) requires Council to manage its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments and general financial
dealings prudently and in a manner that promotes the current and future interests of the community. Ratepayers' funds are largely managed as
a by-product of managing revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments, and general financial dealings.

The objective of managing these items is to achieve intergenerational equity, which is a principle promoted in the Act and applied by the Council.
Intergenerational equity requires today's ratepayers to meet the cost of utilising the Council's assets and not expecting them to meet the full cost
of long term assets that will benefit ratepayers in future generations. Additionally, the Council has in place asset management plans for major
classes of assets detailing renewal and maintenance programmes, to ensure ratepayers in future generations are not required to meet the costs
of deferred renewals and maintenance.

The Act requires the Council to make adequate and effective provision in its Long Term Plan (LTP) and its Annual Plan {where applicable) to meet
the expenditure needs identified in those plans. The Act also sets out the factors that the Council is required to consider when determining the
most appropriate sources of funding for each of its activities. The sources and levels of funding are set out in the funding and financial policies in
the Council's LTP.

Hamilton City Council has the following Council created reserves:

- reserves for different areas of benefit;

- trust and bequest reserves; and

- other reserves.

Reserves for different areas of benefit are used where there is a discrete set of rate or levy payers as distinct from the general rate. Any surplus
or deficit relating to these separate areas of benefit is applied to the specific reserves.

Trust and bequest reserves are set up where Council has been donated funds that are restricted for particular purposes. Deductions are made
where funds have been used for the purpose they were donated.

Other reserves are created to set aside funding from general rates for future expenditure on specific projects or activities as approved by Council.

Council uses funds from reserves to reduce external borrowing requirements and reduce financing costs. An internal interest rate is paid to all
reserves and provision for the repayment of internal borrowing is covered via committed external bank funding facilities.
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NOTE 39: EXPLANATIONS OF MAJOR VARIANCES AGAINST BUDGET

Explanations for major variances from Council's budget figures in the 2015/16 annual plan are as follows.

Statement of comprehensive revenue and expense
The Council result is a surplus of $11m which is $1.8m higher than the budgeted net surplus of $9.2m.

Council
$000 $000 $000

Revenue

Rates 1 147,294 146,244 1,050
Subsidies and grants 2 10,533 9,257 1,276
Development and financial contributions 3 24,239 9,500 14,739
Fees and charges 42,807 42,056 751
Interest revenue 2,369 2,000 369
Other revenue 4 40,932 11,381 29,551
Total revenue 268,174 220,438 47,736
Expenses -
Personnel costs S 64,042 66,546 2,504
Depreciation and amortisation 6 60,416 58,269 (2,147)
Finance costs 21,713 22,647 934
Other expenses 7 79,357 63,744 (15,613)
Total expenses 225,528 211,206 (14,322)
Operating surplus/{deficit) 42,646 9,232 33,414
Gains 8 3,893 - 3,893
Losses 9 (35,498) - (35,498)
Surplus/(deficit) before tax 11,041 9,232 1,809

Explanations for major variances are as follows:

1. The main contributors to the rates variance were $508k Council received in revenue from the sale of water to non domestic users and
lower rates remissions of $377k.

2. The subsidies and grants variance was due to higher subsidies from New Zealand Transport Agency for the capital work programme,
in particular the Ring Road projects and construction of the Western Rail Trail cycleway.

3. Hamilton is experiencing high growth and this is resulting in higher levels of contributions.

4. The main component of the Other revenue variance is $25.8m vested assets, which were transferred to Council from sub-divisional
growth. Council also received unbudgeted contributions of $2m from the Ministry of Education for the construction of roading around
the new school in Rototuna.

5. The personnel costs variance is mainly due to the number of unfilled positions over the first half of the financial year.

6. Depreciation was higher than budget due to an increase in asset values resulting from the re-valuation of Council's water, sewerage
and stormwater networks.

7. The major factors contributing to the Other expenses variance are: grant paid for the Rototuna Indoor Recreation Centre;
impairment of financial assets, primarily the valuation of Council's investment in Waikato Innovation Park Limited; increase in the
provision for the aftercare liability associated with the closed landfills; reclassification of capital work in progress as operating
expenditure: professional and legal fees.

8. The gains variance is due mainly to a $2.8m increase in the value of Council’s investment properties after the annual re-valuation.

9. Unrealised losses on the revaluation of interest rate swaps and a loss on the sale of pensioner housing units are the main contributors
to the losses variance.

Statement of changes in equity
An increase in the valuation of water, wastewater and stormwater assets of $254m is the main contributor to the increase in Equity.

Statement of financial position
Total assets were $245m higher than budget. This primarily reflects the increased value for the revaluation of the water, wastewater
and stormwater assets

Total liabilities were $59m higher than budget. This was primarily due to a reduction in borrowings, increases in payables and derivative
financial instruments (not budgeted).
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NOTE 40: INSURANCE OF ASSETS

The following information relates to the insurance of Council assets as at 30 June.
Council

2016 2015

$000 5000
The values listed are the declared values Council has provided to its Insurance broker.

Material Damage 819,036 894,000
Council’s Material Damage cover is based on a Maximum Probable Loss model (MPL} which means that its

assets are insured for the value of the largest probable loss that could result from a disaster in Hamilton.

Council has insured up to $300m consisting of two layers; a $150m primary layer which is shared between the

Regional collective and an additional $150m excess layer which is shared with Waikato Regional Council due to

geographic accumulation. A separate policy is in place which is shared by the Regional collective which provides

cover of up to $125m for damage that is caused by fire, or fire following a natural disaster.

The following categories are in addition to the Material Damage and each is covered with a separate policy.

Fine Arts 36,211 35,931
This cover is for the declared values of art, artefacts and declared outdoor sculptures owned by Council.

Commercial Motor Vehicles 11,930 11,290
Motor insurance up to the declared value of each individual vehicle.

Infrastructure 1,402,834 1,371,280
Based on risk engineering and loss modelling for the Waikato hazardscape a $100m shared loss limit is in place

with the Regional Collective. Insurance is to the level of 40% in anticipation of 60% contribution from central

government in a disaster.

Boiler Explosion 1,106 1,106

Policy covers the damage caused by failure of large boilers.
In addition to the material damage cover Council has two policies that relate to Contract works and business interruption.

Contract Works 3,000 3,000
This policy allows Council to perform small projects relating to new builds, works to existing structures,
renovations, maintenance and repair with cover up to $600k for any one contract.

Business Interruption 79,200 81,204
$40.1m of cover provided for loss of rent revenue and receivable. A further $40m for the increased cost of
working at the water treatment plants.

There are no assets of the local authority that are self-insured.
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COUNCIL - FUNDING IMPACT STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Annual Plan Actual Annual Plan Actual
$000 $000 $000 $000

Sources of operating funding
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rates penalties 125,457 126,080 13,265 12,424
Targeted rates 15,068 14,658 132,979 134,870
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes 4,426 5,182 5,110 5,025
Fees and charges 37,260 41,372 39,570 42,807
Interest and dividends from investments 1,300 2,451 2,143 2,489
Local authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipt 4,446 4,203 3,530 3,040
Total operating funding 187,957 193,946 196,597 200,655
Applications of operating funding
Payments to staff & suppliers 120,822 129,946 130,291 141,283
Finance costs 24,887 23,592 22,647 21,713
Other operating funding applications 1,587 912 - -
Total applications of operating funding 147,296 154,450 152,938 162,996
Surplus/(deficit) of operating funding 40,661 39,496 43,659 37,659
Sources of capital funding
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure 11,157 5,713 4,147 5,508
Development and financial contributions 7,571 16,070 9,500 24,239
Increase/(decrease) in debt 9,445 {11,497) 6,488 (32,474)
Gross proceeds from the sale of assets 108 25,684 139 6,103
Lump sum contributions = e - ]
Other dedicated capital funding - 2,291 1,713 3,499
Total sources of capital funding 28,281 38,261 21,987 6,875
Application of capital funding
Capital expenditure
- to meet additional demand 9,162 7,579 25,988 24,971
- to improve the level of service 28,979 21,640 6,703 12,118
- to replace existing assets 29,760 29,057 32,955 31,883
Increase/(decrease) in reserves 62 14,481 - (4,972)
Increase/(decrease) of investments 979 5,000 - (19,466)
Total application of capital funding 68,942 77,757 65,646 44,534
Surplus/(deficit) of capital funding (40,661) (39,496) (43,659) (37,659)

Funding balance - = = “
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Disclosure Statement
Annual report disclosure statement for year ending 30 June 2016

What is the purpose of this statement?

The purpose of this statement is to disclose the council's planned financial performance in relation to
various benchmarks to enable the assessment of whether the council is prudently managing its revenues,
expenses, assets, liabilities, and general financial dealings. The council is required to include this statement
inits annual report in accordance with the Local Government (Financial Reporting and Prudence)
Regulations 2014 (the regulations). Refer to the regulations for more information, including definitions of
some of the terms used in this statement.

Rates affordability benchmark
The council meets the rates affordability benchmark if -
- its actual rates income equals or is less than each quantified limit on rates; and
- its actual rates increases equal or are less than each quantified limit on rates increases.

Rates (income) affordability

The following graph compares the council's actual rates income with a quantified limit on rates contained in
the financial strategy included in the council's long-term plan. Council has a new quantified limit, startingin
2016, that rates will not exceed 0.627% of the city's rateable capital value.
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The following graph shows Council's quantified limit on rates prior to the 2016 year. The limit was that rates
will not exceed 1.5% of the city's rateable land value. With Council now in the process of transitioning the
basis of rates collection fron land to capital value, this measure has now been discontinued in favour of the
rateable capital value limit (above).
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Rates (increases) affordability

The following graph compares the council's actual rates increases with a quantified limit on rates increases
included in the financial strategy included in the council's long-term plan. The quantified limit is that rates
increases to existing ratepayers will not exceed 3.8%.
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In 2015 council exceeded the 3.8% limit set in 2012 due to the addition of a targeted rate for the Hamilton
Gardens development project. The 2015-25 10-Year Plan has clarified that the limit of 3.8% increase to
existing ratepayers excludes the Hamilton Gardens targeted rate.

Debt affordability benchmark

The council meets the debt affordability benchmark if its actual borrowing is within each quantified limit on
borrowing. The following graph compares the council's actual borrowing with a quantified limit on
borrowing stated in the financial strategy included in the council's long-term plan. The quantified limit is
that the debt to revenue ratio will be reduced to under 200% by 2020 and thereafter will remain below
200%. Note that prior to the 2015-25 10-Year Plan the target was 200% by the 2019 year.
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Balanced budget benchmark

The following graph displays the council's revenue {excluding development contributions, financial
contributions, vested assets, gains on derivative financial instruments, and revaluations of property, plant,
or equipment) as a proportion of operating expenses {excluding losses on derivative financial instruments
and revaluations of property, plant, or equipment). The council meets this benchmark if its revenue equals
or is greater than its operating expenses.
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This benchmark is similar to Council's own "Balancing the Books" measure that was introduced prior to the
Local Government {Financial Reporting) Regulations. Council does meet its own measure that it believes is
more relevant to a growing city. There are four main differences between the measures:
- the above Balanced Budget includes all capital subsidies
- the above Balanced Budget excludes development and financial contributions
- the above Balanced Budget includes gains and losses from disposals of assets, investment property,
and associates.
- the above Balanced Budget includes gains and losses from investment property revaluations.

Essential services benchmark

The following graph displays the council's capital expenditure on network services as a proportion of
depreciation on network services. The council meets this benchmark if its capital expenditure on network
services equals or is greater than depreciation on network services.

200%

178%

180% -+
161%
160% -

140% -~

125% 128%
120% -+

107%
100% =

80%

60% -

40% -

Capital expenditure/depreciation (%)

20% -

0% - T T T T
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Year
Benchmark not met

m Benchmark met

115

HAMILTON CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

Attachments

Page 118



Council b Hamilton City Council
29 September 2016

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

Debt servicing benchmark

The following graph displays the council's borrowing costs as a proportion of revenue {excluding
development contributions, financial contributions, vested assets, gains on derivative financial
instruments, and revaluations of property, plant, or equipment). Because Statistics New Zealand projects
the council's population will grow faster than the national population growth rate, it meets the debt
servicing benchmark if its borrowing costs equal or are less than 15% of its revenue.
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Debt control benchmark

The following graph displays the council's actual net debt as a proportion of planned net debt. In this
statement, net debt means financial liabilities less financial assets {excluding trade and other receivables).
The council meets the debt control benchmark if its actual net debt equals or is less than its planned net debt.
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Operations control benchmark
This graph displays the council's actual net cash flow from operations as a proportion of its planned net cash
flow from operations. The council meets the operations control benchmark if its actual net cash flow from

operations equals or is greater than its planned net cash flow from operations.
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INFORMATION ON COUNCIL CONTROLLED ORGANISATIONS

Hamilton City Council is involved and represented in a number of organisations to assist in meeting its vision
for the city. Council Controlled Organisations {CCOs) are any organisation in which one or more local
authorities control 50% or more of the voting rights or appoint 50% or more of the directors. Council has an
interest in ten CCOs, Hamilton Properties Ltd, Local Authority Shared Services Ltd, New Zealand Local
Government Funding Agency Ltd, Waikato Regional Airport Limited and its subsidiaries Hamilton & Waikato
Tourism Ltd and Titanium Park Ltd, Vibrant Hamilton Trust, and Innovation Waikato Limited and its subsidiaries
Waikato Innovation Park Ltd and New Zealand Food Innovation {(Waikato) Limited.

The following tables explain the various organisations significant policies and objectives, nature and scope of
activities, key performance targets and outcomes for the 2015-16 year.

It should be noted that the key performance targets disclosed in the tables below for Local Authority Shared
Services Limited and New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited may be slightly different
compared to the targets disclosed in the Long Term Plan {LTP) 2015-25, as the organisations have either
developed additional targets or modified the way in which they present the targets, since the LTP was
prepared.

Hamilton Properties Limited (HPL)
Ownership 100%
Representation (total members) 1.{1)

Significant policies and objectives

Council has retained this company with the view to utilising its tax losses in the future.

Nature and scope of activities

This is a non-operating company that is no longer trading.

Key performance targets

Exempt as a CCO for performance monitoring under Section 7 {3-5) LGA 2002 by Council resolution on 6 April
2016.

Local Authority Shared Services Limited (LASS)

Ownership 13.72% SVDS shares, 37.5% WRTM Service shares and 17.8%
WRAPS Shares. {This equates to 19.6% of the total weighted
value of issued shares).

Balance of shares owned by other Local Authorities. Note
Council has only one voting right out of the twelve Local
Authorities.

Representation (total members) 1(12)

Significant policies and objectives

* To make a regional leadership contribution and seek opportunities to operate more efficiently by
participating with the region’s local authorities on shared services, particularly in respect of information
collection and management, with the aim of reducing the cost of those activities, streamlining of work
processes and improved level and quality of service.

®  Gains have been realised by shareholders in the Shared Valuation Data Service {SVDS), the Waikato
Regional Transport Model {(WRTM} and through joint procurement contracts.
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Nature and scope of activities

¢ The company is used as an umbrella company to investigate opportunities for future development of
shared services. The specific objectives of the company are agreed each year in accordance with the

constitution and the Statement of Intent.

e The three major established operations (Shared Valuation Data Service {SVDS), Waikato Regional
Transportation Model {(WRTM), and the Insurance Advisory Group) continue to deliver value.

s Additional opportunities for shared services being developed include a shared regional GIS data portal, on-
line service for building consents, and energy audits to investigate energy efficiency opportunities.

Key performance targets

Performance targets are specified in the LASS Statement of Intent for 2015-16 and are summarised with the

actual results below:

Performance Targets Actual Outcome

Procurement: Joint procurement initiatives for goods and
services for LASS councils will be investigated and
implemented.

Collaborative Projects: Priorities for collaboration are
identified, business cases are developed for the highest
priority projects, and the projects are implemented.

Existing LASS Contracts: Existing contracts are managed
and renegotiated as required.

Cashflow: The company shall maintain a positive
cashflow position.

Cost Control: Administration expenditure shall be
managed and monitored.
Reporting: Six monthly reports provided to Shareholders.

Waikato Mayoral Forum: The company shall provide
administrative support and updates on Mayoral Forum
workstreams to the Mayoral Forum.

Shared Valuation Data Services {SVDS): The SVDS is
reliable, well maintained and available to all users.

Waikato Regional Transport Model (WRTM): The WRTM is
reliable, well maintained and available to all users.
Shareholder Survey — Shareholders are satisfied with the
performance of LASS.

Review of Benefits: Shareholders are informed of the
benefits being provided to shareholding councils by LASS.

New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited (LGFA)

Ownership 8.3%
Representation (total members) 1(19)

Significant policies and objectives

Achieved.

Achieved.

Achieved.

Achieved.

Achieved.

Achieved.
Achieved.

Achieved.

Achieved.

Achieved.

Achieved.

¢ The primary objective of LGFA is to optimise debt funding terms and conditions for participating Councils,

including flexible lending terms.
Other objectives include:
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e Toensure participating Councils finances are sustainable in the long term.
e  Toensure savings in annual interest costs for participating Councils.
s Toensure profits are sufficient to pay a dividend in accordance with the LGFA dividend policy.

Nature and scope of activities

s LGFA raises debt funding either domestically and/or offshore in either NZ dollars or foreign currency and
provides debt funding to New Zealand Local Authorities, and may undertake any other activities
considered by the Board to be reasonably related or incidental to, or in connection with, that business.

¢  The LGFA will only lend to local authorities that enter into all the relevant arrangements with it
{participating local authorities) and comply with the LGFA’s lending policies.

Key performance targets

Performance Targets Actual Outcome

LGFA's average cost of funds relative to the average cost Result not yet available.
of funds for New Zealand Government Securities for the

period to 30 June 2016 will be less than 0.50% higher.

The average margin above LGFA’s cost of funds charged Result not yet available.
to the highest rated participating local authorities for the

period to 30 June 2016 will be no more than 0.10%.

LGFA's annual issuance and operating expenses for the Result not yet available.
period to 30 June 2016 will be less than $5.94 million.

Total lending to participating local authorities at 30 June Achieved. Total lending of $6,455 million.
2016 will be at least $5,885 million.

LGFA will demonstrate the savings to council borrowers Result not yet available.
achieved in the relevant financial year and compared to
previous financial years.

Waikato Regional Airport Limited (WRAL) and its Subsidiaries, Hamilton & Waikato
Tourism Ltd and Titanium Park Ltd

Ownership 50%

Representation (total members) 0(5)

Significant policies and objectives

e Enabler of air services to the region
e Operate a first class, safe and compliant regional airport
e Strategic positioning of the business to enhance capital value

Nature and scope of activities

e  Operate an efficient and compliant airport

®  Enhance the traveller experience

*  Maintain a viable aeronautical business

¢ Maximise revenue diversification through non-aeronautical business opportunities

®  Ensure appropriate internal and external resource to enable a commercially driven and high performing
organisation

Key performance targets

Performance targets are specified in the WRAL Statement of Intent for 2015-16 and are summarised with the
actual results below:
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Non Financial Performance Measures:

Performance Targets Actual Outcome

Facilitate Health & Safety meetings every Achieved.

2 months with representatives from each

company department.

Zero Work Safe notifiable accidents/ Notachieved. There was one notifiable incident.
injuries.

Commission independent review of the Achieved.

company’s Health & Safety framework.

Implement recommendations from the

independent review to ensure best-

practice compliance.

To achieve the Airport Certification Achieved.
Standards as required by the Civil Aviation
Authority.

Ensure airport is operationally available Achieved.
for all scheduled passenger services
{except for uncontrollable events).

Facilitate noise management meetings Achieved.
each 4 months in accordance with the
Noise Management Plan.

Collect, document and act (where viable) Achieved.
on customer feedback forms to
continuously monitor and improve the

customer experience. Maintain  a

database to ensure recurring negative

feedback is promptly acted upon.

Financial Performance Measures: StaT:,::,:t of T —
Targets for 2 OI:; 16
2015/16

Earnings before interest, taxation and depreciation $2,061,000 $2,585,000 Achieved
Net surplus/(deficit) after tax $(421,000) $336,000 Achieved
Net surplus after tax to average shareholder funds -1.00% 0.54% Achieved
Net surplus after tax to total assets -1.00% 0.41% Achieved
Percentage of non-landing charges revenue 64.00% 81% Achieved
Net cashflow (operating and investing) $(632,000) $2,789,000 Achieved
Total liabilities/shareholders funds { debt/equity ratio) 25:75 21:79 Achieved

Interest cover (parent only and calculated on the basis of

2.86 5.81 Achieved
interest from TPL and revaluations being excluded) Chieve
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Vibrant Hamilton Trust (VHT)
Ownership Incorporated Society and Charitable Trust

Representation (total trustees) 4 (4)

Significant policies and objectives

The Vibrant Hamilton Trust was established as a Council Controlled Organisation as per the requirements under
section 64{1) of the Local Government Act 2002 to provide a legal entity which upon incorporation under the
Charitable Trusts Act 1957 may receive funds from the Waikato Foundation Trust and be empowered to make
distributions of income and capital for the charitable purposes authorised in its Trust Deed.

The Waikato Foundation Trust transferred funds to the Vibrant Hamilton Trust {65%) and the Waikato District
Community Wellbeing Trust Board {35%) on 31 January 2012. The Waikato Foundation was subsequently
disestablished.

Nature and scope of activities

The Vibrant Hamilton Trust is a Charitable Trust established for the primary reason of grant distribution.

Key performance targets

Performance targets are specified in the VHT Statement of Intent for 2015-16 and are summarised with the
actual results below:

Performance Targets Actual Outcome

Trust membership obligations are fulfilled in Notachieved. Under the current Trust Deed there is a

accordance with section 5 of the Trust Deed. requirement for the Trust to have five Trustees, at
present there are four Trustees. The appointment of an
additional Trustee was deferred until the matter of the
potential changes in the Trust Deed had been resolved.
The Council Controlled Organisations subcommittee had
the view that there needed to be at least five Trustees.
As at the June 2016 meeting the Trust has noted
potential candidates.

Trustees' delivery against position description is Achieved.

undertaken annually.

The performance of investments is monitored by  Achieved.
receiving and considering portfolio reports and

financial information, on at least a quarterly basis

as minimum.

The investment mandate is monitored to ensure  Achieved.
the investment portfolio reflects the risk

tolerance, investment time zone and drawings

requirements of the Trust.

The performance of the Portfolio Manager is Achieved.
found satisfactory.

The minimum total annual grant of $300,000 for Achieved.
2015/16is made. {Note:) Any distributions are

determined by the Trustees in their sole

discretion in accordance with the Trust Deed and

the law).

Vibrant Hamilton Trust made a net deficit of $910,176 for the year ended 30 June 2016.
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Innovation Waikato Limited (IWL) and its Subsidiaries, Waikato Innovation Park Limited
(WIPL) and New Zealand Food Innovation (Waikato) Limited (NZFIW)

Ownership 100% of IWL and 19.81% of WIPL {direct ownership}
IWL owns 80.19% of WIPL, and WIPL owns 100% of NZFIW

Representation (total members) 0(5)

The 100% shareholding in Innovation Waikato Ltd was gifted by the Katolyst Group to Council on 9 October
2013. The group consists of Innovation Waikato Ltd and its subsidiaries Waikato Innovation Park Ltd and New
Zealand Food Innovation {(Waikato) Ltd.

Significant policies and objectives

e The core purpose of the Innovation Waikato Ltd Group is to promote research, development,
commercialisation and marketing by new and existing entities or individuals of new products, processes,
technologies and quality improvements.

o The focus of the Park is on innovation and technology led businesses that enhance New Zealand’s
competitive advantage and alignment with the region’s economic export development strategy in areas
such as agriculture, agribusiness, food processing, value add to food products from primary production,
horticulture, environmental sustainability, and enabling information and communication technology.

*  Key objectives include:

o 300 days of product development production via the spray dryer contributing $50m to the regional
economy

A new $9million building completed and occupied

Existing buildings 98% occupied

A major company attracted to the Park and signed Agreement to Lease in place

Commitment of capital to fund a new building and enable the repayment of HCC 19% direct

shareholding

Q0 O O O

Nature and scope of activities

* |nnovation Waikato Ltd is involved in the business of the development and operation of an Innovation Park
in Hamilton, which currently includes two commercially tenanted properties and a pilot spray dryer facility.

Key performance targets

Performance targets are specified in the IWL Group Statement of Intent for 2015-16 and are summarised with
the actual results below:

Financial Performance Measures: Statement
Actual
of Intent
Result for
Targets for 2015/16
2015/16
Group earnings before interest, taxation and depreciation $3,055,000 $3,758,000 Achieved
Group cash from operating activities $1,423,000 $1,679,000 Achieved
Group profit/{loss) after tax and dividends $670,000 $902,000 = Achieved
Shareholders’ funds {including deferred i Tangibl
as:;,i olders’ funds {including deferred income) /Tangible 22% a19i | Norachreged
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Compliance
The Council of Hamilton City Council confirms that all statutory requirements in relation to the annual report, as outlined in the Local
Government Act 2002, have been complied with.

Responsibility

Council and management of Hamilton City Council accept responsibility for the preparation of the financial statements and
statement of service performance in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice and New Zealand equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Council and management of Hamilton City Council considers that the financial statements and statement of service performance
have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies, which have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed and
supported by reasonable judgements and estimates, and that all relevant financial reporting and accounting standards have been
followed.

Council and management of Hamilton City Council accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining a system of internal control
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of financial and non financial reporting.

In the opinion of Council and management of Hamilton City Council, the financial statements fairly reflect the financial position of
Council and the group as at 30 June 2016, and the results of its operations and cash flows and the service performance achievements
for the year ended on that date.

Julie Hardaker Richard Briggs
Hamilton Mayor Chief Executive
29 September 2016 29 September 2016
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THE HAMILTON PLAN =

Hamilton continues to emerge as a New Zealand success story: a city builton a
rich cultural history and a strong agricultural economy, maturing to become a
major New Zealand city — a leader in business, culture and lifestyle.

Hamilton's success is reflected in its growing population as more people are attracted by the great lifestyle and the economic
opportunities. More than 157,000 already live here and the city's population is expected to reach 200,000 in about 2030. That is
exciting and challenging for the community and for the Council.

The Hamilton Plan is our vision for Hamilton's future and the 10 pricrities in the plan are about building a stronger economy and
a more attractive city for families over the next 10 years. These pricrities listed below centre on building on the lifestyle and
economic Hamilton already has, to maximise all the opportunities.

Where we want to be:

« Our books are balanced

« The third city economy in New Zealand
« Providing outstanding infrastructure

« Strongly connected to the river

« Best garden in the world

« An active, strong commercial central city with
distinctive suburban villages

« An urban garden
« Access to affordable housing
« Celebrated for our arts and culture

« Waikato is the capital of high performance sport

For more information about the Hamilton Plan visit hamilton.govt.nz/hamiltonplan

HAMILTON CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT SUMMARY 2015/16 2
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DELIVERING THE

HAMILTON PLAN IN 2015/16

A number of projects have been delivered during the 2015/16 year focused on
delivering the Hamilton Plan. Infrastructure investments and projects are at the
forefront of the Council's response to the demands of a fast growing city.

Some major projects were delivered through partnerships with community trusts, individuals and the government. Partnerships
are an essential part of the Council funding strategy to delivery major projects. The Council received a total of nearly $2 million
through partnership funding plus another $1 million for the River Plan.

Transforming the Central City
The Central City Transformation Plan is an action-focussed
plan to transform our central city into a more vibrant
prosperous centre for the Waikato. This year Council started
one of the key projects in the CCTP - Victoria on the River

- to transform a Victoria Street carpark inte a public park
connecting the central city to the Waikato River.

Central City Safety Plan

Council won the Fulton Hogan Excellence Award for
Community Engagement at the 2016 Local Government New
Zealand Awards for its Central City Safety Plan. The award
recognised the success Hamilton has had in achieving a 30%
reduction in reported crime in the central city as well as notably
improved public confidence in safety in the central city.

==

e,

River Plan

Key to transforming Hamilton and its identity is the River Plan.
This year Council awarded the contract for the Ferrybank
Develocpment Plan, a major project in the plan. It also received
a $1 million donation from Momentum Waikato for River Plan
projects.

Roading

The City Ring Road Project was completed to Cambridge

Road and consideration is now being given to combining its
completion to Cobham Drive with the Southern Links Project to
develop the Peacockes area. The 21km Hamilton Section of the
Waikato Expressway is underway and the Council is partnering
with NZTA to build the city’s Resolution Drive extension as part
of the Expressway Project. The award winning Infrastructure
Alliance with Downer Construction Ltd continues to deliver a
great value for meney maintaining the City Transport network.

Recreation Facilities

The Council entered into a partnership with the Ministry of
Education and the Rototuna Junior High School this year to
build an indoor recreation centre on the school grounds. It
also approved a multi-million dollar renewal and upgrade of
Waterworld which will improve the customer experience and
enhance its ability to host major events.

Infrastructure
Major infrastructure projects in the past year include the
commencement of upgrades to the cities Water and
Wastewater treatment plants. Completion of the Low-River
Contingency Project which ensures water supply during
low river levels and continuation of the $24 million
Rototuna Reservoir.
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B o R
Destination Playgrounds
In August last year we opened the Minogue Park playground,
bringing the number of destination playgrounds in the
city to five. The Dominion Park and Hamilton Gardens
destination playgrounds will be completed in 2016/17 and
work on the Te Huia playground also gets underway that
year. We also completed a neighbourhood partnership
playground with Deanwell School, cpening a new school
playground to the public.

Biking

The Hamilton Biking Plan has been adopted with several
projects well underway. A key compenent of the plan is the
Western Rail Trail, a 2.7km off-road bike path that follows
the railway line into the central city, giving people access to
Seddon Park, FMG Stadium Waikato, Hamilton Girls” High
School and Wintec. The council has received $3 million
from the government’s Urban Cycleway Fund to support
this project.

Arts & Culture

The Council completed a review of its arts and culture
policies with the adoption of the updated Arts Agenda and
the Waikato Museum strategic plan. Significant new public
artworks were also completed this year, including the
eight-metre high Tongue of the Dog sculpture gifted by the
Mesh Sculpture Trust and the mural by noted artist Flox in
the Central Library Laneway, which is a project funded by
Vibrant Hamilton Trust and is included in the Central City
Transformation Plan.

At s B T

Hamilton Gardens Development
The Hamilton Gardens project is on track to deliver the
pricrity in the Hamilton Plan of having the best garden in
the world. The project was supported in 2015/16 by over
$2.4 million from external sources. The new carpark was
opened and four new gardens are under construction.
The Gardens received the top prize in the 2016 McGredy
Winder SOLGM Local Government Excellence Awards.

(o

Major events

Hamilton attracted a number of major events to the city

in 2015/16, many of them at Council's premier venues —
FMG Stadium Waikato, Seddon Park and Claudelands Events
Centre. Highlights included the thrilling cricket match
between Australia and the Black Caps, Ice Age Live and the
histeric Gallagher Chiefs vs Wales rugby fixture.

Waiwhakareke Natural Heritage Park

In May 2016, Council approved the addition of over

5 hectares of land to Waiwhakareke Natural Heritage Park.
The 60-hectare park will serve as a focus for Hamilten's
wider bicdiversity restoration and will help bring cur natural
and cultural heritage to within easy reach of the city.

HAMILTON CITY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT SUMMARY 2015/16
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SERVICE PERFORMANCE

The Council’s business is divided into 13 service groups. Each service group
has performance measures that show how well we are delivering service to

the community.

The summary graph below shows that, of 77 measures
we use to track performance:

« we have met the targets for 57 measures
« we have not met the target for 18 measures; and

« we do not have sufficient data available to report against
2 measures

Arts & Culture
Community Support
Democracy Services
Economic Development
Parks & Green Spaces
Planning & Development
Recreation

Rubbish & Recycling
Safety

Sewerage

Stormwater

Transport

Water Supply

I Number of targets achieved
B Number of targets not achieved
I No data available

Reasons for not meeting targets include:

« narrowly missing statutory timeframes (e.g. 14 out of
2509 building and resource consent applications were not
processed within time)

« some slower-than-expected response times to customer
requests due to work volumes at the time

« other parties as well as Council contributing to the
performance against some targets (e.g. the number of
fatalities or serious injuries on Hamilton's roads).

Council regularly reviews its performance and takes action to
make improvements where necessary.

WHERE TO FIND OUT MORE.

The performance measures and targets reported against
in this section are from year one (2015/16) of our 10-Year
Plan: hamilton.govt.nz/10YearPlan

Information on individual performance targets, how well

we achieved them in 2015/16 and what they mean for
Hamilton can be found for each service group within
pages 6 to 53 of Hamilton's 2015/16 Annual Report.

If you want to find cut more about Council's services,
policies, projects and plans, visit cur website:
hamilton.govt.nz
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DELIVERING THE

FINANCIAL STRATEGY

2015/16 has been another excellent year for Hamilton City Council - the city's
finances are in great shape, the Council has performed better than expected
against its financial strategy and a number of significant projects in the Hamilton

Plan have been delivered.

QOur financial strategy is the key to the Council achieving

its goals of managing growth and living within its means.

In 2015/16 the Council met its target for balancing the books
for the third consecutive year and delivered an operating
adjusted surplus of nearly $13 million (refer page 56 of the
full Annual Report 2015/16).

The Council’s overall debt is $348 million, lower than the
projected target of $407 million. As a result the Council's
debt-to-revenue ration is now 170% - well below the 205%
target we had set.
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The contributing factors to the Council’s better than projected
financial performance include:

« Higher revenue from development contributions, reflecting
significant growth in the city
« Lower financing costs

« A better than expected opening balance from the
previous year

.

Operational savings, for example $1million at the Wastewater
treatment plant and $520,000 from the Water Treatment Plant.

Balancing the Books
M
30
25

M History M 2015/16Result M Projected
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Group
Actual Budget Actual
2016 2016 2015
Note $000 $000 $000
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE TO 30 JUNE
Rates revenue 147,214 146,244 140,250
Other revenue 1 130,632 74,194 103,981
Gains 2 4,943 . 5,020
Total revenue 282,789 220,438 249,251
Personnel costs 66,142 66,546 67,731
Depreciation and amortisation 3 61,501 58,269 58,105
Finance costs 22,907 22,647 24,596
Other expenses 4 81,746 63,744 67,653
Losses 5 36,406 - 20,141
Total expenditure 268,702 211,206 238,226
Surplus/(deficit) before tax 14,087 9,232 11,025
Income tax expense (146) E (343)
Share of associate's retained surplus/(deficit) 168 - 85
Net surplus/{deficit) 14,109 9,232 10,767
Other comprehensive revenue and expense 14,109 9,232 10,767
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive revenue and expense (106) o =
Gain/(loss) on property revaluations 6 275,498 18,261 36,098
Income tax on other comprehensive income {501) - -
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive revenue and expense = = =
Total comprehensive revenue and expense 289,000 27,493 46,865
CHANGES IN EQUITY TO 30 JUNE
Total comprehensive income 289,000 27,493 46,865
Total recognised revenues and expenses for the year 289,000 27,493 46,865
Equity at the beginning of the year 2,949,841 2,955,514 2,899,976
Issue of NZFIW shares - - 3,000
Equity at the end of the year 3,238,841 2,983,007 2,949,841
FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE
Current assets 78,366 64,001 90,766
Non-current assets 3,663,784 3,363,419 3,356,171
Total assets 3,742,150 3,427,420 3,446,937
Current liabilities 136,962 99,406 108,455
Non-current liabilities 366,347 345,007 388,641
Equity 3,237,041 2,983,007 2,948,526
Non-controlling interest 1,800 - 1,315
Total equity and liabilities 3,742,150 3,427,420 3,446,937
CASH FLOWS TO 30 JUNE
Opening cash and cash equivalents balance at 1 July 57,616 45,000 43,326
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from operating activities 79,702 59,019 65,393
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from investing activities (105,462) {65,507) (40,722)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from financing activities (22,776) 6,488 (10,381)
Closing cash and cash equivalents balance at 30 June 9,080 45,000 57,616
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Notes
1. Other revenue has exceeded budget by $56.6m. This is due to development contributions and vested assets both of which are related to
high growth in the city. The group result includes $10.1m revenue from Innovation Waikato Limited (IWL).

2. Gains of $5m relate to the revaluation of Council's investment properties.

3. Depreciation was higher than budget due to an increase in asset values resulting from the re-valuation of Council's water, sewerage and
stormwater networks.

4. Other expenses were higher than budget due to an increase in the landfill aftercare provision, impairment of the investment value in
Waikato Innovation Park Limited, a grant paid for the contribution to the indoor recreation centre and work in progress reclassified as an

oberating exnense.
5. Unrealised losses (non cash) of $22.4m relate to the revaluation on interest rate swaps. $13.0m represents the loss on disposal of assets, in

particular the renewal and replacement programmes for Council infrastructural assets and property (pensioner housing) assets.

6. The gain on property revaluation is due to an increase in the value of stormwater and wastewater networks along with land associated with
Parks and Gardens.

Accounting policies
Hamilton City Council is a territorial authority governed by the Local Government Act 2002.

The group consists of the ultimate parent, Council, and its subsidiaries, Hamilton Properties Limited (100% owned), Vibrant Hamilton Trust
(100% owned) and Innovation Waikato Ltd (100% owned). The associate, Waikato Regional Airport Ltd is equity accounted.

The summary financial statements of the Council are for the year ended 30 June 2016.

Council has designated itself and the Group as a public benefit entity as defined under the PBE International Public Sector Accounting
Standards (PBE IPSAS).

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Tier 1 PBE accounting statements and generally accepted accounting
practice in New Zealand (NZ GAAP).

Council's summary annual report complies with PBE Financial Reporting Standards 43 (FRS43) Summary Financial Statements.

All amounts are shown in New Zealand dollars and are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($000)

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities
Council has capital contract commitments of $53.8m (2015 $38.6m).

Contingent liabilities, which are dependent on future events, are $2.4m (2015 $7.8m).

Subsequent events after balance date
There have been no events after balance date.

Disclaimer
The specific disclosures included in this summary annual report have been extracted from the full annual report and were authorised for
issue by the Chief Executive on the 29 September 2016.

This summary can not be expected to provide as complete an understanding as provided by the full annual report of the financial and
service performance, financial position and cash flows of Hamilton City Council.

The summary has been examined for consistency with the full annual report and was audited by Audit New Zealand on behalf of the Office
of the Auditor-General. The full annual report and summary received an unqualified audit opinion on the 29 September 2016.

The full annual report can be obtained from our website - www.hamilton.co.nz or from the Hamilton City Council main office.
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Hamilton 3240 Fax 07 838 6599

New Zealand EMAIL info@hcc.govt.nz
hamilton.govt.nz

29 September 2016

Leon Pieterse
Director

Audit New Zealand
PO Box 1165
Auckland 1140

Dear Leon

Letter of representation for the year ended 30 June 2016

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit, carried out on behalf of the

Auditor-General, of the financial statements and statement of service performance of Hamilton City Council

(City Council) for the year ended 30 June 2016 for the purpose of expressing an opinion about whether:

o the financial statements comply with generally accepted accounting practice and present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the City Council asat 30June 2016 and the results of its

operations and its cash flows for the year ended on that date; and

e the statement of service performance complies with generally accepted accounting practice and
presents fairly, in all material respects, the service performance for the year ended 30 June 2016.

We understand that your audit was carried out in accordance with the Auditing Standards issued by the
Auditor-General, which incorporate the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). We also

understand that your examination was (to the extent that you deemed appropriate) for the objectives of:

e providing an independent opinion on the City Council’s financial statements and performance
information; and

e reporting on other matters relevant to the City Council’s financial and other management systems that
come to your attention and are material (for example, compliance with statutory obligations or
probity).

General responsibilities

To the best of our knowledge and belief:

e the resources and activities under our control have been operating effectively and efficiently;

o we have complied with our statutory obligations including laws, regulations and contractual
requirements;

e we have carried out our decisions and actions with due regard to minimising waste;

D-2233157
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we have met Parliament’s and the public’s expectations of appropriate standards of behaviour in the
public sector (that is, we have carried out our decisions and actions with due regard to probity); and

any decisions or actions have been taken with due regard to financial prudence.

We also acknowledge that we have responsibility for designing, implementing, and maintaining internal
control (to the extent that is reasonably practical given the size of the City Council) to prevent and detect
fraud.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the statement of service performance

We confirm that all transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements and statement of service performance, and that, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, having made such enquiries as we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing
ourselves:

we have fulfilled our responsibilities for preparing and presenting the financial statements and the
statement of service performance as required by the Local Government Act 2002 and, in particular,
that:

o the financial statements comply with generally accepted accounting practice and present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the City Council as at 30 June 2016 and of the results
of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended; and

o the statement of service performance complies with generally accepted accounting practice and
presents fairly, in all material respects, the service performance for the year ended 30 June 2016;

we have appropriately considered the implications of the new public benefit entity (PBE) accounting
standards. In particular, the District Council and group is correctly classified as a Tier 1 reporting entity;
and

we believe the significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those
measured at fair value, are reasonable;

we have appropriately accounted for and disclosed related party relationships and transactions in the
financial statements;

all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing
the financial statements have been disclosed to you and have been accounted for and disclosed in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practice;

we have adjusted or disclosed all events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and the
statement of service performance that require adjustment or disclosure;

we believe the effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements and statement of service performance as a whole; and

we believe the effects of uncorrected disclosure deficiencies, including both omitted and incomplete
disclosures, are quantitatively and qualitatively immaterial, both individually and in aggregate, to the
financial statements and statement of service performance as a whole.
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Responsibilities to provide information

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such enquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

e we have provided you with:

o all information, such as records and documentation, and other matters that are relevant to
preparing and presenting the financial statements and the statement of service performance; and

o unrestricted access to persons within the City Council from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence;

e we have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements and
statement of service performance may be materially misstated as a result of fraud;

e we have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of
and that affects the City Council and involves:

© management;
o employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

o others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements and statement of
service performance;

e we have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting
the City Council ’s financial statements and statement of service performance communicated by
employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others;

e we have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with
laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements and the
statement of service performance, including possible non-compliance with laws for setting rates; and

e we have disclosed the identity of the related parties, all of their relationships, and all of their
transactions of which we are aware.

Going concern

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the City Council has adequate resources to
continue operations at their current level for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the Council continues
to adopt the going concern assumption in preparing the financial statements and the statement of service
performance for the year ended 30 June 2016. We have reached this conclusion after making enquiries and
having regard to circumstances that we consider likely to affect the City Council during the period of one
year from date of signing the annual report, and to circumstances that we know will occur after that date
which could affect the validity of the going concern assumption.

We consider that the financial statements and the statement of service performance adequately disclose
the circumstances, and any uncertainties, surrounding the adoption of the going concern assumption by
the City Council.
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Throughout the year, the City Council has conformed with the requirements of its banking arrangements,
debenture trust deeds, or negative pledge agreements, including those relating to its net tangible assets
ratios.

Publication of the financial statements and statement of service performance and related audit report on
a website

The Council accepts that it is responsible for the electronic presentation of the audited financial statements
and statement of service performance.

The electronic version of the audited financial statements and statement of service performance and the
related audit report presented on the website are the same as the final signed version of the audited

financial statements and statement of service performance and audit report.

We have clearly differentiated between audited and unaudited information on the website and understand
the risk of potential misrepresentation without appropriate controls.

We have assessed the security controls over audited financial and service performance information and the
related audit report and are satisfied that procedures are adequate to ensure the integrity of the

information provided.

Where the audit report on the full financial statements and statement of service performance is provided
on a website, the financial statements and statement of service performance are also provided in full.

Sign-off on these representations

These representations are made at your request, and to supplement information obtained by you from the
records of the City Council and to confirm information given to you orally.

Yours sincerely

Julie Hardaker Richard Briggs
Mayor Chief executive
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the readers of Hamilton City Council and group’s annual report
for the year ended 30 June 2016

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Hamilton City Council (the City Council) and group. The
Auditor-General has appointed me, Leon Pieterse, using the staff and resources of Audit
New Zealand, on her behalf, to:

. audit the information included in the City Council and group’s annual report that we
are required to audit under the Local Government Act 2002 (the audited
information);

. report on whether the City Council and group has complied with the requirements of

Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act 2002 that apply to the annual report and
the Local Government (Financial Reporting and Prudence) Regulations 2014.

Opinion on the avdited information
In our opinion:
. the financial statements on pages 55 to 100:
o present fairly, in all material respects:
the City Council and group’s financial position as at 30 June 201 6;

the results of its operations and cash flows for the year ended on
that date; and

o comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand and
have been prepared in accordance with the Public Benefit Entity Reporting
Standards;
. the funding impact statement on page 111, presents fairly, in all material respects,

the amount of funds produced from each source of funding and how the funds were
applied as compared to the information included in the City Council and group’s
Long-term plan;

U the statement of service performance on pages 5 to 53:

o presents fairly, in all material respects, the City Council's levels of service for
each group of activities for the year ended 30 June 2016, including:

the levels of service achieved compared with the infended levels of
service and whether any intended changes to levels of service were
achieved;

the reasons for any significant variation between the levels of
service achieved and the intended levels of service; and
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o complies with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;
. the statement about capital expenditure for each group of activities on pages 9 to

53, presents fairly, in all material respects, actual capital expenditure as compared
to the budgeted capital expenditure included in the City Council and group's
Long-term plan;

. the funding impact statement for each group of activities on pages 9 fo 53, presents
fairly, in all material respects, the amount of funds produced from each source of
funding and how the funds were applied as compared to the information included in
the City Council and group’s Long-term plan; and

Compliance with requirements
The City Council and group has:

. complied with the requirements of schedule 10 of the Local Government Act 2002
that apply to the annual report; and

] made the disclosures on pages 9 to 117 which are required by the Local Government
(Financial Reporting and Prudence Regulations 2014) which represent a complete list
of required disclosures and accurately reflects the information drawn from the City
Council and group's audited information.

Our audit was completed on 29 September 2016. This is the date at which our opinion is
expressed.

The basis of our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the
Council and our responsibilities, and we explain our independence.

Basis of opinion

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and carry out our audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the information we audited is free from material
misstatement.

Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that, in our
judgement, are likely to influence readers’ overall understanding of the audited information. If
we had found material misstatements that were not corrected, we would have referred to them
in our opinion.

An audit involves carrying out procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the information we audited. The procedures selected depend on our judgement,
including our assessment of risks of material misstatement of the information we audited,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control
relevant to the City Council and group’s preparation of the information we audited in order fo
design procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City Council and group's internal control.

An audit also involves evaluating:
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. the appropriateness of accounting policies used and whether they have been
consistently applied;
. the reasonableness of the significant accounting estimates and judgements made by
the Council;
. the adequacy of the disclosures in the information we audited;
. determining the appropriateness of the reported statements of service performance

within the City Council’'s framework for reporting performance; and
. the overall presentation of the information we audited.

We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the
information we audited.

When reporting on whether the City Council and group complied with the requirements of
Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act 2002 that apply to the annual report, we limited our
procedures to making sure the annual report included the required information and identifying
material inconsistencies, if any, with the information we audited. We carried out this work in
accordance with International Standard on Auditing (New Zealand) 720; The Auditor's
Responsibilities Relating to Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial
Statements.

We did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the information
we are required to audit and report on. We believe we have obtained sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of the Council
The Council is responsible for meeting all legal requirements that apply to its annual report.

The Council's responsibilities arise under the Local Government Act 2002 and the Local
Government (Financial Reporting and Prudence) Regulations 2014.

The Council is responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to ensure that
the annual report is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The
Council is also responsible for the publication of the annual report, whether in printed or
electronic form.

Responsibilities of the Auditor

We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the annual report in accordance
with the reporting requirements of the Local Government Act 2002 and the Local Government

(Financial Reporting and Prudence) Regulations 2014. Our responsibility arises from the Public
Audit Act 2001.

Independence

When carrying out our audit, we followed the independence requirements of the
Auditor-General, which incorporate the independence requirements of the External Reporting
Board.
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In addition to this audit, which includes our report on the Other Requirements, we have carried
out assignments in the areas of audit of the debenture trust, summary annual report and other
assurance services, which are compatible with those independence requirements. Other than
these assignments we have no relationship with or inferests in the City Council or any of its
subsidiaries.

Leon Pieterse

Audit New Zealand

On behalf of the Auditor-General
Auckland, New Zealand
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New Zealand EMAIL info@hcc.govt.nz
hamilton.govt.nz

29 September 2016

Leon Pieterse
Director

Audit New Zealand
PO Box 1165
Auckland 1140

Dear Leon

Letter of representation for the year ended 30 June 2016

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit, carried out on behalf of the

Auditor-General, of the financial statements and statement of service performance of Hamilton City Council

(City Council) for the year ended 30 June 2016 for the purpose of expressing an opinion about whether:

o the financial statements comply with generally accepted accounting practice and present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the City Council asat 30June 2016 and the results of its

operations and its cash flows for the year ended on that date; and

e the statement of service performance complies with generally accepted accounting practice and
presents fairly, in all material respects, the service performance for the year ended 30 June 2016.

We understand that your audit was carried out in accordance with the Auditing Standards issued by the
Auditor-General, which incorporate the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). We also

understand that your examination was (to the extent that you deemed appropriate) for the objectives of:

e providing an independent opinion on the City Council’s financial statements and performance
information; and

e reporting on other matters relevant to the City Council’s financial and other management systems that
come to your attention and are material (for example, compliance with statutory obligations or
probity).

General responsibilities

To the best of our knowledge and belief:

e the resources and activities under our control have been operating effectively and efficiently;

o we have complied with our statutory obligations including laws, regulations and contractual
requirements;

e we have carried out our decisions and actions with due regard to minimising waste;

D-2233157
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we have met Parliament’s and the public’s expectations of appropriate standards of behaviour in the
public sector (that is, we have carried out our decisions and actions with due regard to probity); and

any decisions or actions have been taken with due regard to financial prudence.

We also acknowledge that we have responsibility for designing, implementing, and maintaining internal
control (to the extent that is reasonably practical given the size of the City Council) to prevent and detect
fraud.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the statement of service performance

We confirm that all transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements and statement of service performance, and that, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, having made such enquiries as we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing
ourselves:

we have fulfilled our responsibilities for preparing and presenting the financial statements and the
statement of service performance as required by the Local Government Act 2002 and, in particular,
that:

o the financial statements comply with generally accepted accounting practice and present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the City Council as at 30 June 2016 and of the results
of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended; and

o the statement of service performance complies with generally accepted accounting practice and
presents fairly, in all material respects, the service performance for the year ended 30 June 2016;

we have appropriately considered the implications of the new public benefit entity (PBE) accounting
standards. In particular, the District Council and group is correctly classified as a Tier 1 reporting entity;
and

we believe the significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those
measured at fair value, are reasonable;

we have appropriately accounted for and disclosed related party relationships and transactions in the
financial statements;

all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing
the financial statements have been disclosed to you and have been accounted for and disclosed in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practice;

we have adjusted or disclosed all events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and the
statement of service performance that require adjustment or disclosure;

we believe the effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements and statement of service performance as a whole; and

we believe the effects of uncorrected disclosure deficiencies, including both omitted and incomplete
disclosures, are quantitatively and qualitatively immaterial, both individually and in aggregate, to the
financial statements and statement of service performance as a whole.
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Responsibilities to provide information

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such enquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

e we have provided you with:

o all information, such as records and documentation, and other matters that are relevant to
preparing and presenting the financial statements and the statement of service performance; and

o unrestricted access to persons within the City Council from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence;

e we have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements and
statement of service performance may be materially misstated as a result of fraud;

e we have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of
and that affects the City Council and involves:

© management;
o employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

o others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements and statement of
service performance;

e we have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting
the City Council ’s financial statements and statement of service performance communicated by
employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others;

e we have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with
laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements and the
statement of service performance, including possible non-compliance with laws for setting rates; and

e we have disclosed the identity of the related parties, all of their relationships, and all of their
transactions of which we are aware.

Going concern

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the City Council has adequate resources to
continue operations at their current level for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the Council continues
to adopt the going concern assumption in preparing the financial statements and the statement of service
performance for the year ended 30 June 2016. We have reached this conclusion after making enquiries and
having regard to circumstances that we consider likely to affect the City Council during the period of one
year from date of signing the annual report, and to circumstances that we know will occur after that date
which could affect the validity of the going concern assumption.

We consider that the financial statements and the statement of service performance adequately disclose
the circumstances, and any uncertainties, surrounding the adoption of the going concern assumption by
the City Council.
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Throughout the year, the City Council has conformed with the requirements of its banking arrangements,
debenture trust deeds, or negative pledge agreements, including those relating to its net tangible assets
ratios.

Publication of the financial statements and statement of service performance and related audit report on
a website

The Council accepts that it is responsible for the electronic presentation of the audited financial statements
and statement of service performance.

The electronic version of the audited financial statements and statement of service performance and the
related audit report presented on the website are the same as the final signed version of the audited

financial statements and statement of service performance and audit report.

We have clearly differentiated between audited and unaudited information on the website and understand
the risk of potential misrepresentation without appropriate controls.

We have assessed the security controls over audited financial and service performance information and the
related audit report and are satisfied that procedures are adequate to ensure the integrity of the

information provided.

Where the audit report on the full financial statements and statement of service performance is provided
on a website, the financial statements and statement of service performance are also provided in full.

Sign-off on these representations

These representations are made at your request, and to supplement information obtained by you from the
records of the City Council and to confirm information given to you orally.

Yours sincerely

Julie Hardaker Richard Briggs
Mayor Chief executive
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Independent Avditor’s Report

To the readers of
Hamilton City Council and group’s summary annval report
for the year ended 30 June 2016

The summary annual report was derived from the annual report of the Hamilton City Council
(the City Council) and group for the year ended 30 June 2016. We have considered whether
the summary annual report represents, fairly and consistently, the information regarding the
major mafters dealt with in the annual report.

The annual report included full audited statements, and the summary annual report includes
summary statements. We have audited the following summary statements reported in the
summary annual report on pages 5, 7 to 8:

. the summary statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016;

. the summaries of the statement of comprehensive revenue and expenses, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2016;

. the notes to the summary financial statements that include accounting policies and
other explanatory information; and

. the summary statement of service performance of the City Council and group.

We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the City Council and group’s full audited
statements in our report dated 29 September 201 6.

Opinion
In our opinion:

. the summary annual report represents, fairly and consistently, the information
regarding the major matters dealt with in the annual report; and

. the summary statements comply with PBE FRS-43: Summary Financial Statements.
Basis of opinion

Our audit was carried out in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Infernational Standards on Auditing (New Zealand), and in particular with the
International Standard on Auditing (New Zealand) 810: Engagements to Report on Summary
Financial Statements. These standards require us to carry out procedures to confirm whether
the summary annual report contains the information necessary, and at an appropriate level of
aggregation, so as not to be misleading.

The summary statements do not contain all the disclosures required for full audited statements
under generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand. Reading the summary

HCC unmadified summarry audit opinion 16J
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statements, therefore, is not a substitute for reading the full audited statements in the annual
report of the City Council and group.

Responsibilities of the Council and the Auditor

The Council is responsible for preparing the summary annual report so that it represents, fairly
and consistently, the information regarding the major matters dealt with in the annual report.
This includes preparing summary statements, in accordance with PBE FRS-43: Summary
Financial Statements. The Council is also responsible for the publication of the summary annual
report, whether in printed or electronic form.

We are responsible for expressing an opinion on whether the summary annual report
represents, fairly and consistently, the information regarding the major matters dealt with in
the annual report and whether the summary statements comply with PBE FRS 43: Summary
Financial Statements.

In addition to reporting on the summary annual report, we have reported on the full annual
report, and carried out a range of other assurance engagements in the areas of audit of the
debenture trust deed and other assurance services which are compatible with those
independence requirements. Other than this reporting and these assignments, we have no
relationship with or interests in the City Council or any of its subsidiaries.

Leon Pieterse,

Audit New Zealand

On behalf of the Auditor-General
Auckland, New Zealand

29 September 2016
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Audit & Risk Committee

OPEN MINUTES

Minutes of a Meeting of the Audit & Risk Committee held in Committee Room 1, Municipal
Building, Garden Place, Hamilton on Tuesday 13 September 2016 at 1:30pm.

PRESENT

Chairperson
Members

In Attendance

Committee Advisor

Mr Paul Connell

Mr Tony Steele

Her Worship the Mayor J Hardaker
Cr A O'Leary

Cr R Pascoe

Richard Briggs — Chief Executive

David Bryant — General Manager Corporate

Sean Hickey — General Manager Strategy & Communications
Sean Murray — Executive Director H3 & Events

Tracey Musty — Financial Controller

Tracey Stevenson — Health and Safety Manager

Mark Ebrey - Communication Advisor

Andre Chatfield — Risk and Insurance Manager

Nicolas Wells — Strategic Property Manager

Emma Jones - PriceWaterhouseCoopers
Yoonyoung Y Lee - PriceWaterhouseCoopers
Leon Pieterse — Audit NZ

Naude Kotze — Audit NZ

Mary Birch

1. Apologies
There were no apologies.
2. Confirmation of Agenda
Resolved: (Her Worship the Mayor Hardaker/Mr Steele)
That the Committee confirm the Agenda.
Page 10of 6
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Audit & Risk Committee 13 SEPTEMBER 2016 - OPEN

Declarations of Interest

No members of the Committee declared a Conflict of Interest.
Public Forum

Not required.

Audit and Risk Committee - Open Minutes - 8 June 2016

Resolved: (Her Worship the Mayors Hardaker/Cr O'Leary)

That the Committee confirm and adopt as a true and correct record the Open Minutes of the Audit
and Risk Committee Meeting held on 8 June 2016.

Audit and Risk Committee - Open Action List - 13 September 2016

Resolved: (Mr Connell/Mr Steele)

That the Report be received.

Recommended dates for reports to be presented to Audit and Risk Committee

Resolved: (Mr Connell/Cr O'Leary)
That the Report be received.

Risk Management Report

General Manager Corporate and the Risk and Insurance Manager spoke to the Report. It was
noted that there had been several workshops and that improvement had been seen throughout
the organisation. The effectiveness of the report itself was discussed to ensure that it correctly
reflected the amount of work that was being undertaken in this area.

Resolved: (Mr Steele/Cr Pascoe)

That the Report be received.

Organisation Improvement Programme Report
The Financial Controller introduced this Report. A significant number of outstanding items had

been closed off during this reporting period. Additional information was requested in future
Reports to reflect the expected timeframe for completion of actions.

Resolved: (Mr Connell/Cr O'Leary)
That the Report be received.
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10. 2015/16 Health and Safety Annual Report
The Health and Safety Manager introduced the Report. The 2015/2016 results were mixed; whilst
there had been a reduction in the number of injuries across Council, there had been an increase in
severity.
The Health and Safety at work Act (2015) had come into effect and Council’s system and processes
had been updated to reflect the legislative changes.
The Waikato Local Authority Shared Services (LASS) Health and Safety Working Party had just
launched the contractor pre-qualification scheme.
The Committee noted that the Report had been extremely well written and presented.
Resolved: (Cr O'Leary/Mr Steele)
That the Report be received.
11. Insurance Update
The Risk and Insurance Manager and General Manager Corporate spoke to the Report.
The Chief Executive was to re-circulate Blair Bowcott’s previous insurance report to all Committee
Members to provide additional context and background.
Resolved: (Her Worship the Mayor Hardaker/Mr Steele)
That the Report be received.
12. PWC Draft Internal Audit Plan
Resolved: (Mr Connell/Her Worship the Mayor Hardaker)
That:
a) the Report be received; and
b) the draft Internal Audit plan for FY16/17 is approved.
13. PWC Internal Audit Update
Resolved: (Her Worship the Mayors Hardaker/Cr Pascoe)
That the Report be received.
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14. Internal Audit Update - Governance Reporting
General Manager Corporate introduced the report and provided an update on the work
undertaken over the past year in response to PwC's final Report on Governance Reporting.
Resolved: (Mr Steele/Cr Pascoe)
That the Report be received.
15. Audit New Zealand Interim Management Report for 2015/16

Leon Pieterse and Naude Kotze — Audit NZ, highlighted that the key message was one of
continuous improvement; the Organisational Improvements Plan and the Asset Management
Improvement Plan were effective.
An appropriate communication plan was required to reflect this.
It was confirmed that although the expected completion date was June 2017, the required action
regarding monthly reconciliations had already been undertaken.
It was reiterated that whilst the required work may have been completed, the item can only be
signed off by the auditors.
Although it appeared that staff retained access to IS systems after leaving the organisation, there
was no risk; actual access had been withdrawn and the appearance only related to the background
of the underlying systems.
Considerable work had been undertaken in respect of the asset improvement programme.
The Committee requested that in future, staff provide a one page summary and short commentary
on the status of each action.
Audit NZ was asked to consider how to compare HCC’s performance with other territorial
authorities.
Resolved: (Mr Connell/Mr Steele)
That the Report be received.
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16. Annual Report 2015/2016 and Audit NZ Clearance

Leon Pieterse and Naude Kotze — Audit NZ confirmed that the Report had been prepared and was
compliant with all applicable accounting standards; it fairly reflected the Council’s financial
position for the year ended 30 June 2016. No significant issues had been identified.

The possible requirement for a forensic audit was discussed in detail. All information required by
Audit NZ had been provided by staff in a timely manner; there were no material misstatements
and that relevant staff, the Chair of the Finance Committee and Chair and External Member of the
Audit and Risk Committee were all qualified chartered accountants. The General Manger
Corporate and the Financial Controller were both new to the organisation and had not discovered
any irregularities. This, coupled with the Fitch rating and the robust discussions between Audit NZ
and staff that took place on a regular basis, ensured the relevant checks and balances were in
place.

A media release was required to allay any public concerns during the election period.

Resolved: (Mr Connell/Mr Steele)
That:
a) the Report be received; and

b) the Audit and Risk Committee recommends to Council the adoption of the Annual
Report 2015/16, subject to the wording and presentation changes discussed.

17. Resolution to Exclude the Public

Resolved: (Mr Connell/Cr O’Leary)

Section 48, Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987

The following motion is submitted for consideration:

That the public be excluded from the following parts of the proceedings of this meeting, namely
consideration of the public excluded agenda.

The general subject of each matter to be considered while the public is excluded, the reason for passing
this resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under section 48(1) of the Local
Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of this resolution follows.

General subject of each matter Reasons for passing this Ground(s) under section 48(1)

to be considered resolution in relation to each for the passing of this resolution
matter
C1. Audit and Risk Committee - ) Good reason to withhold Section 48(1)(a)
Public Excluded Minutes - 8 ) information exists under
June 2016 ) Section 7 Local Government

) Official Information and

C2. Audit and Risk Committee - .
) Meetings Act 1987

Public Excluded Action List -

13 September 2016 )
C3. Overdue Debtor - Review of
Account
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C4. Investigation of Fraudulent
Transactions Involving HCC
Purchasing Card

This resolution is made in reliance on section 48(1)(a) of the Local Government Official Information and
Meetings Act 1987 and the particular interest or interests protected by Section 6 or Section 7 of that Act
which would be prejudiced by the holding of the whole or relevant part of the proceedings of the meeting
in public, as follows:

Item C1. to prevent the disclosure or use of official Section 7 (2) (j)
information for improper gain or improper
advantage
Item C2. to prevent the disclosure or use of official Section 7 (2) (j)
information for improper gain or improper
advantage
Item C3. to maintain legal professional privilege Section 7 (2) (g)
Item C4. to protect the privacy of natural persons Section 7 (2) (a)

The Meeting moved in a Public Excluded session (4.50pm to 5.40pm).

The Meeting was declared closed at 5:40pm.
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Finance Committee

OPEN MINUTES

Minutes of a Meeting of the Finance Committee held in Council Chamber, Municipal Building,
Garden Place, Hamilton on Tuesday 20 September 2016 at 1.30pm.

PRESENT

Chairperson
Deputy Chairperson
Members

In Attendance:

Cr R Pascoe

Cr G Mallett

Her Worship the Mayor J Hardaker
Cr G Chesterman
Cr M Forsyth

Cr M Gallagher
Cr K Green

Cr A King

Cr D Macpherson
Cr A O’Leary

Cr L Tooman

Cr E Wilson

Cr PYeung

Richard Briggs — Chief Executive

David Bryant — General Manager Corporate

Lance Vervoort — General Manager Community
Kelvyn Eglinton — General Manager Growth

Chris Allen — General Manager Infrastructure

Sean Hickey — General Manager Strategy and Communication
Sean Murray — Executive Director H3 and Events
Blair Bowcott — Executive Director Special Projects
Tracey Musty — Financial Controller

Andrew Parsons — City Development Manager
Maire Porter — City Waters Manager

Emily Botje — Water Asset Manager

Helen Paki — Community Business Manager

Renee McMillan — Team Leader Assets and Planning
Gina Hailwood — Team Leader City Landscapes
Scott Copeland — Procurement Manager

Nicolas Wells — Strategic Property Unit Manager
Malcolm Frethey — Business Analyst
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Debbie Lascelles — Acting Unit Manager Community Development and Leisure
Lee Cowan —Communications Unit Manager

Samantha Whittle — Communications Advisor

Jeff Neems — Communications Advisor

Nigel Ward — Communications Advisor

Stephen Standley — Zoo Director

Graham Pollard — Corporate Planning Programme Manager

Andrew Wilson — General Manager Accessible Properties
James Gurnick — Tomkins Wake Associate
Christopher Wilson — PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC)

Committee Advisors: Mary Birch and Becca Brooke

Prior to the Meeting starting, a minute’s silence was observed in remembrance of Samantha Kudeweh

1.

Apologies
Resolved: (Crs Pascoe/Mallett)
That the apologies from Cr O’Leary (for lateness) be received and accepted.

Confirmation of Agenda

Resolved: (Crs Pascoe/Mallett)

That the Agenda be confirmed, noting that Item 6 (Accessible Properties NZ Limited — Q3 and Q4
Management Accounts and Activity Report) be taken later on in the Agenda to accommodate an
external guest presenter.

Declarations of Interest

Cr Chesterman declared a conflict of interest in relation to Item 13 (Contract 15433 for a Primary
Provider of Legal Services). He would retire from the Meeting prior to this Item being taken.

Public Forum

No members of the public wished to speak.

Cr O’Leary joined the Meeting (1.35pm) during the above Item.
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5. End of Triennium Chairperson's Report

Cr Pascoe (Chair of the Finance Committee) took the report as read and thanked Elected Members
and Staff for their contribution and support to the Committee during the triennium.

Her Worship the Mayor Hardaker acknowledged and thanked Cr Pascoe and Cr Mallett for their
service and commitment in their respective roles as Chair and Deputy Chair of the Finance
Committee.

Resolved: (Crs Pascoe/Mallett)

That the report be received.

items 7 (Service Delivery Review Programme 2016/17) and 8 (Recommendations from the
PricewaterhouseCoopers Review of Hamilton Zoo) were taken prior to Item 6 (Accessible Properties New
Zealand Limited) to accommodate a guest presenter.

7. Service Delivery Review Programme 2016/17

The General Manager Strategy and Communications took the report as read. Staff responded to
questions from Committee Members concerning the reporting requirements of Local Authority
Shared Services (LASS) and the input Council has had into LASS.

Further clarification was sought on why PwC had found it challenging to benchmark parks and
services.

Action:

Committee Members requested that staff liaise with LASS on reporting timeframes and
expectations from Council in relation to providing regular update reports.

Resolved: (Her Worship the Mayor Hardaker/Cr Tooman)

That the report be received.
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Recommendations from the PricewaterhouseCoopers review of Hamilton Zoo

The Chief Executive(CE) took the report as read and introduced James Gurnick of Tompkins Wake
who provided Committee Members with an overview of the court proceedings and sentencing
outcome in relation to the Worksafe New Zealand prosecution against Council.

Staff and Mr Gurnick responded to questions from Committee Members concerning payments
made to Mrs Kudeweh’s family.

The CE advised that $116,000 had been paid to the family in addition to the fine and payment for
consequential loss to the Kudeweh children handed down by the Court. Most of the additional
payments made to the Family were discretionary and not required by law. The CE noted that he
had both a responsibility to Mrs Kudeweh’s family and also to the ratepayers and had done his
best to try and balance the two.

An itemised list of the additional payments made to the family was tabled at the Meeting.

The CE then introduced Christopher Wilson from PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) who outlined the
auditing process and key outcomes and recommendations of the PwC review of the Zoo. Mr
Wilson, along with staff, responded to questions from Committee Members concerning the PwC
recommendations; specifically around ensuring continuation of auditing the safety measures and
implementation of the PwC recommendations at the Zoo.

Committee Members discussed the various risks for Council and staff and the public associated
with the Zoo.

Motion: (Crs Forsyth/Tooman)
That:
a) the report be received;

b) Council approves funding for an additional 9.12 FTE at Hamilton Zoo. Additional budget of
$302,000 is to be included in the Risks and Opportunities Schedule for the remainder of
the 2016/17 year and $515,000 to be allocated in the 2017/18 Annual Plan;

¢) Council considers the draft Zoo Master Plan for public consultation at the relevant
Committee by April 2017; and

d) the recommendations from the PwC report be added to the Audit and Risk Committee’s
audit recommendations report.

e)
Amendment: (Crs Chesterman/Macpherson)

That:

a) the report be received;

b) Council approves funding for an additional 9.12 FTE at Hamilton Zoo. Additional budget of
$302,000 is to be included in the Risks and Opportunities Schedule for the remainder of
the 2016/17 year and $515,000 to be allocated in the 2017/18 Annual Plan;

c) Council considers the draft Zoo Master Plan for public consultation at the relevant
Committee by April 2017;

d) the recommendations from the PwC report be added to the Audit and Risk Committee
audit recommendations report; and
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e) the Council makes a further ex gratia payment to Billy and Sage Kudeweh'’s Trust of
$80,000.

Those for the Amendment: Councillors Gallagher, Green,
Chesterman, Yeung, O'Leary and
Macpherson.

Those against the Amendment: Her Worship the Mayor Hardaker,
Councillors King, Wilson, Forsyth, Pascoe,
Mallett and Tooman.

The Amendment was declared lost.

The Motion was then put and declared carried.

Resolved: (Crs Forsyth/Tooman)
That:
a) the report be received;

b) Council approves funding for an additional 9.12 FTE at Hamilton Zoo. Additional budget of
$302,000 is to be included in the Risks and Opportunities Schedule for the remainder of
the 2016/17 year and $515,000 to be allocated in the 2017/18 Annual Plan;

¢) Council considers the draft Zoo Master Plan for public consultation at the relevant
Committee by April 2017; and

d) The recommendations from the PwC report be added to the Audit and Risk Committee
Audit recommendations report.

6. Accessible Properties New Zealand Limited - Q3 and Q4 Management Accounts and
Activity Report

The Financial Controller introduced the item, noting that the report covered off two main areas
{financial and legal obligations). Councils debt was secure and Accessible Properties New Zealand
Ltd were delivering what was required of them under the contract.

The Financial Controller introduced Andrew Wilson (General Manager Accessible Properties) and
they responded to questions from Committee Members concerning the agreement between

Accessible Properties and HCC, the current waitlist for the properties, the turnover of tenants,
the reasons for them leaving and the percentage of tenants qualifying for large subsidies.

Resolved: (Crs Chesterman/Mallett)

That the report be received.

The Meeting adjourned 3.55pm —4.10pm.
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Business Case for Rubbish and Recycling Service Change

The General Manager City Infrastructure and Water Assets Manager introduced the item, noting
that the purpose of the report was for approval to proceed with public engagement. This would be
through a special consultative process over a proposed change to the level of service for rubbish
and recycling services.

Staff responded to questions from Committee Members concerning working group outcomes.
The rubbish and recycling working group had worked through a number of different issues and
options including frequency of collection, user responsibilities and education, bin types, future
proofing, high density areas, elderly assistance, and providers.

Committee Members raised concerns about the timing of the proposed consultation period and
also around the communication of the business case for rubbish and recycling service change to
the public.

Further work needed to be carried out in terms of a statement of proposal document and around
the communication to the public of the business case.

Resolved: (Her Worship the Mayor Hardaker/Cr O’ Leary)
That:

a) the report be received;

b) That:

(i) the draft business case for a rubbish and recycling service change (based on option
24) is approved for the purposes of undertaking community engagement;

(i) engagement with the community using a special consultation process is carried out
from 17 October till 30 November 2016;

(iii) that staff report back to Council no later than March 2017 to approve the final
business case incorporating the outcome of the public engagement;

c) a statement of proposal document is to be developed with the assistance of the
working group and to be agreed prior to 8 October 2016, and it is to exclude
consultation on funding mechanism options;

d) the collection of bins is to exclude the kitchen caddy; and

e) a media briefing on the report received by this Committee today is to be held
tomorrow, to ensure the media have sufficient background information on the
substance of the report.

Cr Chesterman retired from the Meeting (5.40pm) at the conclusion of the above Item. He was present when
the matter was voted on.
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7. Election Period Infrastructure Contract Delegations
The report was taken as read.
Resolved: (Her Worship the Mayor Hardaker/Cr Forsyth)
That:

a) the report be received;

b) the Chief Executive is delegated to award Contract 16036 for the supply of pipes and
installation for the Hamilton South Water Reservoir Bulkmain Duplication project
subject to the total Approved Contract Sum not exceeding $8,000,000;

c) the Chief Executive is delegated to award Contract 15424 for the supply of pipes and
installation for the Rotokauri Far Western Waste Water Interceptor project subject to
the Approved Contract Sum not exceeding $7,574,000;

d) the Chief Executive is delegated to approve a land purchase agreement for the Gower
land to be used for the Rotokauri Stormwater swale as shown on Attachment 1 up to a
maximum of $1,834,000 including costs subject to the costs being supported by
property valuation;

e) the Chief Executive is delegated to approve a land purchase agreement for the Wintec
land to be used for the Rotokauri Stormwater swale and Te Wetini Drive Extension as
shown on Attachment 1 up to a maximum of $5,500,000 including costs subject to the
costs being supported by property valuation; and

f) the Chief Executive is delegated to approve and execute any associated agreements or
documentation to facilitate and implement the Gower and Wintec land procurement.

8. Lake Rd - Land Sale
The report was taken as read.
Resolved: (Crs Wilson/Mallett)
That:

a) the report be received;

b) the Council owned property, legal description Allot 463 Te Rapa Parish, is sold to the
owner of the adjoining property (legal description Lot 1 DPS 8955) subject to:

(i) all costs relating the sale and purchase being met by the purchaser.
(ii) the purchase price being agreed to.
(iii) the two properties being amalgamated into one certificate of title.
c) the Chief Executive be delegated authority to:

(i) sign all documentation relating to the sale and purchase of the property.
(ii) negotiate the purchase price subject to it being supported by a valuation report

obtained from a Council appointed independent registered valuer.

Page 7 of 10
Attachments Page 165

Item 11

Attachment 8



ltem 11

Attachment 8

Council h Hamilton
29 September 2016

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

Finance Committee 20 SEPTEMBER 2016 - OPEN

9. Mangaonua Restoration Contract

The Business Manager Community and Team Leader Assets and Planning took the report as read
and responded to questions from Committee Members concerning the background of the
contract.

Staff were satisfied that Ngati Haua Mahi Trust had an intimate knowledge of the site, good
relationships with stakeholders and an ongoing commitment to restoration of the site. They
would report quarterly to Project Watershed and payments would be made in instalments based
on the work they carried out.

Resolved: (Crs Pascoe/O'Leary)
That:
a) the report be received; and

b) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive to directly appoint Ngati Haua Mahi Trust
to complete the restoration works within the Mangaonua Gully from Hamilton City
Councils Project Watershed Fund Operating Reserve for a sum up to but not exceeding
$433,800 over 3 years.

10. Contract 15433 for a Primary Provider of Legal Services

The Procurement Manager took the report as read and responded to questions from Committee
Members concerning specifics of the Contract particularly regarding pricing structure.

Resolved: (Crs Pascoe/Yeung)

That:
a) thereport be received;

b)  the tender submitted by Tompkins Wake for Contract 15433 for a Primary Legal
Provider is accepted by Hamilton City Council;

c) Chief Executive is delegated to negotiate and approve final contract terms with
Tompkins Wake; and

d) the Approved Contract Term is set at three years with one right of renewal of two
years at Council’s sole discretion.

11. Recommended dates for reports to Finance Committee

Resolved: (Crs Wilson/Yeung)

That the report be received.
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End of Triennium - Open Minutes to be Confirmed and Adopted

Finance Committee Open Minutes - 18 August 2016.
Resolved: (Crs Pascoe/O’Leary)

That the Committee confirm and adopt as a true and correct record the Open Minutes of the
Finance Committee Meeting held on 18 August 2016.

Council Controlled Organisations (CCO) Subcommittee Open Minutes — 9 August 2016.
Resolved: (Crs Mallett/Yeung)

That the Committee confirm and adopt as a true and correct record the Open Minutes of the
Council Controlled Organisations (CCO) Subcommittee Meeting held on 9 August 2016.

Event Sponsorship Subcommittee Open Minutes — 26 August 2016.
Resolved: (Crs Wilson/Yeung)

That the Committee confirm and adopt as a true and correct record the Open Minutes of the
Events Sponsorship Subcommittee Meeting held on 26 August 2016.

Finance Committee - Open Action List - 20 September 2016

Resolved: (Crs Pascoe/Forsyth)

That the report be received.

12.
1)
2)
3)
13.
14.
Resolved:

Resolution to Exclude the Public

(Crs Wilson/Tooman)

Section 48, Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987

The following motion is submitted for consideration:

That the public be excluded from the following parts of the proceedings of this meeting, namely
consideration of the public excluded agenda.

The general subject of each matter to be considered while the public is excluded, the reason for passing

this resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under section 48(1) of the Local
Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of this resolution follows.

General subject of each matter Reasons for passing this Ground(s) under section 48(1)

to be considered resolution in relation to each for the passing of this resolution
matter
Cl. Waikato Innovation Park Ltd ) Good reason to withhold Section 48(1)(a)
- Update ) information exists under
C2. End of Triennium - Public | S 7 s e

Excluded Minutes to be

) Official Information and
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Confirmed and Adopted ) Meetings Act 1987
)

C3. Finance Committee - Public
Excluded Action List - 20
September 2016

This resolution is made in reliance on section 48(1)(a) of the Local Government Official Information and
Meetings Act 1987 and the particular interest or interests protected by Section 6 or Section 7 of that Act
which would be prejudiced by the holding of the whole or relevant part of the proceedings of the meeting
in public, as follows:

Item C1. to enable Council to carry out negotiations Section 7 (2) (i)
Item C2. to prevent the disclosure or use of official Section 7 (2) (j)
information for improper gain or improper
advantage
Item C3. to prevent the disclosure or use of official Section 7 (2) (j)
information for improper gain or improper
advantage

The Meeting went into a Public Excluded session at 6.00pm.

The Meeting was declared closed at 6.10pm.
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b Hamilton City Co

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

Extraordinary Council

OPEN MINUTES

Minutes of a meeting of the Council held in Council Chamber, Municipal Building, Garden Place,
Hamilton on Tuesday 20 September 2016 at 6.10pm.

PRESENT

Chairperson
Deputy Chairperson
Members

Her Worship the Mayor J Hardaker
Cr M Forsyth

Cr M Gallagher
Cr K Green

Cr A King

Cr D Macpherson
Cr G Mallett

Cr A O'Leary

Cr R Pascoe

Cr L Tooman

Cr PYeung

1. Apologies

Resolved:

(Her Worship the Mayor Hardaker/Cr Yeung)

That the apologies from Crs Chesterman and Wilson be received and accepted.

2. Confirmation of Agenda

Resolved:

(Her Worship the Mayor Hardaker/Cr Forsyth)

That the Agenda be confirmed.

3. Declarations of Interest

No members of the Council declared a Conflict of Interest.

COUNCIL 20 SEPTEMBER 2016 -OPEN
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4, Public Forum

No members of the public wished to speak.

5. Resolution to Exclude the Public

Resolved: (Her Worship the Mayor Hardaker/Cr Forsyth)

Section 48, Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987

The following motion is submitted for consideration:

That the public be excluded from the following parts of the proceedings of this meeting, namely
consideration of the public excluded agenda.

The general subject of each matter to be considered while the public is excluded, the reason for passing
this resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under section 48(1) of the Local
Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of this resolution follows.

General subject of each matter Reasons for passing this Ground(s) under section 48(1)

to be considered resolution in relation to each for the passing of this resolution
matter
C1. Freedom of the City Award ) Good reason to withhold Section 48(1)(a)

) information exists under

) Section 7 Local Government
) Official Information and

) Meetings Act 1987

)

This resolution is made in reliance on section 48(1)(a) of the Local Government Official Information and
Meetings Act 1987 and the particular interest or interests protected by Section 6 or Section 7 of that Act
which would be prejudiced by the holding of the whole or relevant part of the proceedings of the meeting
in public, as follows:

Item C1. to protect the privacy of natural persons Section 7 (2) (a)

Crs Gallagher and Green joined the Meeting (6.15pm) at the conclusion of the above Item. They were not
present when the matter was voted on.

The Meeting went into a Public Excluded session at 6.15pm.

The Meeting was declared closed at 6.30pm.
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Hearings Subcommittee

OPEN MINUTES

Minutes of a Meeting of the Hearings Subcommittee held in Committee Room 1, Municipal
Building, Garden Place, Hamilton on Wednesday 21 September 2016 at 1.30pm.

PRESENT
Chairperson Cr L Tooman
Members Cr E Wilson
Cr PYeung
In attendance Robyn Denton — City Transportation Operations Team Leader
Committee Advisor Ms B Brooke, Ms C Guthrie

1. Apologies
In the absence of Councillor Forsyth, Councillor Tooman was appointed as chairperson.
2. Confirmation of Agenda
Resolved: (Crs Yeung/Wilson)
That the Agenda be confirmed with the late addition of the Hillcrest Road and Edinburgh Road No

Stopping Restriction and the amendment to Item 7(d) Dey Street One Way Road.

3. Declarations of Interest

No members of the Committee declared a Conflict of Interest.
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4. Hearings Subcommittee - Open Minutes - 8 March 2016 and 16 June 2016

Resolved: (Crs Yeung/Tooman)

That the Subcommittee confirm and adopt as a true and correct record the Open Minutes of the
Hearings Subcommittee Meeting held on 8 March 2016.

Resolved: (Crs Tooman/Yeung)

That the Subcommittee confirm and adopt as a true and correct record the Open Minutes of the
Hearings Subcommittee Meeting held on 16 June 2016.
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Parking Restrictions and Traffic Bylaw Register Changes

The City Transportation Operations Team Leader spoke to the Report and responded to questions
from Subcommittee Members concerning:

e Tuhikaramea Road, 50km/h section in Templeview Parking Restriction Change
This change involved rescinding a large number of No Stopping restrictions as part of the
ongoing work at Templeview. There was community consultation as part of the larger project
and the affected home owners and neighbours were consulted in relation to the smaller
individual sites.

e Queens Avenue & Killarney Road intersection Parking Restriction Change
This change was part of on-going work on this intersection which will now be changed to a
roundabout. It was confirmed that this intersection was a crash spot.

e  (O’Neill Street Parking Restriction Change
This change was to prevent the level of illegal parking that had resulted from the opening of a
nearby pub.

e  Frost Street Parking Restriction Change
This change was requested by residents.

e Greenfield Street Parking Restriction Change
A number of complaints were received about parking in this road where there was a long
splitter island and cars were parking partly off-road blocking the footpath.

e Foster Street Parking Restriction Change
This change was to prevent cars parking illegally between two driveways.

e Beaumont Street and Greenboro Street Parking Restriction Change
This parking restriction was proposed as cars were parking close to the corner and had been
towed to allow bus access.

e River Road Parking Restriction Change
These changes were proposed on paper only to ensure that what was on site matched what
was in the system. No physical changes would be made on site.

e Duke Street Parking Restriction Change
This change was proposed to prevent illegal parking between two driveways, where a car had
been hit by a truck.

e 391 Te Rapa Road Parking Restriction Change
This change was to extend the bus stop areas to ensure buses had enough room to
manoeuvre.

e Te Rapa Road Parking Restriction Change
These changes were proposed on paper only to ensure that what was on site matched
Council’s records. No physical changes would be made on site.

e Kaimiro Street Parking Restriction Change
The parking restriction changes in this industrial area were being gradually introduced as cars
were being hit by trucks.

e Queen’s Park Crescent Parking Restriction Change
This change was proposed to prevent parking across access gates to the park.

e Ulster Street Parking and Opp 1030 Victoria Street Restriction Changes
These changes were proposed because of the new adjoining petrol station.

e 139-143 Anglesea Street Parking Restriction Changes
The changes are proposed to make way for the new Anglesea Street clinic entrance and exit.
The owner of the neighbouring business had communicated concerns about the increase in
traffic affecting clients leaving the premises and about the loss of four carparks. He was
advised that the new entry/exit would only have a left turn which would be safer and that the
four carparks would not be replaced. He declined to speak to the Hearings Subcommittee.
The late amendment to the staff recommendation was to confirm that the changes would not
take place until the new vehicle entrance was completed.
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Vialou Street Parking Restriction Changes

These changes were proposed to accommodate the recent development in this street
resulting in more traffic from new apartments and a café.

12 Vialou Street Parking Restriction Changes

This change was proposed on paper only to ensure that what was on site matched what
was in the system. No physical changes would be made on site.

Wellington Street Parking Restriction Change

This change was requested by business owners.

Grey Street Parking Restriction Changes

These changes were proposed to relocate the site of the bus stop to ensure the bus was
able to park safely. There would be a loss of three car parks. The business owner
expressed concerns but the residents agreed with the changes.

Grey Street Parking Restriction Change

These changes were proposed as parking demand was a major issue in this area. Some
parking was subject to a 180 minute time restriction as this allowed people to visit the
school or walk to neighbouring businesses for longer appointments.

Masters Avenue Parking Restriction Change

This change was proposed as the bus stop was a pole stop, which required a 6 metre
restriction each side, but buses are now 13 metres long, and therefore a bus cage was
required.

Worley Place Parking Restriction Change

This change proposed to accommodate mobility card users with rear access vehicles.
These users were unable to use underground carparks for such vehicles. Loading zone use
would remain for daytime and mobility use for evenings.

Hood Street Parking Restriction Change

This change was proposed as a taxi stand was not being used. Taxi stands had been
established closer to the Sky Casino.

Hillcrest Road and Edinburgh Road Parking Restriction Changes

This late amendment was proposed to clarify it was not safe to park in this area.

CBD Parking Charges Changes

This proposal outlined changes to parking charges to align with the Central City
Transformation Plan. Subcommittee Members noted that time periods on the map on
page 62 of the Agenda did not match the staff resolution as Sunday still had time
restrictions.
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Resolved:

(Crs Wilson/Yeung)

a) That the report be received.

b) That Council approves the changes to parking restrictions and controls as set out in the
tables below, noting the late amendments for No Stopping on corner of Hillcrest Road
and Edinburgh Road; and the clarification to the One Way Road on Dey Street

PARKING RESTRICTIONS TO BE CHANGED

Location

Description of proposed change and reason

Tuhikaramea
Road, 50km/h
section in
Templeview

Rescind all the current No Stopping restrictions in the 50km/h section of
Tuhikaramea Rd in Templeview.

Install No Stopping restrictions in Templeview as per Attachments 1 and 2 to

the report:

e North of the new road, 91.5m on the west side and 80m on the east side of
Tuhikaramea Road

e Eastside of Tuhikaramea Road, 148m from the new road to parking bays.
112m from parking bays to pedestrian crossing point.

e West side of Tuhikaramea Road, 81m to Cowley Drive, 102.5m from Cowley
Drive to the pakring bays and 67.5m from the parking bays to the
pedestrian crossing point

e Cowley Drive, 28.5m on the north side and 26m on the south side

e Eastside of Tuhikaramea Road, 110.5m from pedestrian crossing point to
Road 2

e Eastside of Tuhikaramea Road, 136m south of Road 2 to the pedestrian
crossing point and 135m from pedestrian crossing point to North Temple
Road

o Westside of Tuhikaramea Road, 34.5m from pedestrian crossing point to
parking bays, 26.5m from parking bays to Foster Road, 29.5m from Foster
Road to parking bays, 31m between parking bays, 18.5m from parking bay
to pedestrian crossing point, 18.5m from pedestrian crossing point to
parking bays

o West side of Tuhikaramea Road, 80m from parking bays to North Temple
Road and from North Temple Road to a point 45m south of this
intersection.

e Eastside of Tuhikaramea Road, 46m south of North Temple Road

Queens
Avenue &
Killarney Road
intersection

Rescind all the current No Stopping restrictions at this intersection.

Install new No Stopping restrictions of 60m & 30m to the north western corner,
47m & 38m to the north eastern corner, 23m &23m to the south eastern
corner and 23m & 35m to the south western corner of the intersection.

Torrington Installation of 68m of No Stopping on the west side of Torrington Ave from

Ave Avon Street to Wye Street

O'Neill Street | Installation of 30m of No Stopping on O’Neill Street, starting at the North
western boundary of O’Neill and Heaphy Terrace and going down to #29
driveway.

Frost Place Installation of 79m of No stopping on the west side of the street.

Colombo Installation of 37m of No stopping on the east side of the street from the

Street corner of Killarney Road in Colombo Street.

Greenfield No stopping on both sides of the road from the Newcastle Road intersection

Drive back to #6 and #5.

Foster Road

Installation of 15.5m No Stopping between the driveways of #16 and #18..
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Beaumont Installation of 16.5m and 24m on Beaumont Street outside 15 Greensboro and
Street 15 Beaumont Street.

Greenboro Installation of 9m of No Stopping on the east corner of the intersection
Street Beaumont Street in Greenboro Street.

289 River 29m of No Stopping outside 289 River Road is currently installed but not
Road gazetted.

1&45 Installation of 49m and 32m of No Stopping on the east side of Riverlea Road.
Riverlea Road

Sheffield Installation of 40.5m of No Stopping on Sheffield Street between the driveways
Street of 30 Sunshine Ave on Sheffield Street.

Duke Street

Installation of 20m of No Stopping between 2 Kells Place and 63 Higgins Road
on Duke Street.

391 Te Rapa
Road

Installation of 8m of No stopping outside 391 Te Rapa Road in front of the bus
stop to allow it better access.

Te Rapa Road

Gazettte No Stopping that is already in place. 108.5m from #712-#736, 34.5m
from #746-#750 and 39.5m outside Te Rapa New World #751.

Kaimiro Street

Installation of several lengths of No Stopping along Kaimiro Street on south
side - 38m outside #7, 130.5m outside #11 & north side 32.8m outside #18 and
66.5m outside #22b&22c.

Opp 12 Installation of 3m of No Stopping on the south side of the street.

Queens Park

Crescent

Ranfurly Ave | Installation of 31.5m & 54.5m either side of the island.

& Casey Ave

54 Ulster Installation of 15m and 21.5m of No Stopping across the new entrances for the
Street BP on Ulster Street

54 Ulster Bus Stop moved due to BP alterations. Rescind the one outside #70 and install
Street 2 new stops (20m & 15m) outside 54 Ulster Street.

Opp 1030 Taxi Stand outside BP #54 moved slightly further south.

Victoria Street

139-143 Installation of 32m of No Stopping (removal of 4 carparks) for new vehicle
Anglesea entrance. Rescind 22m of P120 parking to have a remaining length of 28m as
Street part of the Anglesea Properties Ltd (13 Thackeray St) driveway access

construction consent #2003/13521.

Vialou Street

P60 parking restriction to be installed on the eastside (19.5m currently
installed) and 35.5m outside 7-9 Vialou Street.

12 Vialou There is a 6.5m Loading Zone on site that needs to be gazetted

Street

105 Avalon P10 Mon-Sun 8am-6m parking restriction of 15m be installed the dairy at 105
Drive Avalon Drive.

65 & 67 P10 parking restriction of 7.5m and 15m of P120 outside the bakery and
Cameron Martial Arts centre.

Road

Wellington Change the current P120 to P60 opposite KFC in Wellington Street

Street

Grey Street Relcoate the existing bus stop from outside 525 Grey Street to 541 Grey Street.

Grey Street

Rescind all the current parking restrictions from Beale Street to Dawson Street
on the western side of Grey Street.

Gazette the current time restriction and mobility parks that are on site on the
western side of Grey St starting at Beale Street and heading north, 15m of P60
8am-6pm Mon-Sun, 37m of P60 8am-6pm Mon-Sun, 5m of P10 8am-6pm Mon-
Sun, 2 x 3.5 Mobility Card Holder 30min parks at all times, 5.5m of P60 8am-
6pm Mon-Sun, new bus stop, 17m of P60 8am-6pm Mon-Fri & 38m of P180
8am-6pm Mon-Fri.
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64 Callum New bus stop installed

Brae

83 Masters Bus cage need to be installed

Ave

22 Hillcrest New bus stop

Road

166 Hillcrest Rescind all parking restrictions on the eastern side of Hillcrest Road between
Road Silverdale Road and #166 Hillcrest Road.

Relocate the existing bus stop from #166 to #202 Hillcrest Road (15m length)
and install P120 Mon-Fri 8am-6pm for the remaining lengths (85.5m and 57m)
for this section of Hillcrest Road.

Collingwood
Street

Recind the existing Loading Zone and Bus Stop on the southern side of
Collingwood Street between Victoria Street and Collingwood Street. Gazette
new locations for the bus stop (same length but closer to Victoria Street) and
the loading zone to mid block.

370 Victoria
Street

Rescind the existing bus stop outside #370 which is no longer required and
install a Taxi Stand.

Victoria Street

Rescind the existing Loading Zone and replace with a Taxi Stand outside 334
Victoria Street

134 Ward Rescind the Taxi Stand outside Burger King and install a 34.5m Loading Zone

Street P10 at all times.

Worley Place | Introduction of an after hours Mobility card holder park in the existing Loading
Zone between the hours of 6pm to 8am

Liverpool Rescind 28m of P120 in Liverpool to a new length of 56m to allow a Mobility

Street Card Holder park to be installed outside #15 Liverpool Street.

Alexandra Extending the current 6m Mobility Card Holder parking to 10m. Rescind 4m of

Street No Stopping to a new length of 18m

19 Knox Rescind 11m of Loading Zone and return to 2 x P120, 8am-6pm, Monday-

Street Sunday. Extend the current length of time restricted parking from 110m to
121m.

30 Hood Rescind the current Night taxi stand outside #30.

Street

286 Victoria Rescind 21m of Taxi stand and replace with four P120 parking spaces, Monday

Street to Sunday - 8am till 6pm

Hillcrest Road

Installation of 31.5m of No Stopping restriction on the northern corner of
Hillcrest Road and Edinburgh Street

Edinburgh
Road

Installation of 15m of No Stopping restriction on the northern side of Edinburgh
Road from the Hillcrest Road intersection.

c) That Council approves the changes to the period for which parking charges apply as set
out below:

CHANGES TO PERIOD FOR PARKING CHARGES

Location

Description of proposed change and reason

London Street — Anglesea Street to

eastern end

Bryce Street — Anglesea Street to

eastern end

Ward Street — Tristram Street to
Anglesea Street

Ward Street — Worley Place to Victoria

Street
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Caro Street — Anglesea Street to
Alexandra Street

Collingwood Street — Tristram Street
to Victoria Street

Hood Street — Anglesea Street to
Victoria Street

Knox Street - Anglesea Street to
Victoria Street — north side only

Alma Street — Victoria Street to
eastern end

Sapper Moore Jones Place - Victoria
Street to eastern end

Clarence Street — Anglesea Street to
Tristram Street

Anglesea Street — London Street to
Bryce Street — eastern side only

Anglesea Street — Collingwood Street
to Anzac Parade

Barton Street — London Street to Bryce
Street

Worley Place — Ward Street to
Alexandra Street

Alexandra Place — Caro Street to Hood
Street

Victoria Street — London Street to
Anzac Parade

Rescind current requirements for period for which
parking charges apply and replace with:

Payment for parking to be:
e 9am to 3pm Monday to Saturday
e Free on Sundays and public holidays

d) That Council approves the change to the Hamilton City Traffic Bylaw 2015 One Way
Roads Register by the addition of the following site:

e Dey Street — between Cassidy Street and Old Farm Road — north bound traffic
only to be implemented as part of the Jebson Place redevelopment by Housing

NZ.

The Meeting was declared closed at 2.30pm.
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